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Ms. Blanca Bay0 
Director of Records and Reporting 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Re: Auulication bv Citv Gas Comuanv of Florida. a division of NUI Comoration 
Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Enclosed for filing are fifteen signed originals, each with a set of documentary attachments, 
of an application to issue securities prepared by our firm on behalf of our client, City Gas Company 
of Florida, a division of NUI Corporation ("City Gas"). 

City Gas desires to obtain the Public Service Commission's approval of its application as 
soon as possible. If you need further information or clarification of any matter contained in or in 
connection with the enclosed application, we ask that you communicate with us to determine 
whether the desired information exists and whether the information could be expeditiously supplied 
by City Gas. 

Kindly acknowledge receipt of this letter and the enclosed materials by stamping the enclosed 
copy of this letter and returning it to me with my messenger. 

Please direct any inquiries regarding this matter to the undersigned. 

c: M. Mucci, Esq. (w/o e n d )  via facsimile 
JK2 138104 



BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Application of City Gas ) DOCKET NO. 
Company of Florida (a Division ) 
of NU1 Corporation) for authority ) 
for NU1 Corporation to issue and ) 
sell securities during the twelve ) 
months ending September 30,1999) 

FILED: 

APPLICATION OF CITY GAS COMPANY O F  FLORIDA 
(A DIVISION OF NU1 CORPORATION) FOR AUTHORITY 

m s  AND LL E RITIE 

Pursuant to Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative Code, and Section 366.04, 

Florida Statutes, City Gas Company of Florida (a division of NUI Corporation) (“City 

Gas”), submits this application for authority for NUI Corporation (“NUI”) to issue and 

sell securities during the period beginning October 1,1998 and ending September 30, 

1999. In support of this request, City Gas provides the following information: 

1. The exact name of the Applicant and 

the address of its principal business office is: 

City Gas Company of Florida 
(a Division of NU1 Corporation) 
955 East 251h Street 
Hialeah, Florida 33013-3498 

2. State and Date of Incoraoration: NU1 was incorporated in 1969 under 

the laws of New Jersey. City Gas, a public utility since 1960, is engaged in the 

transmission and distribution of natural gas to approximately 97,000 customers in 

Brevard, Broward, Dade and St. Lucie Counties, and is an operating division of NUI. 

City Gas owns approximately 2,560 miles of steel and plastic 
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of natural gas in Florida, as well as gate stations, meters and related equipment. City 

Gas also owns real property in Dade, Broward, Brevard and St. Lucie Counties in 

Florida, including a general office building in Hialeah, Florida, that serves as its 

headquarters and service center from which City Gas dispatches service crews and 

conducts construction and maintenance activities for its Miami division, and another 

office facility in Rockledge, Florida. 

NU1 operates its gas utility systems in Florida, North Carolina, Maryland, 

Pennsylvania and New York under a common divisional management. Collectively, 

they comprise the “Southern Division” of NUL NUI’s other gas utility operations, 

which are conducted in New Jersey, comprise the “Northern Division” of NUI. 

3. Persons to Receive Notices: The names and addresses of the persons 

authorized to receive notices and communications with respect to this application are: 

Mary Patricia Keefe 
Associate General Counsel & Director, Regulatory Affairs 
NU1 Corporation 
One Eliiabethtown Plaza 
Union, N J  07083 

Robert F. L u r k  
Vice President, Corporate Development & Treasurer 
NU1 Corporation 
550 Route 202-206 
P.O. Box 760 
Bedminster, NJ 07921-0760 

4. e: 
Caoital Stock. Each item below is as of June 30, 1998. 

(a) Brief Description. The Capital Stock of NU1 consisted of (i) Common Stock, 



No Par Value, and (ii) Preferred Stock, No Par Value. 

(b) Amount Authorized. 30,000,000 shares of Common Stock were authorized 
5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock were authorized. 

(c) Amount Outstanding. 12,662,233 shares of Common Stock were 
outstanding (exclusive of any amount held in the treasury) and no shares of 
Preferred Stock were outstanding. 

(d) Amount Held as Reacauired Securities. 106,739 shares of Common Stock 
were reacquired by NUL 

(e) Amount Pledged. No shares of Common Stock have been pledged by NU1 
or  City Gas. 

(f) Amount Owned bv Affiliated Corporations. No shares of Common Stock 
were owned by affiliated corporations. 

(g) Amount Held in Anv Fund. No shares of Common Stock were held in any 
fund. 

Funded Debt. Each item below is as of June 30,1998. 

(a), (b), and (c) h g :  

(i) 8.35% Medium-Term Notes, Series A, due February 1, 2005; 
$50,000,000 outstanding; 

(ii) 7.125% Medium-Term Notes, Series A, due August 1, 2002; 
$20,000,000 outstanding; 

(iii) 6.40% Brevard County Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, due 
October 1,2024; $20,000,000 outstanding; 

(iv)New Jersey Economic Development Authority Bonds, 5.70% due 
October 1,1998, $54,600,000 outstanding; 6.35% due October 1,2022, 
$46,500,000 outstanding; Variable Rate due June 1,2026, $39,000,000 
outstanding. 

(d) -.None. 



(e) Amount Pledged. None. 

(0 Amount Owned bv Affiliated Corporations. None. 

(8) Amount Held in Anv Fund. NU1 has deposited in trust the unexpended 
portion of the net proceeds from the 6.40% Brevard County Industrial 
Development Revenue bonds, until drawn upon for eligible expenditures. As of 
June 30, 1998, the total unexpended portion held in trust, including interest 
thereon, was $12,525,203. 

5. p. 

(a), (b) 

Funded Debt. NUI may issue short-term notes in an amount up to $110,000 and 

may issue long-term notes in an amount up to $40,000,000 if market conditions 

and interest rates are favorable. The long-term indebtedness will consist of 

long-term notes issued to the New Jersey Economic Development Authority. 

(c) Dividend and/or Interest Ratek). 

Funded Debt. Based upon the rates applicable to comparable securities in the 

current market, NU1 estimates that the interest rates on the short-term debt will 

be between 6% and 6.5% and the interest rate long-term indebtedness will be 

approximately 5.5%. The actual interest rates on the securities will be 

determined by the market conditions at the time the securities are issued and 

sold. 

6. 

Funded Debt. Short-term Debt: During periods in which interest rates on 

short-term indebtedness are favorable relative to the cost of alternative sources 



of capital, NU1 finances on a short-term basis to take advantage of the 

temporary opportunity presented by such lower interest rates to, in turn, lower 

its cost of service for the benefit of its ratepayers. NU1 seeks authority to exceed 

the 5% statutory threshold of section 366.04(1), Florida Statutes, if a short term 

financing strategy is advantageous for City Gas and its ratepayers. If given this 

authority, NUI would not exceed a 25% threshold without obtaining additional 

approval. Although City Gas has no specific construction plans formulated as 

of the date of this application, it has formulated a construction budget and the 

additional short-term indebtedness for which NU1 seeks authority would be 

used to finance portions of NUI’s construction programs, pending refinancing 

through the issuance of equity or long-term securities at a later date depending 

upon prevailing market conditions. Long-term Debt: The long-term 

indebtedness for which NU1 seeks authority would be used to finance portions 

of NUI’s construction programs outside of the State of Florida and proceeds 

would not be used within the State of Florida. 

I .  Facts cessi or A ro riateness 

Funded Debt. Proceeds from the issuance of debt for which NUL seeks authority 

herein will be used to enable NU1 to perform its obligation to manage and operate its 

utility businesses so as to continue to provide reliable and economical service to its 

customers in its rapidly growing service areas. The purposes for which NU1 seeks 

authority to issue the described securities are consistent with and will not impair the 



proper performance by City Gas as a public utility. The issuance of the securities 

described is for a lawful object within the corporate purposes of the applicant, and is 

reasonable, necessary, and appropriate to provide reliable and economic service to its 

customers in its rapidly growing service area. 

8. The names and addresses of counsel who will pass upon the legality of the 

proposed issues are: 

Regulatory Counsel: General Counsel: 

Daniel D. Richardson, Esq. James Van Horn 
LeBoeuf, Lamb, Greene & MacRae, L.L.P. NU1 Corporation 
50 N. Laura Street 550 Route 202-206 
Suite 2800 P.O. Box 760 
Jacksonville, FL 32202 Bedminster, N J  07921-0760 

9. A Registration Statement with respect to each public sale of securities 

described hereunder which is subject to and not exempt from the registration 

requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, will be filed with the Securities 

and Exchange Commission, 450 Fifth Street N.W., Washington D.C. 20549. 

10. There is no measure of control or  ownership exercised by or  over NU1 

as to any other public utility. NU1 is not a member of any holding company system. 

The following exhibits required by Rule 25-8.003, Florida Administrative Code 

are attached: 

Exhibit A: Financial statements of NU1 (Form 10K for the Fiscal Year 
Ended September 30,1997 and form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended 
December 31,1997, March 31,1998, and June 30,1998) 



Exhibit B-1: Estimated Projected Sources and Uses of Funds for NU1 for the 
Twelve Months Ended September 30,1999. 

Exhibit B-2: Estimated Construction Spending for City Gas Company of 
Florida for the Twelve Months Ended September 30,1999. 

WHEREFORE, City Gas Company of Florida, a Division of NU1 Corporation, 

requests the Commission to enter an Order authorizing NU1 to issue and sell short- 

term debt in an amount not to exceed $110,000 and long-term debt in an amount not 

to exceed $40 million, during the period September 30,1998 - September 30,1999. To 

facilitate the ability of NUI to position itself to take advantage of favorable conditions 

in the capital markets, NU1 respectfully asks the Commission to expedite its 

consideration of this application. 

Daniel D. Richardson 
LeBoeuf, Lamb, Greene & MacRae, L.L.P. 
50 N. Laura Street, Suite 2800 
Jacksonville, FL 32202 
Tel. (904) 630-5342 
Fax (904) 353-1670 
Attorney for the Applicant 

JK2 138023 
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Commission File Number 1-8353 

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

New Jersey 

(State of incorporation) 

WASmGTON,  DC 20549 

FORM 10-K 

ark One) 

AL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR IS(d) OF THE SECURITIES 

XCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

or the fiscal year ended September 30,1997 

22-1869941 

(IRS employer idmtikicatmn no.) 

OR 

I 
550 Route 202-206, P. 0. Box 760, Bedminster, New Jersey 07921-0760 

(Address ofprincipal executive offices, including Zip code) 

(908) 781-0500 

(RegkKrant's telephone number. including area code) 

I 
Securities registered pursuant to Section I2@) of Ihe  An: 

itlc of Each Class: 

 on Stmk No Par Value 1" ew York Stock Exchange r 
fmrd Stock hrchau  Rim ew York Stock Exchange 

I 
Securities regiamd pumant to Section 12(& of the Act: None 

during the preceding I2 months ( or for such shorin pcriad that the registrant WJS required lo file such reports). and (2) h a  been subject to such filing 
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Item 1. Business 1 
Item 2. Properties 9 

9 
Item m 9  3. - 
,Ttem 4. Bubmission ofMatten to a Vote of Security Holders 

Page 2 of 47 

Item 6. belected Financial Data 1 1  

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 21 

13 
banagement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations 

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial 
Disclosure 

Item I. 

1 Item 9. 

lq"irumb far thc past 90 days: 

Indif.tc by cbod; d ifdirl- ofdclinquai f i l a  pura-I to ltnn 405 of Regulation S-K is not m&ed herein nnd will not bc m n U  to the 
bea oftho r e e k  knaulcdgc, in deftmilive pmxy or infarmMion ~ i m m t s  incmpakd by ref-- to Paul Ill of this Form IO-K or my uncndmcnt to 

thc Form IO-K. 

n* ag8regate d e t  valve of 11,049.105 sham of eomon stock held by non-al%liafs of the rcgistrvt dlculved using the $24.625 per share clonmg 
priccmNovember28,1997ws$272,084,2l1 

The n u d m  of shams ouManding for uch afthe rsgisuants EI- of c o m o n  slock as of November 28,1997: 

C o n "  Smk, No Par Value: 12.455.176 sham oumding. 

Dacumenb hmrpartcd by referen-: N U  Carporation's definitive Pmxy Stltrment for the Company's Annual Meeting of Stockholders, filed With the 

Securities nnd Exdun& CanmisSion on December 23,1997. 

Nu1 Corporation 

Annual Report on Form 10-K For The 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,1997 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

PART II 

tem 5.  Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters 110 1 

PART El 

tem IO Directors and Executive Oficers ofthe Repisunnt (21  I 
ptem 11. Executive Compensation pl I 
tem 12 ISecunh, Ownershtp of Cmam Beneficial Owners mrl Mnnngemsnt 121  
tem I3 kenam Relationships and Related Transactions kl 

PART lV 

I I I I 
http://www.nui.com/k97.htm 10/8/98 



k97 Page 3 of 47 

ptem 14. bxhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K 122 I 
NU1 Corporation 

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,1997 

PART I 

Item 1. Business 

NU1 Corporation ("NUI" or the 'Company") was incorporated in New Jersey in 1969. NU1 is a multi-state energy sales, 
services and distribution company. The Company's natural gas utility distribution operations serve approximately 362,000 
customers in six states through its Northem and Southem operating divisions. These operating divisions are regulated by the 
public utility commissions of the states in which it operates. The Northem Division operates in New Jersey as Elizabethtown 
Gas Company. The Southem Division operates in five states as City Gas Company of Florida, North Carolina Gas, Elkton 
Gas (Maryland), Valley Cities Gas (Fennsylvania) and Waverly Gas (New York). The Company also provides retail gas sales 
and related services through it's NUI Energy, Inc. subsidiary; wholesale energy brokerage and related services through its 
NU1 Energy Brokers, Inc. subsidiary; customer information systems and services through its Utility Business Services, Inc. 
subsidiary; environmental project development operations through its NU1 Environmental Group, Inc. subsidiary; and sales 
and marketing outsourcing through its 49% equity interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC (see Note 2 of the Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements). 

The principal executive offices of the Company are located at 550 Route 202-206, Box 760, Bedminster, NJ 07921-0760; 
telephone: (908) 781-0500. 

Territory and Customers Served 

See Item 6 - "Selected Financial Data-Summary Consolidated Operating Data" for summary information by customer class 
with respect to operating revenues, gas volumes sold or transported and average utility customers served. The Company's 
primary business is its utility operations which serve approximately 362,000 customers, of which approximately 67% are in 
New Jersey and 33% are in the Southem Division states. Most of the Company's utility customers are residential and 
commercial customers that purchase gas primarily for space beating. The Company's operating revenues for fiscal 1997 
amounted to approximately $609 million, of which approximately 52% was generated by utility operations in the Northem 
Division, 18% was generated by utility operations in the Southem Division states and 30% by the Company's unregulated 
activities. Gas volumes sold or transported in fiscal 1997 amounted to 148.2 million Mcf, of which approximately 46% was 
sold or transported in New Jersey, 12% was sold or transported in the Southem Division states and 42% represented 
unregulated sales. An Mcf is a basic unit of measurement for natural gas comprising 1,000 cubic feet of gas. 

Nalrrral Gas Ulilily Opa&ns 

Northern Division The Company. through its Northem Division. provides gas service to approximately 241,000 customers 
in franchised territories within seven counties in central and northwestem New Jersey. The Northem Division's 1,300 
square-mile service tenitory has a total population of approximately 950.000. Most of the Northem Division's customers are 
located in densely-populated central New Jersey, where increases in the number of customers are primarily kom conversions 
to gas heating from alternative forms of heating. 

The Northem Division's gas volumes sold or transported and customers served for the past three fiscal years were as follows: 

http://www.nui.com/k97.htm 10/8/98 
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htenuptible Sales 72 72 75 
Transportation Services 1.373 QQ - 130 
Total 241.314 a 
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'Fi sales: 
besidentiai 92,724 92,179 90,960 
(Commercial 4,706 4,629 4,615 - 

The Company's industrial customers also have the ability to switch to transportation service and purchase their gas 6om other 
suppliers. The rate charged to transportation customers is less than the rate charged to fm industrial and Commercial sales 
customers because the transportation customer rate does not include any cost of gas component. However, the operating 
margins fiom both rates are substantially the same. 

The Northern Division's "intmptible" customers have alternative energy sources and use gas on an "as available" basis. 
Variations in the volume of gas sold or transported to these customers do not have a significant effect on the Company's 
earnings because, in accordance with New Jersey regulatory requirements, 80% of the margins that otherwise would be 
realized on gas sold or transported to intmptible customers are used to reduce gas costs charged to firm sales customers 
This percentage was changed, effective May 12,1997 60m 90% of sales margins and 95% of transportation margins. 

The Company provides gas sales and transportation services comprising twenty percent of the primary fuel requirements of a 
6 14 megawatt cogeneration facility that began commercial operation in New Jersey in July I992 to supply electric power to 
New York City. In fiscal 1997, sales and transportation of gas to this customer accounted for approximately 8% of the 
Company's operating revenues and approximately 9% of total gas sold or transported. The Company was authorized by the 
NJBPU to retain a total of approximately $2.3 million of the operating margins realized from these sales. The Company 
reached this maximum during fiscal 1995 and, therefore, all margins realized from the sale of gas to this customer in fiscal 
1997 and 1996 were used to reduce gas costs charged to firm customers. 

In order to maximize the value of the Company's gas supply portfolio, in fiscal 1995 the Company began selling available gas 
supply and excess interstate pipeline capacity to other gas service companies and to customers located outside of the 
Company's service territories. The price of gas sold to these customers is not regulated by the NJBPU, however the NJBPU 
has authorized the Company to retain 20% of the margins realized 60m these sales. The remaining 80% of these margins is 
used to reduce gas costs charged to fum customers. 

Southern Division 

Ciry Gas Company ofFlorida rCGF"). CGF is the second largest natural gas utility in Florida, supplying gas to over 97,000 
customers in Dade and Broward Counties in south Florida, and in Brevard, Indian River and St. Lucie Counties in central 
Florida. CGF's service areas cover approximately 3,000 square miles and have a population of approximately 1.7 million. 

CGF's gas volumes sold or transported and customers served for the past three fiscal years were as follows: 

Intermptible Sales 16 19 20' 
Transportation Services - 51 - 
Total w 

36 - 24 . 

I I I 

Utili- Customers Served (twelve-month average) 

I I 19971 - 1996 I - 1995 

http://www.nui.com/k97.htm 10/8/98 
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CGF's residential customers purchase gas primarily for water heating, clothes drying and cooking. Some customers, 
principally in central Florida, also purchase gas to provide space heating during the relatively mild winter senson. 
Year-to-year powth in the average number of residential customers primarily reflects new construction. The rate of 
residential market growlh was lower in fiscal 1997 as compared with fiscal 1996, as build-out commitments h m  prior year 
expansions in the south Florida service areas were concluded. Through the application of selective investment feasibility 
standards, CGF is focusing its principal new residential growth efforts in its central Florida markets. The volume from the 
residential market in fiscal 1996 benefited fiom cooler weather than experienced in fiscal 1997 and in fiscal 1995. Effective 
in April 1997, CGF increased the rates it charges residential customers under its appliance leasing programs, generating 
approximately $15O,OOO per month in additional unregulated margins. 

CGF's commercial business consists primarily of schools, businesses and public facilities, of which the number of customers 
tends to increase concurrently with the continuing growth in population within its service areas. As with its residential 
markets, the Company is seeking to maximize the utilization of its existing mains by emphasizing marketing efforts toward 
potential commercial business along these lines. 

CGF's industrial customers and certain commercial customers, are served under tariffs applicable to "interruptible" 
customers. Unlike the Company's Northern Division, CGF's interruptible customers do not generally have altemative energy 
sources, although their service is on an "as available" basis. The Company retains all of the operating margins kom sales to 
these customers. 

Certain commercial and industrial customers have converted their natural gas service from a sales basis to a transportation 
basis. CGF's transportation tariff provides margins on transportation services that are substantially the same as margins 
earned on gas sales. In November 1997, the Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) approved CGF's proposal to offer 
unbundled gas service to certain small commercial customers, in a manner similar to that currently in place in the Company's 
New Jersey service territory. 

During fiscal 1996, the Company began selling available gas supply and excess interstate pipeline capacity to other gas 
Service companies and to customers located outside of the Company's service territories. The price of gas sold to these 
customers is not regulated by the FPSC; however, the FPSC has ordered that 50% of the margins realized from these sales be 
used to reduce gas costs charged to fm customers. 

North Carolina Gas Service ("NCGS'). The Company, through NCGS, provides gas service to approximately 13,400 
customers in Rockingham and Stokes Counties in North Carolina, which territories comprise approximately 560 square 
miles. During fiscal 1997, NCGS sold or transported approximately 4.3 million Mcf of gas as follows: 20% sold to 
residential customers, 1 1% sold to commercial customers, 30% sold to industrial customers on system, 16% sold to industrial 
customers through unregulated off-system sales, and 23% transported to commercial and industrial customers. The North 
Carolina Public Utilities Commission has ordered that 75% of margins realized from off-system sales be used to reduce gas 
costs charged to fm customers. 

Elkton Gas Service ("Elkton'y. The Company, through Elkton, provides gas service to approximately 3,500 customers in 
franchised territories comprising approximately 14 square miles within Cecil County, Maryland. During fiscal 1997, EMon 
sold approximately 660,000 Mcf of gas as follows: 30% sold to residential customers, 28% sold to commercial customers 
and 42% sold to industrial customers. 

Valley Cities Gas Service ("VCGY) and Waverly Gas Service ("WGS'). VCGS and WGS provide gas service to 
approximately 6,100 customers in franchised territories comprising 104 square miles withii Bradford County, Pennsylvania 
and the Village of Waverly, New York and surrounding areas, respectively. During fiscal 1997, VCGS and WGS sold or 
transported approximately 3.9 million Mcf of gas as follows: 15% sold to residential customers, 8% sold to commercial 
customers, 5% sold to industrial customers on system, 8% sold to industrial customers through unregulated sales off-system 
and 64% transported to commercial and industrial customers. 

Ger Supply sod Operations 

In recent years, the gas indusby has been undergoing structural changes in response to policies of the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC) and local regulatory commissions designed to increase competition. Traditionally, interstate 
pipelines were wholesalers of natural gas to local distribution companies and generally did not provide separate 
transportation or other services for specific customers. In 1992, the FERC issued Order No. 636 that, among other things, 
mandated the separation or "unbundling" of interstate pipeline sales, transportation and storage services and established 

http://www. nui. comJk97. htm 10/8/98 
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guidelines for capacity management effective in 1993. In fiscal 1995, the NJBPU unbundled the services provided and the 
rates charged to New Jersey commercial and small industrial customers as well. The transition to more competitive rates and 
senices bas the effect of increasing the opportunity for local gas distribution companies, and industrial and commercial 
customers to purchase natural gas from alternative sources, while increasing the potential business and regulatory risk bome 
by a local gas distribution company with respect to the acquisition and management of natural gas services. 

The Company endeavors to utilize its pipeline capacity efficiently by matching capacity to its load profile to the extent 
feasible. To this end, the Company has had a broad unbundled service tarifffor certain of its customers since 1987. The 
Company continues to avail itselfof opportunities to improve the utilization of its pipeline capacity by pursuing broad based 
customer growth, including off-peak markets and utilizing capacity release and off-system sales opportunities afforded by 
Order No. 636 when operationally feasible. 

The Company's gas supply during fiscal 1997 came from the following sources: approximately 18% from purchases under 
contracts with primary pipeline suppliers and additional purchases under their filed tariffs: approximately 82% from 
purchases h m  various producers and gas marketers, and purchases under long-term contracts with independent producers 
and less than I% ftom propane and liquefied natural gas ("LNG"). The Company manages its gas supply portfolio to assure a 
diverse, reliable and secure supply of natural gas at the lowest reasonable cost. In fiscal 1997, the Company's largest single 
supplier Bccounted for 11% of the Company's total gas purchases. 

The Company has long-term gas delivery contracts with seven interstate pipeline companies. Under these contracts, the 
Company has a right to delivery, on a linn year-round basis, of up to 92.2 million Mcf of natural gas annually with a 
m a x i "  of approximately 273,000 Mcf per day. Both the price and conditions of service under these contracts are 
regulates by the FERC. 

The Company has long-term gas purchase contracts for the supply of natural gas for its system with eight suppliers, including 
two interstate pipeline companies, three gas marketers and three independent producers. The Company also has a long-term 
supply and delivery contract with an interstate pipeline. Under these contracts, the Company has a right to purchase, on a f m  
year-round basis, up to 37.9 million Mcf of natural gas annually with a maximum of approximately 101,170 Mcf per day. In 
order to achieve greater supply flexibility, and to more closely match its gas supply portfolio to changes in the market it 
serves, the Company recently allowed a long-term gas supply contract to expire at the conclusion of its primary terms. As a 
result, the Company has reduced its fixed gas cost obligations. The Company has replaced the supply with both spot market 
gas and shorter-term, seasonal firm supply, thus reducing the average term of its long-term obligations. In addition, the 
Company has access to spot market gas through the interstate pipeline system to supplement or replace, on a short-term 
basis, portions of its long-term gas purchase contracts when such actions can reduce overall gas costs or are necessary to 
supply intermptible customers In fiscal 1995, the Company, along with seven other Northeastem and Mid-Atlantic gas 
dishibution companies, formed the East Coast Natural Gas Cooperative LLC (the "Co-op"). The Co-op was formed with the 
goal ofjointly managing certain portions of the members' gas supply portfolios, to increase reliability and reduce costs of 
service to customers, and to improve the competitive position of the member companies. Participation in and reliance upon 
certain contractual arrangements among Co-op members has allowed the Company to reduce costs associated with winter 
services. 

In order to have available sufficient quantities of gas during the heating season, the Company stores gas during non-peak 
periods and purchases supplemental gas, including propane, LNG and gas available under contracts with certain large 
cogeneration customers, as it deems necessary. The storage contracts provide the Company with an aggregate of 15.4 million 
Mcf of natural gas storage capacity and provide the Company with the right to receive a maximum daily quantity of 176,100 
Mcf. The contracts with cogeneration customers provide 35,800 Mcf of daily gas supply to meet peak loads by allowing the 
Company to take back capacity and supply that otherwise is dedicated to serve those customers. 

The Company's peak load facilities in New Jersey include a propane-air plant with a daily production capacity of 27,400 Mcf, 
fixed propane storage totaling 674,000 gallons and rail car sidings capable of storing an additional 300,000 gallons. The 
Company has an LNG storage and vaporization facility with a daily delivety capacity of 24,300 Mcf and storage capacity of 
13 1,000 Mcf. 

The Company's maximum daily sendout in fiscal I997 was approximately 368,37 1 Mcf in its Northern Division and 87.7 17 
Mcf in the Southem Division states combined. The Company maintains sufficient gas supply and delivery capacity for a 
m a x i "  daily sendout capacity for the Northern Division of approximately 398,643 Mcf and approximately I 19,800 Mcf 
for the Southem Division states combined. 

Certain of the Company's long-term contracts for the supply, storage and delivery of natural gas include fixed charges that 
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amount to approximately $71 million annually. The Company currently recovers, and expects to continue to recover, such 
fixed charges through its purchased gas adjustment clauses. The Company also is committed to purchase, at market-related 
prices, minimum quantities of gas that, in the aggregate, are approximately IO billion cubic feet per year or to pay certain 
costs in the event the minimum quantities are not taken. The Company expects that minimum demand on its systems for the 
duration of these contracts will continue to exceed these minimum purchase obligations. In certain of these contracts, the 
Company has recently negotiated terms with its suppliers which will allow the Company to reduce its commitment to its 
suppliers in connection with changes in the Company's markets that may result from further unbundling initiatives. 

The Company distributes gas through approximately 6,000 miles of steel, cast iron and plastic mains. The Company has 
physical interconnections with five interstate pipelines in New Jersey and one interstate pipeline in Florida. In addition, the 
Company has physical interconnections in North Carolina and Pennsylvania with interstate pipelines which also connect to 
the Notthem Division. Common interstate pipelines along the Company's operating system provide the Company with 
greater flexibility in managing pipeline capacity and supply, and thereby optimizing system utilization. 

Regulation 

The Company is subject to regulation with respect to, among other matters. rates, service, accounting and the issuance of 
securities. The Company is subject to regulation as an operating utility by the public utility commissions of the states in which 
it operates. The Company is also subject to regulation by the United States Department of Transportation under the Natural 
Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968, with respect to the design, installation, testing, construction and maintenance of pipeline 
facilities. Natural gas purchases, transportation service and storage service provided to the Company by interstate pipelme 
companies are subject to regulation by the FERC (see "-Gas Supply and Operations"). In addition, the Company is subject to 
federal and state legislation with respect to water, air quality, solid waste disposal and employee health and safety matters, 
and to environmental regulations issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency, the New Jersey Department 
of Environmental Protection and other federal and state agencies. 

The Company's current rates and tariffs for its Northem Division reflect a rate case that was settled in October 1991, under 
which the Company obtained a weather normalization clause ~ see "Northem Division". In December 1994, the NJBPU 
authorized new tariffs which are designed to provide for unbundling of natural gas transportation and sales services for 
Northem Division commercial and industrial customers. The new tariffs became effective on January I ,  1995 and are 
designed to be neutral as to the operating margins of the Company. 

The current rates and tariffs for the Florida operations were authorized on October 29, 1996. The FPSC voted to authorize 
the Company to increase its base rates in Florida by $3.75 million annually. The rate increase reflected a rate base amounting 
to $91.9 million, which includes the addition of investments in system improvements and expansion projects. Under the 
approval, the allowed retum on equity is 1 I .3% with an overall after-tax rate of retum of 7.87%. The increase became 
effective on November 28, 1996. The FPSC order also gives the Company the flexibility to negotiate rates with certain 
business customers that have access to other energy sources. 

The current rates and tariffs for the North Carolina, Maryland, Pennsylvania and New York operations were authorized 
between October 1988 and September 1995. These operations serve approximately 20,000 customers in aggregate. The 
tariff for NCGS reflects a weather normalization clause for its temperature sensitive residential and commercial customers. 

The Company's tariffs for each state in which it operates contain adjustment clauses that enable the Company to recover 
purchased gas costs. The adjustment clauses provide for periodic reconciliations of actual recoverable gas costs with the 
estimated amounts that have been billed. Under or over recoveries at the reconciliation date are recovered from or refunded 
to customers in subsequent periods. 

Seasonal Aspects 

Sales of gas to some classes of customers are affected by variations in demand due to changes in weather conditions. 
including normal seasonal variations throughout the year. The demand for gas for heating purposes is closely related to the 
severity of the winter heating season. Seasonal variations affect short-term cash requirements. 

Unregulated Opercrtions 

NU1 Energy, Inc. energy) was formed by the Company in fiscal 1995 to market gas service to unbundled retail commercial 
and industrial customers. Energy's operating margins have increased to $2.4 million in fiscal 1997 as compared with $1. I 
million in fiscal 1996 and $0.3 million in fiscal 1995, reflecting the Company's growth efforts. However, expenses related to 
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this start-up operation has resulted in net losses in all three fiscal years. It is expected that Energy will be profitable in fiscal 
1998, as the Company will continue to take advantage of opportunities that exist in the deregulated market. 

NUI Energy Brokers, Inc. (Energy Brokers) was formed by the Company in fiscal I996 to provide wholesale energy trading 
and related services, primarily to other utilities and energy marketing companies. Energy Brokers generated margins of $3.6 
million in fiscal 1997 as compared with $ I  .6 million in fiscal 1996. Energy Brokers minimizes its risks in this business by 
limiting its financial and physical positions at any one time. As in any commodity brokerage activity, however, there are risks 
pertaining to market changes and credit exposure that can be managed but not eliminated. Therefore, the eamings h m  
Energy Brokers are likely to be more volatile than the Company's utility distribution business. 

Utility Business Services, Inc. ( U B S )  provides billing and customer information systems and services to investor-owned and 
municipal utilities as well as third-party energy providers. WINS, the premiere account management product developed and 
maintained by UBS, is presently serving almost 20 clients with state-of-the-iut computing capab 
600,000 customers. In addition to generating over 3 million bills each year, UBS assists clients in allied areas, such as 
automatic meter reading payment processing, and account recovery. 

NU1 Environmental Group, Inc. (NU1 Environmental) was formed by the Company in fiscal 1996 to develop a solution to the 
rapidly decreasing accessibility of the New YorkNew Jersey Harbor to international commercial shipping tr&k To this 
end, NUI Environmental plans to jointly develop a permanent sediment processing facility to decontaminate and process the 
dredged sediment, thereby providing environmentally safe disposal or beneficial reuse of the material. Towards this effort, 
NUI Environmental has signed a Memorandum of Understanding with the Department of EnergyBrookhaven National 
Laboratories, which is leading the decontamination effort on behalf of a Federal consortium of the Environmental Protection 
Agency, Army Corps. of Engineers and Department of Energy which are working towards a solution to the dredging 
problem. It is expected that NUI Environmental will receive public financing to design, constmct and operate the facility in 
parbxrship with governmental or public entities. It is anticipated that phase one operations could begin in late fiscal 1998. 

On May 18, 1997, the Company closed on its acquisition of a 49% interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC (TIC), a newly formed 
l i t e d  liability company, for a purchase price of $22 million. The acquisition was effective as of January I ,  1997 and is 
being accounted for under the equity method. TIC engages in the business of recruiting, training and managing sales 
professionals and serving as sales and marketing representatives for various businesses, including the Company's subsidiary, 
Energy (see Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Persons Employed 

As of September 30, 1997, the Company employed I ,  I26 persons, of which 29 I employees in the Northern Division were 
represented hy the Utility Workers Union of America (Local 424). 73 employees in Florida and 17 employees in 
Pennsylvania were represented by The Teamsters Union, and 44 employees in North Carolina were represented by the 
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers. The cument collective bargai~~img agreement with the Northern Division's 
union was negotiated effective November 20, I994 and expires on November 20, 1998. The North Carolina union collective 
bargaining agreement was negotiated on August 20, 1995, and expires on August 20, 1998. The collective bargaining 
agreement in Pennsylvania was negotiated on November 30, 1997 and expires on September 30, 1999. The collective 
bargaining agreement in Florida expires on March 3 I ,  1998. 

Competition 

The Company competes with distributors of other fuels and forms of energy, including electricity, fuel oil and propane, in all 
portions of the territories in which it has distribution mains. In addition, in 1992, the FERC issued Order No. 636 (see "Gas 
Supply and Operations"). Subsequently, initiatives were sponsored in various states, the purposes of which were to 
"unbundle" or separate into distinct transactions. the purchase of the gas commodity &om the purchase of transportation 
services for the gas. To that end, as discussed under "Regulation", New Jersey has unbundled commercial and industrial gas 
purchase and transportation rates. 

The unbundled sale of gas to customers is subject to competition from unregulated marketers and brokers, which generally do 
not bear the obligations or costs related to operating a regulated utility, Tariffs for transportation service have generally been 
designed to provide the same margins as bundled sales tariffs. Therefore, except for the regulatory risk of full recovery of gas 
costs, the Company is financially inditferent as to whether it  transports gas, or sells gas and transportation together. The 
Company also faces the risk of loss of transportation service for large industrial customers which may have the ability to build 
connections to interstate gas pipelines and bypass the Company's distribution system. Gas distributors can also expect 
increased competition from electricity as deregulation in that industry decreases prices and increases supply sources. 

es in support of almost 
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Alternatively, opportunities may increase for gas service to fuel generators for large industrial customers, replacing electric 
utility service. 

The Company believes that in order to compete effectively, it must offer a greater variety of services at competitive prices. 
See Item 7 - "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Competition and 
Outlook for a discussion of the Company's preparation for the impact of increased competition. 

Francbiaes 

The Company holds non-exclusive municipal 6anchises and other consents which enable it to provide natural gas in the 
tenitories it serves. The Company intends to seek to renew these 6anchises and consents as they expire. 

Environment 

Reference is made to Item 7- "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations- 
Capital Expenditures and Commitments" and Note I I ,  "Commitments and Contingencies" of the "Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements" for information regarding environmental matters affecting the Company. 

Year 2000 

Many existing computer programs use only two digits to identify a year in the date field. These programs were designed and 
developed without considering the impact of the upcoming change in the century. Ifnot corrected, many computer 
applications could fail or create erroneous results by or at the Year 2000. The Company has undertaken a systems readiness 
program which is designed to mitigate the risks associated with the Year 2000 issue. This program involves an analysis of 
systems to determine those that are not presently Year 2000 compliant, the establishment of a plan to either m c d ~  or replace 
those systems and the modification and procurement of systems to make them Year 2000 compliant. Although the Company 
is endeavoring to ensure that the year 2000 readiness program is comprehensive, it can make no assurance that the program 
will address all Year ZOO0 compliance issues in a timely manner. The Company identified, replaced and mcdifed many of 
these systems during fiscal year 1997 and cwently estimates that its remaining cost of the Year 2000 systems readiness 
program will be approximately $2 million, of which approximately $0.7 million is anticipated to be spent in fiscal 1998. 

Item 2. Properties 

The Company owns approximately 6,000 mile of steel, cast iron and plastic gas mains, together with gate stations, meters and 
other gas equipment. In addition, the Company owns peak shaving plants, including an LNG storage facility in Elizabeth, 
New Jersey. 

The Company also owns real property in Union, Middlesex, Warren, Sussex and Hunterdon counties in New Jersey. and in 
Dade, Broward, Brevard and St. Lucie counties in Florida, portions of which are under lease to others. The Company's owned 
properties include a general ofice building in Hialeah, Florida, that serves as the Southem Division's headquarters; another 
office facility in Rockledge, Florida; and ofice buildings in both Reidmille, North Carolina and Sayre, Pennsylvania, which 
serve as operating offices for the North Carolina and the Pennsylvania and New York operations, respectively. The Company 
also owns various service centers in New Jersey, Florida, North Carolina, Maqland and Pennsylvania 6om which the 
Company dispatches service crews and conducts construction and maintenance activities. 

The Company leases office space in Bedminster. New Jersey, that serves as its corporate headquarters and leases certain 

also leases approximately 160,000 square feet in an ofice building in Union, New Jersey, which serves as the Northem 
Division's headquarters. 

Subject to minor exceptions and encumbrances, all other property materially important to the Company and all principal 
plants are owned in fee simple, except that most of the mains and pipes are installed in public streets under 6anchise or 
statutory rights or are constructed on rights of way acquired 60m the apparent owner of the fee. 

Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

The Company is involved in various claims and litigation incidental to its business. In the opinion of management, none of 
these claims and litigation will have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of operations or its financial condition. 

Item 4. Submission of Matten to a Vote of Security Holders 

es in New Jersey and Florida that are operated as customer business ofices or operating ofices. The Company 
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Quarterly Cash 
Dividend 

Price Ranee 

I - LOW 

5Zi997: 
First QuartR $0.235 $23.500 $18.875 
Second Quarter 0.235 23.625 19.250 

Fourth Ouarter 0.235 24.8 I3 19.750 
Third Quarter 0.235 22.500 19.000 

0.225 16.750 

There were 6,768 shareholders of record of NU1 common stock at November 28, 1997. 

It is the Company's intent to continue to pay quarterly dividends in the foreseeable future. N U T S  dividend policy is reviewed 
on an ongoing basis and is dependent upon the Company's expectation of future eamings, cash flow, financial condition, 
capital requirements and other factors. On November 6, 1997, the Company increased its quarterly dividend to $0.245 per 
share of common stock. The previous quarterly rate was $0.235 per share of common stock. 

The Company's long-term debt agreements include, among other things, restrictions as to the payment of cash dividends. 
Under the most restrictive of these provisions, the Company is permitted to pay $37 million of cash dividends at September 
30, 1997. 

Item 6. Selected Financial Data 

Selected Consolidated Financial Data 

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 
I I I I I 
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Long-Term Debt $229.069 $230,100 $222,060 $160.928 $142,090 

$2 18.29 I $179, IO7 $140,912 $142,768 $1 22,384 Common 
Shareholders' Equity 

12,429 11,086 9,201 9, I57 8.20 1 Common Shares 
Outstanding 

$0.94 $0.90 $0.90' $1.60 $1.59 3ividends Paid Per 
Share 

Total Assets $803,665 $677,662 $610,165 $60 1,648 $483,911 
Car 

Summary Consolidated Operating Data 

I I 
Fiscal Yean  Ended Sentember 30, 

1994 - 1993 - 1997 - 1996 1995 - 
Operating Revenues (Dollars in 
thousands) 
'Firm Sales: 

besidential $201,757 $194,332 $173,395 $191,297 $172,749 
bommercial 106,234 107,067 98,541 110,574 97,966 
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verage Utility Customers 

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

The following discussion and analysis refers to NU1 Corporation and all of its operating divisions and subsidiaries 
(collectively r e f d  to as the "Company"). The Company is a multi-state energy sales, services and distribution company. Ifs 
natural gas utility operations distribute natural gas and provide related customer services in six states through its Northem 
and Southem utility divisions. The Northem Division operates in New Jersey as Elizabethtown Gas Company. The Southm 
Division operates in five states as City Gas Company ofFlorida, North Carolina Gas, Elkton Gas (Maryland), Valley Cities 
Gas (Pennsylvania) and Waverly Gas (New York). The Company also provides retail gas sales and related services through 
its NUI Energy, Inc. subsidiary ('Energy"); wholesale energy brokerage and related services through its N U  Energy Brokers, 
Inc. subsidiary ("Energy Brokers"), customer information systems and services through its Utility Business Services, Inc. 
subsidiary; and sales and marketing outsourcing through its 49% equity interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC ("TIC") (see Note 2 
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Results of Operations 

Fiscal Years Ended September30, 1997 and 1996 

Net Income. Net income for fiscal I997 was $19.6 million, or $1.75 per share, as compared with net income of $1 4.9 
million, or $1.52 per share in fiscal 1996. The increase in the current year was primarily due to higher operating margins and 
other income, partially offset by higher operations and maintenance, depreciation, general taxes and interest expenses. 

Net income per share in the c w e n t  year was also affected by the increased average number of outstanding shares of common 
stock over the prior year, principally reflecting the full effect of the Company's issuance of I .8 million additional shares in 
May 1996 (see "Financing Activities and Resources-Common Stock"). 

Operating Revenues and Operating Margins. The Company's operating revenues include amounts billed for the cost of 
purchased gas pursuant to purchased gas adjustment clauses. Such clauses enable the Company to pass through to its utility 
customers, via periodic adjustments to customers' bills, increased or decreased costs incurred by the Company for purchased 
gas without atfecing operating margins. Since the Company's utility operations do not e m  a profit on the sale of the gas 
commodity, the Company's level of operating revenues is not necessarily indicative of fmancial performance. The Company's 
operating revenues increased by $139.1 million, or 30%, in fiscal 1997 as compared with fiscal 1996. The increase was 
principally due to approximately $122 million of additional revenues generated by the Company's unregulated operations, the 
effect of purchased gas adjustment clauses, a base rate increase in the Company's Florida service territory, increased 
customer service and appliance leasing revenues, and customer growth (see "Regulatory Matters"). These increases were 
partially offset by the effect of warmer weather, mainly in New Jersey wbere it was 1 1% warmer than the prior year and 4% 
warmer than normal. 
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The Company has taken advantage of the opportunities brought on by deregulation of the natural gas industry and realized 
substantial growth in these unregulated activities in fiscal 1997. The Company's unregulated operations include its Energy 
and Energy Brokers subsidiaries, as well as sales of natural gas by the Company's utility operations to customers outside of its 
franchise service territories. While the prices charged for these utility off-system sales are not regulated, margins realized are 
shared with customers of the utility operations as follows: New Jersey- 80%. Florida- 50% and North Carolina- 75%. The 
Company's other utility operations do not currently have margin sharing arrangements and therefore any off-system sales are 
retuned 100% to customers. 

The Company's operating margins increased by $8.3 million, or 5%. in fiscal 1997 as compared with fiscal 1996. The 
increase reflects approximately $3.6 million of additional margins generated by the Company's utility distribution operations, 
approximately $3. I million of additional margins on sales by the Company's unregulated operations and approximately $1.6 
million of additional customer service and appliance leasing revenues. The increase in utility distribution margins was mainly 
due to the effect of the rate case in Florida and customer growth, partially offset by the effect of warmer weather in the fiscal 
1997 period in all of the Company's service territories, part of which was not fully recovered &om customers under weather 
normalization clauses, and lower amounts billed to certain of the Company's Florida customers for its energy conservation 
program. The Company is allowed to pass through to its customers costs incurred for various energy conservation programs. 
The Company does not e m  a profit on these billings as operations expense is charged or credited for any daerence between 
amounts billed to customers and amounts actually incurred. The Company has weather normalization clauses in its New 
Jersey and North Carolina tariffs, which are designed to help stabilize the Company's results by increasing amounts charged 
to customers when weather has been warmer than normal and by decreasing amounts charged when weather has been colder 
than normal. As a result of weather normalization clauses, operating margins were approximately $2.0 million higher in fiscal 
1997 than they would have been without such clauses. In fiscal 1996, operating margins were $2.2 million less than they 
would have been without such clauses. 

Other Operating Expenses. Operations and maintenance expenses increased by approximately $0.9 million, or I%, in 
fiscal 1997 as compared with fiscal 1996. The increase was primarily the result of additional expenses related to the growth 
in the Company's unregulated operations and expenses resulting kom the consolidation of two of the CO~IIPMY'S New Jersey 
service facilities. These increases were partially offset by the capitalization of costs associated with the development and 
implementation of new information technology, lower pension and insurance expenses, lower expenses charged for the 
Company's energy conservation programs in Florida and the reversal of certain reserves which management determined to be 
no longer required. 

Depreciation and amortization increased approximately $ 1.7 million over the prior year primarily due to additional plant in 
service. 

The increase in other taxes of approximately $0.8 million in fiscal I997 was mainly due to higher real estate, sales and 
payroll-related taxes. 

The increase in income taxes of approximately $ I  .5 million in fiscal 1997 was the result of higher pre-tax income. 

Other Income and (Expense), Net. Pre-tax other income and expense, net, increased approximately $2.6 million in fiscal 
1997 as compared with fiscal 1996. The increase was primarily due to approximately $1.3 million of net equity eamings in 
TIC for the period January I ,  1997 through September 30, 1997 (see Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements), the sale of certain marketable securities resulting in a realized gain of $0.7 million, and the sale of property in 
the Southern Division, which resulted in a gain of approximately $0.7 million. 

Interest Expense Interest expense increased by approximately $0.4 million in fiscal 1997 as compared with fiscal 1996. 
The increase was primarily due to an increase in short-term interest expense due to higher average borrowings, partially 
offset by lower average long-term borrowings as a result of the repayment of amounts outstanding under the Company's $30 
million credit agreetnent in May 1996. 

Fiscal Years EndedSeptember 30, 1996 and 1995 

Net Income Net income for fiscal 1996 was $14.9 million, or $ I .52 per share, as compared with net income of $5.5 million, 
or $0.60 per share in fiscal 1995. The increase in fiscal I996 was primarily due to higher operating margins and 
approximately $5.6 million of after-tax n o n - r e c h g  charges incurred in fiscal 1995. These increases were partially offset by 
higher operations and maintenance and depreciation expenses. 
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Net income per share in fiscal 1996 was also affected by the increased average number of outstanding shares of common 
stock Over the prior year, principally reflecting the Company's issuance of 1.8 million additional shares in May 1996 (see 
"Financing Activities and Resources-Common Stock). 

Operating Revenues and Operating Margins. The Company's operating revenues increased by $92.6 million, or 25%. in 
fiscal 1996 as compared with fiscal 1995. The increase principally reflects approximately $48 million of additional 
unregulated sales, the effect of weather in New Jersey that was 7% colder than normal and 23% colder than the prior year, 
and additional refunds to Northem Division Customers in fiscal 1995 totaling $1 I .2 million as a result of lower than projected 
gas prices. Operating revenues also increased as a result of increased revenues from interruptible and industrial customers 
primarily as a result of higher gas prices incurred, increased customer service revenues and customer growth. 

The Company's operating margins increased by $1 1 .O million, or 7%. in fiscal 1996 as compared with fiscal 1995. The 
increase principally reflects approximately $6. I million of additional margins generated by the Company's utility distribution 
operations, approximately $3.2 million of additional margins on sales by the Companies unregulated operations and 
approximately $1.7 million of additional customer service and appliance leasing revenues. The increase in utility distribution 
margins was mainly due to an increase in rates for Florida's energy conservation program, customer growth and the effect of 
colder-than-normal weather not fully returned to customers through the weather normalization clauses. As a result of these 
weather normalization clauses, operating margins were approximately $2.2 million less in fiscal 1996 than they would have 
been without such clauses. In fiscal 1995, operating margins were approximately $4.5 million higher than they otherwise 
would have been without such clauses. 

Other Operating Expenses. Operations and maintenance expenses increased approximately $3.4 million, or 4%. in fiscal 
1996 as compared with fiscal 1995. The increase was primarily due to costs incurred as a result of the colder weather in New 
Jersey during the fiscal 1996 heating season, higher expenses related to the start-up and growth of the Company's unregulated 
operations, and higher pension costs. Fiscal I995 results included non-recurring pre-tax charges of $8.6 million (see Note 3 
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased by approximately $1 .5 million primarily due to additional plant in service 

Income tax expense increased by approximately $4.9 million in fiscal 1996 as compared with fiscal 1995, primarily due to 
higher pre-tax income. 

Interest Expensc Interest expense decreased by approximately $0.2 million, or I %, in fiscal I996 as compared with fiscal 
1995. The decrease was primarily due to lower average short-term debt outstanding and short-term interest rates, and to 
approximately $0.6 million of interest recorded in the prior year on the over-collection of gas costs by the Northern Division. 
This decrease was partially offset by higher average long-term interest rates due to the effect of a full year's inclusion of $70 
million of Medium-Tem Notes that were issued in fiscal 1995. 

Regulatory Matters 

Northem Division 

On October 22, 1997, the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NJBPU) approved a petition filed by the Northern Division 
to revise its weather normalization clause to reflect an increase in the level of degree days used to determine margin revenue 
differences associated with variations between the actual degree days experienced in the months of October through April 
and the degree days that underlie the Company's base rates. The actual degree days are intended to adjust for a bias in 
weather data created by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Adrmnistration's installation of a device to measure 
temperature known as the automatic surface observing system. As a result of the NJBPU approval, the Company recognized 
an increase in its weather normalization margins of approximately $ I  .3 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal I997 to adjust 
for the effect of the bias in the new weather measuring device on margins recorded earlier in the fiscal year. 

In July 1997, the State ofNew Jersey enacted legislation that will eliminate the current gross receipts and franchise taxes 
effective January I ,  1998. These taxes will be replaced with a 6% sales tax on sales of electricity and natural gas, a corporate 
business tax currently paid by all non-utility corporations in the State, and a third tax called the Transitional Energy Facilities 
Assessment tax (TEFA). The legislation was intended, in part, to provide comparability between utilities that pay gross 
receipts and franchise taxes and non-utility energy companies that do not. A key objective of this legislation was to maintain 
energy tax revenue neutrality in 1998, seeking to collect approximately the same amount in new taxes as collected with gross 
receipts and franchise taxes in 1997. The TEFA tax is scheduled to be phased out at a rate of approximately 20% per year 
starting in 1999. These tax changes are designed to have no effect on the Company's net income or on overall rates charged to 
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customers, until the TEFA reductions occur, and will not have a material effect on working capital. The Company paid 
approXimately $25 million of gross receipts and ffanchise taxes to the State in 1997. 

On November 20,1997, the Northem Division amended its July 3 1, I997 proposal filed with the NJBPU to increase its 
annual p w h d  gas adjustment revenues by approximately $14.7 million and change the way it recovers gas supply costs 
Jkom its Merent classes of customers. The filing proposes to collect separately the commodity component of purchased gas 
and the fixed costs the Company incurs on behalf of its customers to supply gas service. The filing also includes a request to 
incorporate a performance based mechanism whereby Northem Division custoniers and the Company would benefit kom the 
Company's ability to secure gas at rates more favorable than a market index benchmark. The proposed mechanism would 
provide an SODO sharing, with Northem Division customers receiving the greater percentage of risk and o p p o d t y  on the 
difference between a monthly market benchmark and the actual cost of purchased gas. Action by the NJBPU on the 
Company's proposal is expected in 1998. 

On May 13,1997, the NJBPU approved an order (replacing an interim order dated December 4, 1996) authorizing the 
Northern Division to increase its annual purchased gas adjustment revenues by approximately $22 million. The increase was 
effective in December 1996 and reflects higher gas prices incurred in the current year. The increase in revenues does not 
affect the operating margins of the Company. 

Southern Division 

On October 29, 1996, the Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) voted to authorize the Company to increase its base 
rates in Florida by $3.75 million annually. The rate increase reflects a rate base amounting to $9 1.9 million, reflecting the 
addition of investments in system improvements and expansion projects. Under the approval, the allowed return on equity is 
11.3% with an overall after-tax rate of return of 7.9%. The Company had been granted interim rate relief of $2.2 million 
effective in September 1996. The permanent rate increase, which was effective in December 1996, includes the interim 
adjustment. 

Financing Activities and Resources 

The Company's net cash provided by operating activities was $40.5 million in fiscal 1997, $22.5 million in fiscal 1996, and 
$47.9 million in fiscal 1995. The increase in fiscal 1997 as compared with fiscal 1996 was primarily due to additional 
collections of gas costs through the Company's purchased gas adjustment clauses and the timing of payments to gas suppliers. 
The decrease in net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 1996 as compared with fiscal I995 principally reflects a 
higher level of accounts receivable primarily due to the colder weather and increased activity by the Company's unregulated 
businesses, and an under collection of gas costs through the Company's purchased gas adjustment clauses. 

Because the Company's primary business is highly seasonal, short-term debt is used to meet seasonal working capital 
requirements. The Company also borrows under its bank lines of credit to finance portions of its capital expenditures, 
pending refinancing through the issuance of equity or long-term indebtedness at a later date depending upon prevailing 
market conditions. 

Sbort-Term Debt. The weighted average daily amounts outstanding of notes payable to banks and the weighted average 
interest rates on those amounts were $66.0 million at 5.5% in fiscal 1997, $39.9 million at 5.6% in fiscal 1996 and $58.0 
million at 5.9% in fiscal 1995. The weighted average daily amounts of notes payable to banks increased in fiscal 1997 
principally due to borrowings to initially finance the Company's acquisition of a 49% interest in TIC (see "Common Stock"), 
and additional borrowings to finance portions of the Company's construction expenditures. The weighted average daily 
mounts of notes payable to banks decreased in fiscal I996 as compared with fiscal I995 primarily due to the full effect of 
the issuance of $70 million of Medium-Term Notes issued in fiscal 1995, which were used to repay short-term debt, and the 
issuance of an additional 1.8 million shares of common stock in fiscal 1996, of which part of the proceeds were used to repay 
short-term debt. These decreases were partially offset by borrowings to finance portions of the Company's construction 
expenditures. 

At September 30, 1997, the Company had outstanding notes payable to banks amounting to $54.4 million and available 
unused lines of credit amounting to $9 1.6 million. 

Long-Term Debt and Funds for Construction Held by Trustee. On July 9. 1997, the Company issued $54.6 million of 
tay exempt Gas Fac 
used to refmance previously issued Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amounts and rates of $46.2 
million at 6.75% and $8.4 million at 6.625% on October I ,  1997. The proceeds from the refunding bonds were invested in 

es Revenue Refunding Bonds at an interest rate of 5.7%. The bonds mature on June 1,2032 and were 
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temporary cash investments and were held in trust until the old bonds were called. 

Page 17 of 47 

In November 1994, the Company filed a shelfregistration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission for an 
aggregate of up to $100 million of debt and equity securities. As of September 30, 1997, the Company has issued $70 million 
ofMedium-Term Notes subject to the shelfregistration statement. While the Company has no present intention to issue 
additional securities subject to the shelfregistration, such securities may be issued from time to time, depending upon the 
Company's needs and prevailing market conditions. 

The Company deposits in trust the unexpended portion of the net proceeds from its Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds until drawn 
upon for eligible expenditures. As of September 30, 1997 and 1996, the total unexpended portions of all of the Company's 

consolidated balance sheet, including interest earned thereon, as funds for construction held by trustee. 

Common Stock. On September 25, 1997, the Company issued an additional 1 .O I 1.400 shares of NU1 common stock. The 
net proceeds h m  the offering totaled $22.6 million and were used to reduce outstanding short-term debt incurred to finance 
the Company's acquisition of a 49% interest in TIC and for other general corporate purposes. 

On May 20,1996, the Company issued an additional 1.8 million shares of NU1 common stock. The net proceeds fiom the 
offering totaled $3 1.1 million and were used to reduce outstanding debt. 

The Company periodically issues shares of common stock in connection with NU1 Direct, the Company's dividend 
reinvestment and stock purchase plan, and various employee benefit plans. The proceeds from such issuances amounted to 
approximately $5.7 million, $0.3 million and $ 1  .O million in fiscal 1997, I996 and 1995, respectively, and were used 
primarily to reduce outstanding short-term debt. The increase in proceeds received in fiscal I997 reflects that the plans 
commenced purchasing shares duectly h m  the Company in October 1996. Effective in December 1994, these plans 
commenced purchasing shares on the open market to fulfill the plans' requirements. Under the terms of these plans, the 
Company may periodically change the method of purchasing shares from open market purchases to purchases directly from 
the Company, or vice versa. 

Dividends. On November 6, 1997, the Company increased its quarterly dividend to $0.245 per share of common stock. The 
previous quarterly rate was $0.235 per share of common stock. 

The Company's long-tetm debt agreements include, among other things, restrictions as to the payment of cash dividends. 
Under the most restrictive of these provisions, the Company is permitted to pay approximately $37 million of cash dividends 
at September 30,1997. 

Capital Expenditures and Commitments 

Capital expenditures, which consist primarily of expenditures to expand and upgrade the Company's gas distribution systems, 
were $52.3 million in fiscal 1997, $37.1 million in fiscal 1996 and $37.9 million in fiscal 1995. The increase in fiscal 1997 
was primarily the result of planned capital investment related to providing gas or transportation service to new customers, 
which is mainly occurring in the Company's Southem Division, and to the Company's investment in new information 
technology designed to enhance productivity in the long term. The Company's capital expenditures are expected to be 
approximately $60 million in fiscal 1998. 

The Company owns or previously owned six former manufactured gas plant (MGP) sites in the Northem Division and ten 
MGP sites in the Southern Division. The Company, with the aid of environmental consultants, regularly assesses the potential 
future costs associated with conducting remedial actions. as well as the likelihood of whether such actions will be necessary. 
The Company records a reserve ifit is probable that a liability will be incurred and the amount of the liability is reasonably 
estimable. Based on the Company's most recent assessment, the Company has recorded a total reserve for environmental 
investigation and mediation costs of approximately $34 million, which the Company expects it will expend in the next 
twenty years to remediate the Company's MGP sites. Of this reserve, approximately $30 million relates to Northem Division 
MGP sites and approximately $4 million relates to Southern Division MGP sites. However, the Company believes that it is 
possible that costs associated with conducting investigative activities and implementing remedial actions, ifnecessary, with 
respect to all of its MGP sites may exceed the approximately $34 million reserve by an amount that could range up to $24 
million and be incurred during a future period of time that may range up to fifty years. Of this $24 million in possible future 
expenditures, approximately $12 million relates to the Northern Division MGP sites and approximately $12 million relates to 
the Southern Division MGP sites. As compared with the approximately $34 million reserve discussed above, the Company 
believes that it is less likely that this additional $24 million will be incurred and therefore has not recorded it on its hooks. 

es Revenue Bonds were $23.8 million and $42.6 million, respectively, and are classified on the Company's 
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The Compmy believes that all costs associated with the Northem Division MGP sites will be recoverable in rates or kom 
insurance carriers. The Company is able to recover actual MGP expenses over a rolling seven-year period through its MGP 
Remediation Adjustment Clause (RAC). The NJBPU approved the Company's initial RAC rate filing on April 2, 1997 at 
which time the Company began recovery of approximately $3.1 million, which represents environmental costs incurred kom 
inception through June 30,1996. On August 5,1997, the Company submitted a second RAC rate filing to the NJBPU to 
recover an additional $0.5 million in environmental costs incurred from July I ,  I996 through June 30, 1997. Approval by the 
NJBPU on this second RAC rate filing is expected in early 1998. With respect to costs which may be associated with the 
Southern Division MGP sites, the Company intends to pursue recovery &om ratepayers, former owners and operators of the 
sites and 6m insurance carriers. However, the Company is not able at this time to express a belief as to whether any or all of 
these recovery efforts related to the Southem Division MGP sites will ultimately be successful. For a further discussion of 
environmental matters see Note I 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Certain of the company's long-term contracts for the supply, storage and delivery of naNal gas include fixed charges that 
amount to approximately $71 million annually. The Company currently recovers, and expects to continue to recover, such 
fixed charges through its purchased gas adjustment clauses. The Company also is committed to purchase, at market-related 
prices, mini" quantities of gas that, in the aggregate, are approximately I O  billion cubic feet per year or to pay Certain 
cosU in the event the mini" quantities are not taken. The Company expects that mininium demand on its systems for the 
duration of these contracts will continue to exceed these minimum purchase obligations. 

The Company prepaid $54.6 million of its Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds in October 1997 with proceeds received from a new 
bond issuance (see "Financing Activities and Resources- Long-Term Debt and Funds for Construction Held by Trustee"). No 
other long-term debt is scheduled to be repaid over the next five years. 

Purchase of Interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC 

On May 18, 1997, the Company closed on its acquisition of a 49% interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC, a newly formed limited 
liability company, for a purchase price of $22 million. The acquisition was effective as of January I ,  1997 and is being 
accounted for under the equity method. Under the terms of an LLC Interest Purchase Agreement (the "Agreement"), the 
limited liability company will continue the business previously conducted by TIC Enterprises, Inc. The Agreement also 
includes a provision for an additional incentive payment up to a maximum of $5.2 million if TIC's calendar I997 earnings, 
before interest and taxes, exceed $5 million. As of September 30,1997, the Company has recorded a reserve of 
approximately $2.2 million for the additional incentive payment. In addition, NU1 bas the option, during the period beginning 
April I ,  2001 (subject to a one-year extension by the seller), to purchase the remaining 5 1% interest in TIC. 

TIC engages in the business of recruiting, training and managing sales professionals and serving as sales and marketing 
representatives for various businesses, including the Company's subsidiary, NU1 Energy, Inc. The excess of the purchase 
price over the Company's share of the underlying equity in net assets of TIC is estimated on a preliminary basis to be 
approximately $22 million, including the reserve for the additional incentive payment, and is being amortized on a straight 
line basis over a 15-year period. 

Competition and Outlook 

The Company believes that in order to successiklly compete in the deregulated energy markets, it must be able to provide 
customers with a broad array of energy and other products and services. In addition to the transportation and sale of gas, such 
energy products and services may include sales and management of electricity and other energy commodities, energy 
efticiency and information services, and new energy technology The Company may also offer additional non-energy products 
and services if such offerings are consistent with the Company's business plan. 

Not all of the products and services described above are currently provided by the Company. Therefore, the Company intends 
to acquire the skills and capab 
companies, hiring of experienced employees, and alliances, partnerships and joint ventures. All of such products and services 
would likely be offered through the coordinated marketing efforts of the Company. 

One vehicle the Company will use to offer products and services is the sales force of TIC Enterprises, LLC (see "Purchase of 
Interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC"). TIC's sales force of more than 400 sales representatives gives NU1 access to business 
customers across 40 states. Also, TIC has existing sales partnerships with several major companies, allowing NU1 to offer a 
wide range oftelecommunications services and ofice equipment in addition to energy. TIC will also be an asset to NU1 in the 
formation of partnerships with other energy companies q i n g  to find ways to gain access to customers and new products in 
the newly deregulated energy markets. 

es to provide some or all of them through various means, including acquisitions of 
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The Company's operations are organized under three primaq lines of business: Distribution Services, Energy Sales and 
Services, and Customer Services. The outlook for each is discussed below. 

Distribution Services 

Distribution Services is the core business of the Company, defmed as the distribution, or transportation, of energy to retail 
customers. Such distribution service is regulated as to price, safety and return by the regulatory commissions of the states in 
which the Company operates. 

The Company has substantial growth opportunities in its distribution business. Capital investments for the entire Company 
are expected to increase to an estimated $60 million in fiscal 1998 6om $52 million in fiscal 1997, in large part to take 
advantage of these growth opportunities. Almost halfof the planned capital investment in fiscal 1997 is related to providing 
gas or transportation service to new customers. While the Company is confident that these fiscal 1997 investments will earn a 
return in excess of its cost of capital, there can be no assurance that the expected margins from each capital investment will 
be fully realized. 

The natural gas distribution industry is undergoing s imlcant  changes. The sale of gas by utility companies to commercial 
and industrial customers has been "unbundled," or separated from the transportation service component, by several state 
replatory commissions, including the NJBPU. In these states, while the sale of the gas commodity to commercial and 
industrial customers is now fully competitive, the transportation service remains regulated as to price and returns and subject 
to various restrictions and franchise protections. It is anticipated that additional states will unbundle these services for 
commercial and industrial customers and that, in the near term, some states will begin to unbundle these services for 
residential customers as well. 

The FPSC has approved the Company's proposal to unbundle gas service to certain small commercial customers, in a manner 
similar to that currently in place in the Company's New Jersey service territory. 

Tariffs for transportation service have generally been designed to provide the same margins as bundled sales tariffs. 
Therefore, except for the regulatory risk of full recovery of gas costs, the Company is financially indifferent as to whether it 
transports gas or sells gas and transportation together. Unbundling provides the Company with an opportunity to make 
additional margins through its unregulated marketing subsidiary, NU1 Energy, Inc., by competing with other unregulated 
marketers and brokers for sales of gas. 

The Company also faces the risk of loss of transportation service for large industrial customers who may have the ability to 
build connections to interstate gas pipelines and thereby bypass the Company's distribution system. Gas distributors can also 
expect increased competition fiom electricity as deregulation in that industxy decreases prices and increases supply sources. 
Alternatively, opportunities may increase for gas service to fuel generators for large industrial customers, replacing electric 
utility service. 

Customer Services 

The Customer Services unit provides repair and maintenance for customer-owned gas facilities and appliances, and collects 
energy usage data for billing purposes. The Company's strategy for its Customer Services unit is to provide additional 
services that customers value, to charge prices that fully reflect the quality of those services to its customers, and improve the 
quality and timeliness of service. 

The Company intends to implement several measures, including the use of new metering and communications technology, to 
improve the response time to customer service requests and to improve the accuracy and timeliness of billing information. 

The Company has reviewed its rate schedules and has imposed new or increased fees where appropriate for certain 
customer-initiated services. NU1 may request state regulatory agencies to approve other service fee increases, thereby 
providing income to offset the cost of providing gas service to its general customer base 

Energy Sales and Services 

The Company's primary operations in Energy Sales and Services are composed of three business lines. First, in fiscal 1995 
the Company formed NUI Energy, Inc. (Energy) to market gas service to unbundled retail commercial and industrial 
customers. The margins from Energy in fiscal I997 were approximately $2.4 million, up from $ 1 . 1  million in fiscal 1996, but 
the expenses related to this start-up operation resulted in a slight loss for the year. Energy is expected to be profitable in fiscal 
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1998. 

The second business line of Energy Sales and Services is wholesale sales and brokering of energy, primarily to utilities and 
energy marketing companies. The Company formed NU1 Energy Brokers, Inc. (Energy Brokers) in fiscal 1996 to perform 
such activities. Energy Brokers also is the provider of energy to the Company's retail marketing subsidiary, Energy. Energy 
Brokers generated margins of approximately $3.5 million in fiscal 1997, compared with $1.6 million in fiscal 1996. The 
Company " i z e s  its risks in this business by limiting its financial and physical positions at any one time. As in any 
commodity brokerage activity, however, there are risks pertaining to market changes and credit exposure that can be 
managed but not eliminated. Therefore, the earnings 6om Energy Brokers are likely to be more volatile than the Company's 
distribution business. 

The third business line within Energy Sales and Services is in "off-system sales", or the use ofutility-owned gas assets to 
make sales to customers outside of NUI's service areas. Such assets include pipeline capacity and gas storage facilities. These 
assets are managed separately h m  non-utility assets, and their use is monitored and regulated by state regulatory 
commissions. Pursuant to regulatory agreements in some states in which the Company operates, the Company is able to retain 
a portion of the margins h m  these sales in varying percentages depending on the state in which the assets are owned. The 
Company's share of margins h m  off-system sales were approximately $0.8 million in fiscal 1997, unchanged 60m fiscal 
1996. 

Effecta of Inflation 

The Company's provide purchased gas adjusment clauses through which rates charged to customers are adjusted for 
changes in the cost of gas on a reasonably current basis. Increases in other utility costs and expenses not othenuise offset by 
increases in revenues or reductions in other expenses could have an adverse effect on earnings due to the time lag associated 
with obtaining regulatory approval to recover such increased costs and expenses, and the uncertainty of whether regulatory 
commissions will allow full recovery of such increased costs and expenses. 

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

Consolidated financial statements of the Company as of September 30, I997 and I996 and for each of the three years in the 
period ended September 30, 1997, the auditors' report thereon, and the unaudited quarterly financial data for the two-year 
period ended September 30, 1997, are included herewith as indicated on "Index to Financial Statements and Schedule" on 
page F- 1. 

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

None. 

PART IU 

Item 10. Directors and Executive OPlicers of the Registrant 

Information conceming directors and officers of the Company is included in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Company's 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference. Such Proxy Statement was filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on December 23, 1997. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

I d o m t i o n  concerning executive compensation is included in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Company's Annual 
Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference. Such Proxy Statement was filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on December 23, 1997. 

Item 12, Security-Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management 

Information conceming security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is included in the d e f ~ t i v e  Proxy 
Statement for the Company's Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference. Such Proxy 
Statement was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 23, 1997. 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 
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Information concerning certain relationships and related transactlons is included in the defmitive Proxy Statement for the 
Company's Annual Meeting of Stockholders. which is incorporated herein by reference. Such Proxy Statement was filed with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 23, 1997. 

PART IV 

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K 

(a) (1) Consolidated financial statements of the Company as of September 30, 1997 and 1996 and for each of the three years 
in the period ended September 30,1997 and the auditors' report thereon, and the unaudited quarterly fmancial data for the 
two-year period ended September 30, I997 are included herewith as indicated on the "Index to Financial Statements and 
Schedule" on page F-I. 

(2) The applicable financial statement schedule for the fiscal years 1997, I996 and 1995 is included herewith as indicated on 
the "Index to Financial Statements and Schedule" on page F- I. 

(3) Exhibits: 

 bit 
gnrrlDao" 

Letter Agreement, dated June 29,1993, by and 
between NLTI Corporation and Pennsylvania & 
Southern Gas Company No. 33-50561 
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 27, 
1993. bv and between NU1 Corporation and 

Ne. 

Xi) 
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
2(i) to Registration Statement 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
2(ii) to Registration Statement 2(ii) . ,  . 

Pennsylvania & Southern Gas Company 

Certificate of Incorporation, amended and restated as &) of NUI's Form 
3(i) of December 1, I995 Fiscal 1995 

By-Laws, amended and restated as of September 23, 
3(ii) 

No. 33-50561 
ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 

Report for 

Filed herewith. 
1997 

IO(ii) 

IO(iii) 

lO(iv) 

1 O(V) 

I 
ce Agreement by and b e t w m  Transcontinental ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 

I O(i) to Registration Statement No. IO(il as Pipe Line Corporation and Elizabethtown Gas 

- 
between Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation Filed herewith. 
and EGC, dated July 1, 1996 
Service Agreement under Rate Schedule LG-A by and Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
between Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation IO(iii) to Registration Statement No. 
andEGC,datedJanuary 12,1971 33-5056 I 
Service Agreement by and between Transcontinental Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
Gas Pipe Line Corporation and EGC, dated lO(iv) of NUI's Form IO-K Report for 
November I ,  I995 (Contract # I .  1997) Fiscal 1996 
Service Agreement by and between Transcontinental Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
Gas Pipe Line Corporation and EGC, dated IO(v) of NUI's Form 10-K Report for 

., 
bompany ("EGC"), datedFebruaq I ,  1992 (#3686) 
bervice Ameement under Rate Schedule GSS by and 

133-50561 
I 

. .  

1 O(vi) 

November I ,  1995 (Contract#l.1995) 

Firm Gas by and Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation. EGC and Io(vi) to Registration Statement No. 
National Fuel Gas Supply Corporation, dated 
November I ,  I984 
Service Agreement by and among Transcontinental 

?Fiscal 1996 

33-5056 I 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
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lO(viii) 

lO(ix) 
EGC. dated October 25, 1994 (Contract #33 1720) blscal 1994 
bervice Agreement for Rate Schedule FTS-5 by and I 

Gas Pipe Line Corporation and EGC, dated I O(vii) of NUI's Form 10-K Report for 
November I ,  1995 (Contract #1.1998) Fiscal 1996 
Service Agreement for Rate Schedule CDS by and Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
between Texas Eastem Transmission Corporation and IO(viii) to NUI's Form IO-K Report for 
EGC, datedDecember I ,  1993 (Contract #800361) Fiscal 1994 
Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FTS-7 by and Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
between Texas Eastem Transmission Corporation and lO(ix) to NUI's Form 10-K Report for 

I l W  between Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation and hiled herewith. 

lO(xi) 

lO(xii) 

bGC,datedMarch 18, 1996(Contract #331501) I 
Bervice Agreement under Rate Schedule FTS-8 by and hncomornted bv reference to Exhrbit 
between Texas Eastem Transmission Corporation and lO(xij to NUI'S Form 10-K Report for 
EGC, dated June 28, 1994 (Contract #331013) Fiscal 1994 
Firm Transportation Service Agreement under FTS-2 
Rate Schedule by and between City Gas and Florida Filed herewith. 
bas T r m s s t o n .  dated August 12, I993 
(Service A m e n t  for Rate Schedule FTS-2 by md llncorporntcd by reiermce to Exhibit 

istration Statement 

y and EGC, dated November I ,  Form IO-K Report for 

1988 Stock Plan tration Statement 

irst Amendment to 1988 Stock Plan 
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arm of Termination of Employment and Change in 
lo(=iii) Emml 

Firm Transportation Service Agreement under FTS-2 
Rate Schedule by and between City Gas and Florida 
Gas Transmission, dated December 12,199 1 and 
Amendment dated November 12, 1993 (Contract 

lO(xXiv) 

corporated by reference to Exhibit 
Fo(xxiii) of NUI's Form IO-K Report 
for Fiscal I995 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
IO(xxiv) ofNUI's Form 10-KReport 

for Fiscal I994 

IO(-) 

#3608) 
Service Agreement under Rate Schedule LG-A by and 
between Transcontinental Gas Pipeline and North 
Carolina Gas Service Division of Pennsylvania & 
Southern Gas Company, dated August 5, I97 1 
Service Ag"en t  under Rate Schedule GSS by and 

carporated by reference to Exhibit yo(-, of NUI's Form IO-K Report for 
Fiscal 1994 

I I For Fiscal 1996 
bas Storage Contract under Rate Schedule FS by and I,-------. ed by reference to Exhibit 

"Ul's Form IO-K Report foi 

I 
. .  

eptember 1, 1993 (Contract #2277) 

lO(wi )  

lO(xxvii) 

lO(xxviii) 

IO(xXiX) 

rated by reference to Exhibit 
) ofNUI's Form 10-K Report 

I's Form IO-K Report 

eference to Exhibit 
Gas Pipeline Co. and 

oyment Agreement, dated as of July 29, 1988, (xxxv) of NUI's Form 

between franscontinental Gas Pipeline and North 
Carolina Gas Service, dated July I ,  1996 

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan 

Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Transcontinental Gas Pipeline and North 
Carolina Gas Service Division ofPennsylvania & 
Southern Gas Company, dated February I ,  1992 
(Contract # 0.3922) 

1996 Directors Stock Purchase Plan 

Filed herewith 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
IO(xuvii) of NUI's Form IO-K Report 
for Fiscal 1996 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
IO(xxviii) of NUI's Form 10-K Report 
for Fiscal 1994 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
IO(xxix) of NUI's Form 10-K Report 
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Agreement for Rate Schedule FT by and 

Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation 

l O ( m i i i )  
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andEGC (Contract#I.O445)datedApril I ,  1995 
Sewice Agreement for Rate Schedule S S -  I by and 
between Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation and 

corporated by reference to Exhibit 
(xxwiii) ofNUI's Form 10-K Report 

corporated by reference to Exhibit 
of NUI's Form IO-K Report 

IO(xxXix) 

lO(4 

1 O(xli) 

and between Tennessee Gas Pipeline Company and 
EGC (Contract #8703) dated November I .  1994 

C o n s u l k  Agreement, dated as of March 24.1995, 

lO(&ix) of NuI's Form IO-K Report 
for Fiscal I995 

corporated by reference to Exhibit 
of NUI's Form I o-K Report for 

between NU1 Corporation and John Kean Fiscal 1995 
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 O(xli) ) of NUI's Form IO-K Report Form of Deferred Compensation Agreement 

bGC (Contract (MOO196) dated September 23, 1994 kor F~scul 1995 
bas Storage Agreement under Rate Schedule FS by bncorpornted by reference to Exlublt 

lO(xlii) 

lO(xliii) 

lO(xliv) 

1996 Stock Option and Stock Award Plan 

Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastern Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as of November I ,  1997 (Contract 
W10003) 
Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastern Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as of November I ,  I997 (Contract 

lO(xlii) of NUI's Form IO-K Report for 
Fiscal 1996 

Filed herewith 

Filed herewith 

I 
- 

kor Fiscal 1995 
bcorporated by reference to Exhibit 

lO(xlv) 

#010011) 
Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastern Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as of November I ,  1997 (Contract Filed herewith 

t#OlOOl2) 
Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastern Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as of November I ,  1997 (Contract 
WIOO 13) 
Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastern Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as ofNovember 1. 1997 (Contract 

lO(xlvi) 

IO(xlvii) 

Filed herewith 

Filed herewith 

1°(xlviii) 

W20003) 
Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
etween Elkton Gas and Eastern Shore Natural Gas 

:ompany, dated as ofNovember 1, 1997 (Contract Filed herewith 

Exhibits listed above which have heretofore been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the 
Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and which were designated as noted above and have not been 
amended, are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof with the same effect as if tiled herewith. 

The Company is a party to various agreements with respect to long-term indebtedness to which the total amount of 

W20005) 
12 Consolidated Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges Filed herewith 
21 Subsidiaries of NU1 Corporation Filed herewith 
23 Consent of Independent Public Accountants Filed herewith 
27 Financial nntn  Schedule Filed herewith 
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Consolidated Financial Statements as of September 30, 1997 and 1996 for each 
of the Three Years in the Period Ended September 30, I997 F-3 

Page 25 of 47 

Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data for the Two-Year Period Ended September 
30, 1997 F-18 

indebtedness authorized under each agreement, respectively, does not exceed 10% of the total assets of the Company on a 
consolidated basis. The Company hereby agees to fiunish to the Securities and Exchange Commission copies of such 
agreements upon request 

@) Reports on Form 8-K: 

None 

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULE 

Consolidated Fiiancial Statements of NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries: 

(Note 12 of the Notes to the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements) 
Financial Statement Schedule of NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries: 
Report of Independent Public Accountants 

Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifymg Accounts for each of the Three Years in 
the Period Ended September 30,1997 

F-2 

F-20 

eport of Independent Public Accountants b: 2 
I 
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states in all material respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

ARTHUR ANDERSEN U P  

New York, New York 

November 6,1997 

1997 - 1996 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statement of Income 

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

- 1995 

Operating revenues $608,596 
Less- Purchased gas and fuel 401,923 
Gross receipts and f h c h i ~ e  
taxes 

$469,499 $376,884 
268, I23 189s 10 

33.669 

Operating Income 23.859 

Other Income and 
Expense, Net 
Equity in Earnings of TIC 1,334 -- 
Enterprises, LLC, net 
Other 2,180 897 679 
Income taxes (337) (240) 

560 - 439 2.284 - 

-- 

Interest Expense u 18.781 

Yet Income %19.649 %14.896 $5.517 

$175 
Net Income Per Share of 
Common Stock 
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Dividend8 Per Share of 
L94 m $_90 

Weighted Average 
Number of Shares of 
Common Stock 11.253.513 9.819.431 9,152.837 
Outstanding 

Utilityplant at original coat $4680.391 $631.194 

AENmulnted deprcciatim and amartirPtim (218.895) (200,456) 

U m d  plnnt q u i s i t i m  adjuammu, net 33.J72 
a 

(Dollars in thousands) 
SeDtember 30, 

1996 - 1997 - 
ASSETS 

utllih, Plant 
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otcs payable to bMks 

Ycam Ended Seplember30, 

1996 1995 - - 1997 - 

Opclrtlnb AEtMtla 

Net hl”c t 1 9  M 9  $14.896 $5 517 

f d  Fedaal incnne uxes 62,391 59928 

ed invatmaat tax d i t s  6,171 6,635 

v i r m d  mediatim m e  33,981 33.981 
~ 

egulatwy and other liabilities 31.248 

Adjustmolts to m c i l e  od income 
Lo ndavrhprovidcdby OpcnUing 
activities: 

Depmidon and “iizaiion 24.040 22.315 20,932 

1 I s677.662 S803.66J 

See rhe “ores ro rhe consobdoredfinanem1 sroremenrr. 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

(Dollars in thousands) 
I I I 

E5edsof&gain: 

Accounts mivablc. nc( (20.91 I )  (13.371) 7.913 

Fuel inventories (1.877) (1.562) 987 

FedaalinmmCtaM 3,2461 7,569 I 2,005 I 
O d  portion of restrucQlring 

4.913 
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NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statement of Capitalization 

(Dollars in thousands) 
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I 284,700 231,OSC 
Current portion of long-term debt (54,600) (950) 
Unamortized debt discount (1.031) -- 

I 229.069 23o.100 

Preferred Stock, 5,000,000 shares authorized; none 
issued 

I 

I I I 
otal Capitaliiation $447.360 I $409,207 

* The total unexpended portions of the net procreds from these honds. amouniing to 523 8 nullion and 642 6 nullion as of 
September 30. 1997 and September 30, 1996, respectivclv. are caned on the Company's consolidated balance sheet 8s funrls 
for u)nsnuction held by trustee. mciudmg mterest earned thereon. until &awn upon for eligible construction evpenditures 

See the notes to the consol~doredjinancrol s iotemen~ 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidirriro 

Consolidated Statement of  Shareholders' Equity 
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B h e s  
Scptember30, 
1996 11,085,876 $171.968 S(1.564) 5 10,117 $389 $(l.803) $179.107 

I I I I I I I 
12.428.952 S201.J49 619.260 - $120  3218.291 
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* Represenfs common stock issued in connection with NUI Direct and various employee benefitplans. 

See the note, to the consolidotedfinoncial nr?teements, 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Summary of Signiiicant Accounting Policies 

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include all operating divisions and subsidiaries of NU1 
Corporation (collectively referred to as the "Company"). The Company is a multi-state energy sales, services and distribution 
company. Its natural gas utility operations distribute natural gas and provide related customer services in six states through its 
Northern and southern utility divisions. The Northem Division operates in New Jersey as Elizabethtown Gas Company. The 
Southern Division operates in five states as City Gas Company of Florida ("CGF"), North Carolina Gas, Elkton Gas 
(Maryland), Valley Cities Gas (Pennsylvania) and Waverly Gas (New York). The Company also provides retail gas sales and 
related services through its NU1 Energy, Inc. subsidiary ("Energy"); wholesale energy brokerage and related services through 
its NUI Energy Brokers, Inc. subsidiary ("Energy Brokers"); customer information systems and services through its Utility 
Business Services, Inc. subsidiary; and sales and marketing outsourcing through its 49% equity interest in TIC Enterprises, 
LLC ("TIC") (see Note 2). All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

The preparation of fmancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liab es, the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the fmancial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ fiom those estimates. 

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year fmancial statements to conform with the current year presentation. 

Regulation. The Company is subject to regulation as an operating utility by the public utility commissions of the states in 
which it operates. 

Utility Plont. Utility plant is stated at its original cost. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the remaining 
estimated lives of depreciable properly by applying composite average annual rates as approved by the state commissions. 
The composite average annual depreciation rate was 3% in both fiscal 1997 and fiscal I996 and 3.2% in fiscal 1995. At the 
time properties are retired, the original cost plus the cost of retirement, less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation. 
Repairs of all utility plant and replacements and renewals of minor items of property are charged to maintenance expense as 
incurred. 

The net unamortized plant acquisition adjustments represent the remaining portion of the excess of the purchase price over 
the book value of net assets acquired. The excess is being amortized on a straight-line basis over thirty years from the date of 
acquisition. The results of operations of acquired entities have been included in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements for the periods subsequent to their acquisition. 

Operating Revenues and Purchased Gar and Fuel Costs. Operating revenues include accrued unbilled revenues through the 
end of each accounting period. Operating revenues also reflect adjustments attributable to weather normalization clauses that 
are accrued during the winter heating season and billed or credited to customers in the following year. 

Costs of purchased gas and fuel for the Company's regulated utilities are recognized as expenses in accordance with the 
purchased gas adjustment clause applicable in each state. Such clauses provide for periodic reconciliations of actual 
recoverable gas costs and the estimated amounts that have been hilled to customers. Under or over recoveries are defmed 
when they arise and are recovered h m  or refunded to customers in subsequent periods. 
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Income Tares. The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 
109, "Accounting for Income Taxes", which requires the liability method to be used to account for deferred income taxes. 
Under this method, Mmed income taxes related to tax and accountiing basis differences are r e c o e e d  at the statutory 
income tax rates in effect when the tax is expected to be paid. 

Investment tax credits, which were generated principally in connection with additions to utility plant made prior to J a n q  I ,  
1986, are being amortized over the estimated service lives of the properties that gave rise to the credits. 

Regulofory Asserr and Liabilities. The Company's utility operations follow the accounting for regulated enterprises 
prescribed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 7 I ,  "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of 
Regulation" (SFAS 7 I). In general, SFAS 7 1 requires deferral of certain costs and obligations, based upon orders received 
from regulators, to be recovered from or refunded to customers in future periods. The following represents the Company's 
regulatov assets and liabilities deferred in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 1997 and 1996 
(m thousands): 

kefilnds to customers 2,442 83 
Other - 272 - 88 

Although the gas distribution industry is becoming increasingly competitive, the Company's utility operations continue to 
recover their costs through cost-based rates established by the public utility commissions. As a result, the Company believes 
that the accounting prescribed under SFAS 71 remains appropriate. 

Impainnenf ofLong-LivedAssets. During the cwent  year, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of' 
(SFAS 121). SFAS 121 requires the Company to review such assets for possible impairment whenever circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The adoption of SFAS I2 I did not have an impact on 
the results of operations, financial condition or cash flows of the Company. 

Cash Equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of a money market account which invests in securities with original maturities of 
three months or less. 

Ner Income Per Share ofCommon Stock Net income per share of common stock is based on the weighted average number 
of shares of Nul "man stock outstanding. The assumed exercise of outstanding employee stock options would not have a 
dilutive effect on net income per share of common stock. 

In February 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 128, "Eamings per Share" (SFAS 128). This statement supersedes APB Opinion No. 15, "Earnings per Share" and 
simplifies the computation of eamings per share. SFAS I28 will be effective for financial statements for both interim and 
annual periods ending after December 15, 1997. The Company does not expect the effect of adopting SFAS No. 128 to have 
a material effect on its calculation of eamings per share. 

New Accounfing Standards In June 1997, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards NO. 13 I 
"Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information" (SFAS I3 I) .  SFAS I 3  I requires disclosures for each 
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business segment that are similar to current requirements, with the addition of quarterly disclosures and more detailed 
geographic disclosures. The Company is not required to adopt SFAS 13 I until fiscal 1999. SFAS 13 I relates solely to 
disclosure provisions, and therefore will not have any effect on the results of operations, financial position and cash flows of 
the Company. 

2. Purchase of Interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC 

On May 18,1997, the Company closed on its acquisition of a 49% interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC, a newly formed limited 
liability company (LLC), for a purchase price of $22 million. The acquisition was effective as of January I ,  1997 and is being 
Bccounted for under the equity method. Under the terms of an LLC Interest Purchase Agreement (the "Agreement"), the 
limited liability company will continue the business previously conducted by TIC Enterprises, Inc. The Agreement also 
includes a provision for an additional incentive payment up to a maximum of $5.2 million if TIC'S calendar 1997 eamings 
before interest and taxes, exceed $5 million. As of September 30, 1997, the Company has recorded a reserve of 
approximately $2.2 million for the additional incentive payment. In addition, NU1 has the option, during the period beginning 
April I ,  2001 (subject to a one-year extension by the seller), to purchase the remaining 5 1% interest in TIC. 

TIC engages in the business of recruiting, training and managing sales professionals and serving as sales and marketing 
representatives for vSrious businesses, including the Company's subsidiary, NU1 Energy, Inc. The excess of the purchase 
price over the Company's share of the underlying equity in net assets of TIC is estimated on a preliminary basis to be 
approximately $22 million, including the reserve for the additional incentive payment, and is being amortized on a straight 
line basis over a fifteen year period. 

3. Restructuring and Other Noo-Recurring Charges 

In fiscal 1995, the Company incurred approximately $8.6 million of pre-tax non-recurring charges for, among other things, 
the implementation of an early retirement program and the consolidation of its Florida and Pennsylvania & Southern Gas 
Service (PSGS) operations. 

In November 1994, the Company offered an early retirement program to certain employees. The program, which became 
effective on April I ,  1995, was accepted by 95 of the eligible I 12 employees. In accordance with Statement ofFinancial 
Accounting Standards No. 88, "Employers' Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans 
and for Termination Benefits", the Company recorded a special termination charge of approximately $4.1 million. In addition, 
the Company recorded approximately $0.8 million of other benefit expenses associated with these employees. The Company 
also deferred, pending regulatory recovery, a charge of approximately $0.6 million for special termination benefits. 

Effective April I ,  1995, the Company consolidated its Florida and PSGS divisions to form a new NU1 Southern Division. 
The Southern Division is headquartered in Hialeah, Florida. As a result, PSGS headquarters in Sayre, Pennsylvania were 
closed effective December 31,1995. The Company incurred a charge of approximately $2.6 million for severance and other 
expenses associated with the consolidation of the two divisions. 

In addition, during fiscal 1995, the Company incurred a charge of approximately $0.8 million to write down certain 
regulatory assets as a result of a November I994 settlement of the Company's Florida rate case. 

4. Capitalization 

Long-Term Debt. On July 9, 1997. the Company issued $54.6 million of tax exempt Gas Facilities Revenue Refimdmg 
Bonds at an interest rate of 5.7%. The bonds mature on June I ,  2032 and were used to refinance previously issued Gas 
Facilities Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amounts and rates of $46.2 million at 6.75% and $8.4 million at 6.625%. 
The proceeds from the refunding bonds were held in trust until the old bonds were called on October I ,  1997. 

The Company prepaid approximately $1  million of long-term debt, without penalty, associated with its Employee Stock 
Ownership Plan in January 1997. 

The Company deposits in trust the unexpended portion of the net proceeds from its Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds until drawn 
upon for eligible expenditures. As of September 30, 1997 and 1996. the total unexpended portions of all of the Company's 
Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds were $23.8 million and $42.6 million, respectively, and are classified on the Company's 
consolidated balance sheet, including interest earned thereon, as h d s  for construction held by trustee. 

As of September 30, 1997, the Company is scheduled to repay approximately $54.6 million of long-term debt in fiscal 1998 
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Share Shares - 
Options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 1994 13,000 $1 5 77-54 7.625 
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as noted above. No other long-term debt is scheduled to be repaid over the nest five years. 

PmfemdSrock The Company has 5,000,000 shares of authorized but unissued preferred stock. Shares of Series A Junior 
Participating Preferred Stock have been reserved for possible future issuance in connection with the Company's Shareholder 
Rights Plan described below. 

Shareholder Rights Plan. In November 1995, the Company's Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan under 
which shareholders of NU common stock were issued as a dividend one right to buy one one-hundredth of a share of Series 
A Junior Participating Preferred Stock at a purchase price of $50 mght)  for each share of common stock held. The Rights 
initially attach to the shares of NU common stock and can be exercised or transferred only if a person or p u p  (an 
"Acquirer"), with certain exceptions, acquires, or commences a tender offer to acquire beneficial ownership of 15% or more 
o f N U  common stock. Each Right, except those held by the Acquirer, may be used by the non-acquiring shareholders to 
purchase, at the Right's exercise price, shares of NU1 common stock having a market value equivalent to twice the Right's 
exercise price, thus substantially reducing the Acquirer's ownership percentage. 

The Company may redeem the Rights at $0.001 per Right at any time prior to the occurrence of any such event. All Rights 
expire on November 27,2005. 

Common Stock On September 25, 1997, the Company issued an additional I ,011,400 million shares of NU1 common stock 
The net proceeds 60m the offering totaled $22.6 million and were used to reduce outstanding short-term debt incurred to 
6nance the Company's acquisition of a 49% interest in TIC (see Note 2) and other general corporate purposes. 

The Company periodically issues shares of common stock in connection with NU1 Direct, the Company's dividend 
reinvestment and stock purchase plan, and various employee benefit plans. Effective in December 1994, these plans 
commenced purchasing shares on the open market to fulfill the plans' requirements rather than purchasing the shares d m t l y  
6om the Company. Under the terms of these plans, the Company may change the method of purchasing shares from open 
market purchases to purchases directly 60m the Company, or vice versa. Effective in October 1996, these plans began 
purchasing shares directly 60m the Company to fulfill the plans' requirements. 

At September 30, 1997, shares reserved for issuance under the Company's common stock plans were: NU1 Direct, 103,389; 
Savings and Investment Plan, 195,756; I996 Stock Option and Stock Award Plan, 137,89 I ; 1996 Employee Stock Purchase 
Plan, 91,022; and the I996 Director Stock Purchase Plan, 58,542. 

Stock Plum. The Company's Board of Directors believes that both directors' and management's interest should be closely 
aligned with that of shareholders. As a result, under the 1996 Stock Option and Stock Award Plan, the 1996 Director Stock 
Purchase Plan and the 1988 Stock Plan, the Company has a long-term compensation program for directors, executive officers 
and key employees involving shares of NU1 common stock. 

Each non-employee director of the Company earns an annual retainer fee that consists of a grant of shares of NU1 common 
stock which are deferred until their retirement 6om the Board. During 1997, such retainer fee granted was equivalent to a fair 
market value of $15,000 on the date of grant. In addition, non-employee directors who also chair committees of the Board 
receive additional deferred grants with a fair market value of $2,500 on the date of grant. Deferred stock grants are increased 
on each common stock dividend payment date by an amount equal to the number of shares of NU1 common stock which 
would have been purchased had all deferred stock grants been issued and the dividends reinvested in additional shares. 

Shares granted as long-term compensation for executive oficers and key employees amounted to 69,800 in fiscal 1997; 
65,113 shares in fiscal 1996 and 17,620 shares in fiscal 1995. As of September 30, 1997, a total of 132,678 shares of 
restricted stock that have been granted as long-term compensation are subject to future vesting requirements, and are 
reshicted &om resale. 

Executive officers and key employees are eligible to be granted options for the purchase of NU1 common stock at prices 
equal to the market price per share on the date of grant. The option must be exercised within ten years from the date of grant. 
Transactiolls during the last three fiscal years involving stock options were as follows: 

I I Number of I Option Price per- I 
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'Fiscal I 995 
options canceled 13.2001 $15.77 

options outstanding and exercisable at September 30,1997 9.800 t$15.77-$17.625 

During fiscal 1997, the Company was required to adopt Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 "Accounting 
for Stock-Based Compensation" (SFAS 123). SFAS I23 establishes fmancial accounting and reporting standards for stock 
based compensation plans and includes all wangements by which employees receive shares of stock or other equity 
instruments of the employer, or by which the employer incurs liabilities to employees in amounts based on the price of the 
employer's stock. Under SFAS 123, the reporting entity is given the option to either adopt the accounting standards of SFAS 
123. or continue to measure compensation cost in accordance with previous guidance and provide proforma disclosure of the 
effect of adopting SFAS 123. The Company has elected to continue its current accounting treatment in this area. If the 
Company had adopted provisions of SFAS 123, there would not have been a material effect on the results of operations or 
financial position. 

DividendResWcfiom. The Company's long-term debt agreements include, among other things, restrictions as to the payment 
of cash dividends. Under the most restrictive of these provisions, the Company is permitted to pay approximately $37 million 
of cash dividends at September 30,1997. 

5. Notes Payable to Banks 

At September 30, 1997, the Company's outstanding notes payable to banks were $54.4 million with a combined weighted 
average interest rate of 6.3%. Unused lines of credit at September 30, 1997 were approximately $92 million. 

The weighted average daily amounts outstanding of notes payable to banks and the weighted average interest rates on those 
amounts were $66.0 million at 5.5% in fiscal 1997, $39.9 million at 5.6% in fiscal 1996 and $58.0 million at 5.9% in fiscal 
1995. 

6. Leases 

Utilityplant held under capital leases amounted to $22.9 million at September 30, 1997 and $23.5 million at September 30, 
1996, with related accumulated amortization of $12.5 million and $1  I .5 million, respectively. These properties consist 
principally of leasehold improvements and office h i t u r e  and fixtures. A summary of future minimum payments for 
properties held under capital leases follows (in thousands): 

~~ 

1999 2.433 
2000 7,267 
2001 485 
2002 346 

1998 I $2,437 I 

2003 and thereafter 172 
Total future minimum payments 13,140 
Amount representing interest (1,874) 
Current portion of capital lease obligations 
Canital lea- ohliantions $9.679 

Mini" payments under noncancelable operating leases, which relate principally to office space, are approximately $4.1 
million in fiscal 1998, $3.8 million in fiscal 1999, $3.7 million in fiscal 2000, $3.8 million in fiscal 2001 and $3.9 million in 
fiscal 2002. 

Rents charged to operations expense were $5.7 million in fiscal I997 and $5.3 million in both fiscal 1996 and fiscal 1995. 

7. Fmaocial Instruments 

Derivatives. The Company engages in risk management activities to minimize the risk associated with fluctuating natural gas 
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p r i c ~ .  The Company's unregulated subsidiaries utilize the following fmancial instruments to provide competitive energy 
supplies and hedge its retail sales: forward contracts, which commit the Company to purchase or sell natural gas in the future, 
swap a m e n t s ,  which require payments to (or receipt of payments from) counterparties based on the daerential between a 
fixed price and an index price ofnatural gas: natural gas options, which provide the right, but not the requirement, to buy or 
sell natural gas at a fuced price; and futures contracts. bought on the New York Mercantile Exchange (NyMEX), to buy or 
sell natural gas at a fixed price. 

Energy Brokers accounts for its trading and price risk management activities by marking to market itr various physical 
transactions and financial instruments. The values assigned to these transactions reflect quotes fiom the NYMEY established 
pricing models and price volatility factors. The Company manages open positions with strict policies which limit its exposure 
to market risk and require reporting potential financial exposure to management on a daily basis. 

Margin requirements for natural gas futures contracts are recorded in other current assets. Realized and unrealized gains and 
losses are recorded in the consolidated statement of income under purchased gas and fuel. At September 30,1997, Energy 
Brokers' futures positions consisted of 565 long contracts and 6 19 short contracts at prices ranging from $2. 15 to $3.40 per 
Mcf, none of which extend beyond August 1998, representing I 1,840 MMcf of natural gas. Energy Brokers' options 
positions consisted of 30 long contracts and 275 short contracts with varying strike prices, none of which extend beyond July 
1998. Margin deposits with brokers were approximately $1.2 million at September 30, 1997. In addition, Energy Brokers 
has forward sales and purchase commitments associated with contracts totaling approximately 50,000 MMcf of natural gas, 
with terms extending through October 1998. Net realized and unrealized gains on derivative trading for fiscal 1997 was $2.4 
million, which has been included in income. During fiscal 1996, Energy Brokers' use of financial instruments was not 
significant. 

Energy utilizes financial instruments to ensure adequate margins on its retail and industrial sales. Margin requirements for 
natural gas futures contracts are recorded as other current assets. Unrealized gains and losses on all futures and options 
contracts are defend in the consolidated balance sheet as either a current asset or liability. Realized gains and losses on 
futures, forwards and options contracts are included in the consolidated statement of income under purchased gas and fuel 
when the underlying gas commodity hedged is purchased and sold to its customers. At September 30, 1997, Energy's futures 
positions consisted of 362 long contracts and 47 short contracts at prices ranging from $1.98 to $3.18 per Mcf, none of which 
extend beyond July 1999, representing 4,090 MMcf of natural gas. Energy's options positions consisted of 91 short contracts 
with vaty;lg strike prices, none of which extend beyond September 1998. During fiscal 1996, Energy's use of financial 
instruments was not siflicant. 

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of default or non-performance by one of its trading partners. The 
Company maintains credit policies that management believes significantly minimize overall credit risk. 

Other Financial Insfrumenfs. As of September 30, I997 and 1996, the market value of the Company's investments in 
marketable securities exceeded their cost by approximately $196,000 and $623,000, respectively, which unrealized gain is 
reflected net of deferred income taxes in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as a component of shareholders' 
equity. 

The fair value of the Company's cash equivalents, funds for construction held by trustee and notes payable to banks are 
approximately equivalent to their canying value, The fair value of the Company's long-term debt exceeded its carrying value 
by approximately $1 1 million as of September 30, 1997 and 1996. The fair value of long-term debt was estimated based on 
quoted market prices for the same or similar issues. 

8. Consolidated Taxes 

The provision for Federal and State income taxes was comprised of the following (in thousands): 
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- 1997 1996 - 1995 

Service cost $1,849 $1,973 $2,044 
Interest cost 6,480 6, I03 5.290 

The components of the Company's net deferred Federal tax liability (asset) as of September 30, 1997 and 1996 are as follows 
(in thousands): 

epreciation and other utility plant differences $50.620 $47.700 

ant acquisition adjustments I 10,544 11,254 
(3.6701 12.984) . . ,, 

'Unamortized investment tax credit (2,144) (2.306) 
D e f d  charges and regulatory assets 8,357 8,864 
Gross receipts and franchise taxes 2,375 2,559 

s59.328 
The alternative mini" taw credit can be carried forward indefinitely to reduce the Company's future taw liability. 

The Company's effective income tax rates differ from the statutory Federal income tax rates due to the following (in 
thousands): 

- 1997 1996 - 1995 
re-tax income $30.172 
ederal income taxes computed at Federal statutory tax rate 

9. Retirement Benefits 

Pemion Benefits. The Company has non-contributory defined benefit retirement plans which cover all of its employees other 
than the CGF union employees who participate in a union sponsored multi-employer plan. The Company funds its plans in 
accordance with the requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of I974 and makes contributions to the 
union sponsored plan in accordance with its contractual obligations. Benefits paid under the Company's plans are based on 
years of service and levels of compensation. The Company's actuarial calculation of pension expense is based on the 
projected unit cost method. 

The components of pension expense for the Company's plans were as follows (in thousands): 

http://www.nui.com/k97. htm 10/8/98 



Page 39 of 47 

(36,984) ( I  5,076) (20,072) 
26,089 6,653 11,949 

Actual return on plan assets 

Net amortization and deferral 
Special termination benefits 
pension (credit) expense 

-- 1.150 4.083 - 

1996 1997 - 
Service cost $564 $600 
Interest cost 2,123 2,096 
Amortization of transition obligation 1,028 1,028 

Net postretirement expense 
Other - 26 - I15 

mecognized net transition asset I (3.272) 
$4.9581 %3.301 

The projected benefit obligation was calculated using a discount rate of 7.5% in fiscal 1997 and 8% in fiscal 1996 and an 
assumed annual increase in compensation levels of 4% in both fiscal 1997 and fiscal 1996. The expected long-term rate of 
retum on assets is 9%. The assets of the Company's funded plans are invested primarily in publicly-traded fixed income and 
equity securities. 

Certain key employees also participate in an unfunded supplemental retirement plan. The projected benefit obligation under 
this plan was $4.3 million as of September 30, 1997 and $2.6 million as of September 30, 1996, and the expense for this 
plan was approximately $0.6 million in fiscal 1997 and $0.4 million in both fiscal I996 and fiscal 1995. 

Poshetirement Benefits Other Than Pensions. The Company provides certain health care benefits to all retirees receiving 
benefits under a Company pension plan other than the CGF plan, who reach retirement age while working for the Company. 

The Company ~ccounts for these plans under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106, "Employers' Accounting 
for Posketirement Benefits Other Than Pensions" (SFAS 106). which, among other things, requires companies to accrue the 
expected cost of providing other postretirement benefits to employees and their beneficiaries during the years that eligible 
employees render the necessary service. The Company does not currently fund these kture benefits. 

The components of postretirement benefit expense other than pensions for the yews ended September 30, 1997 and 1996 
were as follows (in thousands): 
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The health care trend rate assumption is 10% in 1998 gradually decreasing to 5.5% for the year 2006 and later. The discount 
rate used to compute the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 7.5% in fiscal I997 and 8% in fiscal 1996. An 
increase in the health care trend rate assumption by one percentage point in all years would increase the accumulated 
posh-etirement benefit obligation by approximately $4.1 million and the aggregate annual service and interest costs by 
approximately $0.5 million. 

The Company has received an order h m  the North Carolina Utilities Commission to include in rates the amount of 
postretiremd benefit expense other than pensions computed under SFAS 106. The Conlpany has also received an order 
from the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NJBPU) permitting the Northem Division to defer the difference between the 
amount of postretirement benefits expense other than pensions computed as claims are incurred and the amount computed on 
the accrual method in accordance with SFAS 106, pending ratemaking treatment that would be considered in a base rate 
proceeding. The consensus issued in 1993 by the Emerging Issues Task Force of the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(EITF) permits rate regulated companies to defer such expenses for as long as five years when the ratemaking treatment 
provides for full recovery within the succeeding fifteen years. 

On January 8,1997. the NJBPU issued a generic order approving a stipulation that sets forth mechanisms under which New 
Jersey utilities may m v e r  postretirement benefits expenses other than pensions in accordance with SFAS 106 and the EITF 
"us, without being required to file a base rate case. In accordance with that order, the Company filed a request with the 
NJBPU on August 4,1997 seeking recovery of these costs by means of a discreet adjustment of base rates. The Company 
expects NJBPU action on its request in early 1998. The Company will also seek ratemaking treatment consistent with the 
EITF consensus from the commissions in the other states in which it operates. 

The Company continually evaluates altemative ways to manage these benefits and control their costs. Any changes in the plan 
or revisions to assumptions that affect the amount of expected future benefit may have a sigruficant effect on the amount of 
the reported obligation and the annual deferral and expense 

10. Business Segment Information 

The Company's operations are organized under three primary lines of business: Distribution, Energy Sales and Services and 
Customer Services. The Distribution segment distributes natural gas in six states through the Company's regulated utility 
divisions, The Energy Sales and Services segment reflects the operations of the Company's Energy and Energy Brokers 
subsidiaries, as well as utility off-system sales. The Customer Services segment provides repair and maintenance of 
customer-owned gas facilities and appliances and collects energy usage data for billing purposes. 

The following table provides information concerning the major segments of the Company for each of the three years ended 
September 30, 1997. Revenues include intersegment sales to affiliated entities, which are eliminated in consolidation. 
Identifiable assets include only those attributable to the operations of each segment. 
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OpenUn: Margins: 
Distribvtim s154.119 $150,477 $144,377 

Page 41 of 47 

I 5469.499 5376.884 apI Revmua 

knEncgy Sda & saviccs 6,666 3.553 303 

cvstanascnicar IZ-pJ 9,025 

TaW sL73.075 s164.7J2 

45,578 40,680 26,745 

ln”e  T- 9,293 7.807 2.886 
T d 0 P n t i n g I n ” c  

I $697.889 $645.24 

28.63 7.415 

15,458 14,958 13.122 

OlhR 61.680 9.899 
Tow Identifiable Aswb s803.665 s677.662 

11. Commitments and Contingencies 

Commifmenb. Capital expenditures are expected to be approximately $60 million in fiscal 1998. 

EnvironmenrulMurters. The Company is subject to federal and state laws with respect to water, air quality, solid waste 
disposal and employee health and safety matters, and lo environmental regulations issued by the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA), the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) and other federal and state 
agencies. 

The Company owns, or previously owned, certain properties on which manufactured gas plants (MGP) were operated by the 
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Company or by other parties in the past. Coal tar residues are present on the six MGP sites located in the Northem Division. 
The Company has reported the presence of the six MGP sites to the EPA, the NJDEP and the New Jersey Board of Public 
Utilities (NJBPU). In 199 I ,  the NJDEP issued an Administrative Consent Order for an MGP site located at South Street in 
Elizabeth, New J v ,  wherein the Company agreed to conduct a remedial investigation and to design and implement a 
remediation plan. In 1992 and 1993, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with the NJDEP for each of the 
other five Northem Division MGP sites. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Administrative Consent Order and the 
Memoranda of Agreement, the Company is conducting remedial activities at all six sites with oversight from the NJDEP. 

The Company owned ten former MGP facilities, only three of which it currently owns. The former MGP sites are located in 
the states ofNorth c a r o b ,  South Carolina, Pennsylvania, New York and Maryland (the "Southem Division MGP sites"). 
The Company has joined with other North Carolma utilities to form the North Carolina Manufactured Gas Plant Group (the 
"MGP Group"). The MGP Group has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with the North Carolina Department of 
Environment, Health and Natural Resources (NCDEHNR) to develop a uniform program and framework for the 
investigation and remediation of MGP sites in North Carolina. The Memorandum of Understanding contemplates that the 
actual investigation and remediation of specific sites will be addressed pursuant to Administrative Consent Orders between 
the NCDEHNR and the responsible parties. The NCDEHNR has recently sought the investigation and remediation of sites 
owned by members of the MGP Group and has entered into Administrative Consent Orders with respect to four such sites. 
None of these four sites are currently or were previously owned by the Company. 

The Company, with the aid of environmental consultants, regularly assesses the potential future costs associated with 
conducting investigative activities at each of the Company's sites and implementing appropriate remedial actions, as well as 
the likelihood of whether such actions will be necessary. The Company records a reserve if it is probable that a liability will 
be i n c d  and the amount of the liability is reasonably estimable. Based on the Company's most recent assessment, the 
Company has recorded a total reserve for environmental investigation and remediation costs of approximately $34 millio& 
which the Company expects to expend during the next twenty years The reserve is net of approximately $4 million which 
will be bome by a prior owner and operator of two of the Northem Division sites in accordance with a cost sharing 
agreement. Of this approximate $34 million reserve, approximately $30 million relates to Northem Division MGP sites and 
approximately $4 million relates to Southem Division MGP sites. However, the Company believes that it is possible that 
costs associated with conducting investigative activities and implementing remedial activities, Ifnecessary, with respect to all 
of its MGP sites may exceed the approximately $34 million reserve by an amount that could range up to $24 million and be 
incurred during a future period of time that may range up to fiRy years. Of this $24 million in additional possible future 
expenditures, approximately $1 2 million relates to the Northem Division MGP sites and approximately $12 million relates to 
the Southem Division MGP sites. As compared with the approximately $34 million reserve discussed above, the Company 
believes that it is less likely that this additional $24 million will be incurred and therefore has not recorded it on its books. 

The Company's prudently incurred remediation costs for the Northem Division MGP sites have been authorized by the 
NJBPU to be recoverable in rates. The Company also believes that a portion of such costs may be recoverable from the 
Company's insurance carriers. The most recent base rate order for the Northem Division permits the Company to utilize full 
deferred accounting for expenditures related to MGP sites. The order also provides for the recovery of $130,000 mual ly  of 
MGP related expenditures incurred prior to the rate order. Accordingly, the Company has recorded a regulatoty asset of 
approximately $34 million as of September 30, 1997, reflecting the future recovery of environmental remediation liabilities 
related to the Northem Division MGP sites. The Company is able to recover actual MGP expenses over a rolling seven year 
period through its MGP Remediation Adjustment Clause (RAC). The NJBPU approved the Company's initial RAC rate filing 
on April 2,1997 at which time the Company began recovery of approximately $3.1 million, which represents environmental 
costs incurred from inception through June 30,1996. On August 5,1997, the Company submitted a second RAC rate filing 
to the NJBPU to recover an additional $ O S  million in environmental costs incurred from July I ,  1996 through June 30, 1997. 
Approval by the NJBPU on this second RAC rate filing is expected in early 1998. With respect to costs associated with the 
Southern Division MGP sites, the Company intends to pursue recovery from ratepayers, former owners and operators, and 
insurance carriers, although the Company is not able to express a belief as to whether any or all of these recovery efforts will 
be successful. The Company is working with the regulatory agencies to prudently manage its MGP costs so as to mitigate the 
impact of such costs on both ratepayers and shareholders. 

Gar Procurement Contracts. Certain of the Company's long-term contracts for the supply, storage and d e l i v q  of natural gas 
include fixed charges that amount to approximately $7 1 million annually. The Company currently recovers, and expects to 
continue to recover, such fixed charges through its purchased gas adjustment clauses. The Company also is committed to 
purchase, at market-related prices, minimum quantities of gas that, in the aggregate, are approximately IO billion cubic feet 
per year or to pay certain costs in the event the minimum quantities are not taken. The Company expects that minimum 
demand on its systems for the duration of these contracts will continue to exceed these minimum purchase obligations. 

http://www.nui.com/k97. htm 10/8/98 



Page 43 of47  k97 

Fiscal Ouarters 
- First Second Third Fourth 

1997: 

Operating Revenues $15 1,868 $204,077 $125,175 $127,477 
- 

Operating Income 10,767 19,668 5,074 120 

I I I 

Quarterly net income (loss) per share in both fiscal I997 and fiscal 1996 does not total to the annual amounts due to rounding 
and to changes in the average common shares outstanding. 

I 
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1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 
Income h m  continuing operations before 
'ncome taxes 

$30,172 $23,044 $8,644 $12,883 $20,837 

Page 44 of 47 

Less-Adjustment related to equity 
investments (1,334) 

recorded as a regulatory asset. The remaining fiscal 1994 additions of $1.9 million and all of fiscal 1995 
tions was recorded as an additional utility plant acquisition adjustment. See "Commitments and 

the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

EXHIBIT 12 

NUI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

(000's) 

Year Ended Sentember 30, 

-_ -_ -- -- 

teres element of rentals I I I I I I 
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charged to income (a) 3,299 

Eamings as defined 
Interest expense 

Interest expense 21,374 
Cauitalized in- I xfi 

Page 45 of 47 

I . * A n  
ptemt element of rentals charged to 

ONSOLDATED RATIO OF 
ARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

I 

19,808 19,814 16,3231 14,844 
I50 218 I20( 122 

I 

3.220 3.156 

%22.888$23.252%19.616%18.122 

- 1.37 - 1.66 - 2.15 

(a) Includes the interest element of rentals where determinable plus 1/3 of rental expense where no readily defmed interest 
element can be determined. 

EXHIBIT NO. 2 1 

SUBSIDIARIES OF NUI CORPORATION 

NUI Capital Corp. (a Florida corporation) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of NU1 Corporation. 

NUI Energy, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation), NU1 Energy Brokers, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation), Utility Business Services, 
Inc. (a New Jersey Corporation), NUI Environmental Group, Inc. (a New Jersey Corporation), NUI Energy Solutions Inc. (a 
New Jersey Corporation) and NUI Sales Management, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation) are wholly-owned subsidiaries of NUI 
Capital Corp. 

EXHIBIT NO. 23 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

As independent public accountants, we hereby consent to the incorporation by reference of our report dated November 6, 
1997, included in the Form IO-K, into the Company's previously filed Registration Statements File No. 33-56509 relating to 
Amendment No. 1 to Form S-3 Registration Statement, File No. 33-5 1459 relating to NU1 Direct, File No. 33-57183 
relating to the Savings and Investment Plan, File No 33-24 169 relating to the I988 Stock Plan, File No. 333-02425 relating 
to the 1996 Stock Oution and Stock Award Plan, File No. 333-02421 relating to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, and File 
No. 333-02423 relating to the 1996 Director Stock Purchase Plan. 

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP 

New York, New York 

December 24,1997 

SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Ex1 ge Act c 1934, the Registrant ha duly caused 
this report to be signed on its behalf' by the undersigned, thereunto duly authonzed, in the Township of Bedminster, State of 
New Jersey, on the day of December 

NUI CORPORATION 
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By: JAMES R. VAN HORN 

Vice President, General Counsel 

and Secretary 

President, Chief Executive Oficer and 
Director (principal executive officer) 

senior Vice President and Chief Financial 

JOHN KEAN, JR. December 22, 1997 

JOHN KEAN Chairman and Director December 22,1997 
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bffiCtT) 
C. R. CARVER pirector 
DR. VERA KING FARRIS 

Pursuant (0 the requements of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, tlus repon has been slgned by the fol lomg persons on 
behalfof the Regnuant and UI the capacities and on the daws mdicnted 

lO(ii) 

IO(x) 

1 O(xii) 

I , , ,  

Service Agreement under Rate Schedule GSS by and 
between Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation 
and EGC, dated July I ,  1996 
Service Agreement for Rate Schedule FTS-5 by and 
between Texas Eastem Transmission Corporation and 
EGC, dated March 18, I996 (Contract #33 150 I )  
Finn Transportation Service Agreement under FTS-2 
Rate Schedule by and between City Gas and Florida 

I b. MARK ABRAh4ovIc pfficer (Principal financial and accounting becember 22, 1997 

IO(&) 

1 O(xliii) 

lO(xliv) 

lO(Xlv) 

between Transcontinental Gas Pipeline and North 
Carolina Gas Service, dated July I ,  1996 
Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkon Gas and Eastem Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as of November I ,  1997 (Contract 
#O I 0003) 
Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastem Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as of November 1, I997 (Contract 
#01001 I )  
Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastem Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as of November I ,  I997 (Contract 

ISNAND Director December 22,1997 I 
JOHN WINTHROP irector ecember 22,1997 

INDEX TO EXHIBITS 
I 
I 

y-Laws, amended and restated as of September 23, 
1007 

b a s  Transmission, dated August 12, 1993 
IService Agreement under Rate Schedule GSS by and 

I#OlOOl2) 
[Senice Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
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I O(xlvi) I 
lO(xlvii) 

Page 47 of47 

#010013) 
Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastem Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as of November 1. I997 Contract 

I Elkton Gas and Eastem Shore Natural Gas 
ompany, dated as of November I ,  I997 (Contract 

lO(xlviii) 

. .  

#020003) 
Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastem Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as ofNovember I ,  1997 (Conh-act 
#020005) 
Consolidated Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 

Consent of Independent Public Accountants 

12 

21 Subsidiaries of NU1 Corporation 
23 
27 Financial Data Schedule 
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NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Income (Unaudited) 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts] 

Operating Margins 
Operating revenues 
Less - Purchased gas and 

fuel 
Gross receipts and 

franchise taxes 

Phree Months Ended 
December 31, 

1997  

$235,938 

175 ,663  

10.082 

50,193 
_ _ _ _ _ _  

Other Operating Expenses 
Operations and maintenance 
Depreciation and 

Other taxes 
Income taxes  

amortization 

Operating Income 

Other Income and Expense, Net 
Equity in earnings of TIC 
Enterprises, LLC. net 

Other 
Income taxes 

25,755 

6,554 
2 ,261  
3,755 

38,325 
- _ _ _  _ _ _  
_ _  _ _ _ _ _  

11 ,868  

137 
8 4 6  

( 3 4 4 1  

Interest Expense 

Net Income 

Net Income Per Share of Common 
Stock 

Dividends Per Share of Common 
Stock 

Weighted Average Number of 
Shares of Common Stock 
Outstanding 

Twelve Months 

December 31, 
Ended 

1 9 9 6  

$496,194 

293, 914 

35 ,875  

166,405 

96,533 

21,457 
8,760 
7,423 

134 ,173  

3 2 , 2 3 2  

. 
1,607 

15941 

See the notes to consolidated financial statements 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

(Dollars in thousands) 

December 31. September 30, 
1 9 9 7  1 9 9 7  

(Unaudited) 1.1 
ASSETS 
Utility Plant 



Utility plant, at original cost 
Accumulated depreciation and 

Unamortized plant acquisition 
amortization 

adjustments 

Funds for Construction Held by Trustee 

Investment in TIC Enterprises, LLC, net 

Investments in Marketable Securities 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable (less allowance 
for doubtful accounts of $2 ,356  and 
$2,318, respectively) 
Investment in marketable securities 
Fuel inventories, at average cost 
Unrecovered purchased gas costs 
Prepayments and other 

Other Assets 
Regulatory assets 
Deferred charges 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 
Capitalization 

Common shareholders' equity 
Preferred stock 
Long-term debt 

Capital Lease Obligations 

$690,759 

l222 .5951  

31,971 

500,135 

24,204 

26,216 

_ _ _ _ _  _ _  
_ _  -. _ _  - 
. -- -_ _ _  
- __. -. - 

- 

453  

$ 6 8 0 , 3 9 1  

(218 ,8951  

32,327 

493,823 

27,648 
_ _ _  _ _  _ _  

26,069 

2 ,570  

58 ,793  

114 ,778  64 ,499  
3,096 1,834 

27,544 31 ,068  
9,573 9,602 

23,722 22,953 

179 ,166  1 8 8 , 7 4 9  

$ 2 2 4 . 3 0 1  

229,076 
- 

453,377 

9,283 

54,607 
10 ,199  

64 ,806  

$ 2 1 8 , 2 9 1  

Current Liabilities 
Notee payable to banks 86,965 54 ,428  

Current portion of capital lease 
obligations 1,542 1,587 

ACCOUntS payable, customer deposits 
and accrued liabilities 102 ,570  96,655 
Federal income and other taxes 5,526 4,049 

Current portion of long-term debt - 54,600 

- _ _  _ _ _ _  
196 ,603  
. _ _  _ _  _ _  

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 
Deferred Federal income taxes 62,952 
Unamortized investment tax credits 6,066 
Environmental remediation reserve 33 ,981  
Regulatory and other liabilities 33,602 

136 ,601  

$795,864 

- _ _  _ _ _ _  
_ _  _ _  _ _  

_______ _______ 

'Derived from audited financial statements 
See the notes to consolidated financial statements 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Cash F l o w s  (Unaudited1 

(Dol la rs  in thousands) 

Three Months Twelve Months 
Ended Ended 



December 31, December 31. 
1 9 9 7  1 9 9 6  1 9 9 1  1 9 9 6  

Operating Activities 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income 
to net cash provided by operating 
activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred Federal income taxes 
Amortization of deferred 
investment tax Credits 

Other 
Effect of changes in: 
Accounts receivable, net 
Fuel inventories ~~ ~ 

Accounts payable, deposits and 

Over lunderl recovered purchased 
accruals 

gas costs 
Other 

$ 7 , 4 2 1  

6,812 
637 

I1051 
12211 

150,2191 
3,524 

5, 915  

2 9  
1,443 

Net cash lused in1 provided by 
operating activities 124,8241 

Financing Activities 
Proceeds from sales of common stock, 

Dividends to shareholders 
Proceeds from issuance of 

Funds for Construction held by 

Repayments of long-term debt 
Principal payments under capital 

Net Short-term borrowings 

net of treasury stock purchased 

long-term debt 

trwtee, net 

lease obligations 

Irepayments1 

Net cash provided by lused i n 1  
financing activities 

Investing Activities 
Cash expenditures for utility plant 
Investment in TIC Enterprises, LLC 
Other 

Net cash used in investing 
activities 

Net increase (decrease1 in Cash and 
cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
At beginning of period 
At end of period 

Supplemental Disclosures of 

Income taxes paid [refunds 

Interest paid 

Cash f l o w s  

received), net 

1 ,400  
13,0701 

- 
3,784 

( 5 4 , 6 0 0 )  

1 4 4 1 1  

32,537 

120,3901 _ _ _ _ _ _  

111.5481 

11,578)  

- 

113,126) 

$158 .340)  

$58,193 
453 

$2 ,300  
$1 ,429  

$ 6 . 7 7 3  $20,297 $15,223 

6 ,611  24,181 23,165 
4 7 1  3,412 6,905 

1 1 1 6 )  14531 14671 
1 , 2 7 5  1 4 7 6 )  4,997 

140,129)  131,0611 18,6741 
2,519 1 8 7 2 )  16,4551 

12,036 22,012 15 ,190  

16,7971 4,212 119,3041 
6,083 114,3471 110,3051 
__.___ _ _ _ _ _ _  ____._ 

(11,2141  2 6 , 9 0 5  20 ,275  _ _ _ _ _ _  _ _ _ _ _ _  ---___ 

8 8 3  
12,6201 

- 
4,076 

. 

1 4 9 1 )  

21,430 _ _ _ _ _ _  

23.278 _ _ _ _ _ _  

2 8 , 7 2 1  32,254 
111.025 I 19 ,251  I 

53 ,569  39,000 

18 ,492  (25 ,1511  
155,550) 130,0941 

11,6801 11,7391 

10 ,640  18,104 _ _ _ _ _ _  __--_- 

43,167 23,123 _ _ _ _ _ _  _ _ _ _ _ _  

110,2771 152 ,637)  137,5021 

11781 257  12.7501 
- ( 2 2 , 5 8 4 )  - 

$3,736 $5,345 $ 2 ,199  
5,345 453 5 ,345  

$ 1 5 4 1 1  $7 .855  $ 2 . 0 6 5  
$5,518 $ 2 1 , 6 7 1  $ 1 8 . 0 8 7  

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements 



1.Basis of Presentation 

The consolidated financial statements include all operating divisions 
and subsidiaries of NU1 Corporation Icollectively referred to a s  the 
"Company"]. The Company is a multi-state energy sales, services and 
distribution company. Its natural gas Utility operations distribute 
natural gas and provide related customer services in six states 
through its Northern and Southern utility divisions. The Northern 
Division operates in New Jersey a s  Elizabethtown Gas Company. The 
Southern Division operates in five states as City Gas Company of 
Florida, North Carolina Gas, Elkton Gas IMarylandJ, Valley Cities Gas 
(Pennsylvania1 and Waverly Gas (New Yorkl. The Company also provides 
retail gas sales and related services through its NU1 Energy, Inc. 
subsidiary; wholesale energy brokerage and related services through 
its NU1 Energy Brokers. Inc. subsidiary; customer information systems 
and services through its Utility Business Services, Inc. subsidiary; 
and sales and marketing outsourcing through its 4 9 %  equity interest in 
TIC Enterprises, LLC. 

The consolidated financial statements contained herein have been 
prepared without audit in accordance with the rules and regulations of 
the Securities and Exchange Commission and reflect a l l  adjustments 
which, in the opinion of management, are necessary for a fair 
Statement of the results for interim periods. All adjustments made 
were of a normal recurring nature. The preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. The consolidated financial Statements should be read in 
con]unction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes 
thereto that are included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K 
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1 9 9 7 .  Certain 
reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial 
statements to conform with the current year presentation. 

The Company is subject to regulation as an Operating utility by the 
public utility commissions of the states in which it operates. 
Because of the seasonal  nature of gas utility operations, the results 
for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results for 
an entire year. 

2 . C o m o n  Shareholders' Equity 

The components of common shareholders' equity were as follows (dollars 
in thousands): 

December 31, September 30, 
1997 1997 

Common stock, no par value $203 ,026  $201,549 
Shares held in treasury (1,6921 (1,6151 
Retained earnings 23 ,611  19,260 
Unrealized gain on marketable securities 120 
Unearned employee compensation ( 6 4 4 1  

Total common shareholders' equity $224 ,301  $218 ,291  

. 

(1,0231 _ _ _  _ _  _ _  - _ _ _  _ _  - 
_______ _______ _______ ______- 

3 .  New Accounting Standard 

During the first quarter of fiscal 1996. the Company adopted Statement 
of Financial Accounting Standards NO. 128,  "Earnings per Share" (SFAS 
1 2 8 ) .  This statement superseded Accounting Principles Board Opinion 
NO. 15, "Earnings per Share" and simplifieS the computation of 
earnings per Share. The adoption of SFAS 1 2 8  did not have an effect on 
the Company's calculation of earnings per share. 

4.Contingencies 

Environmental Matters. The Company is subject to federal and State 
laws with respect to water, air quality, solid waste disposal and 
employee health and safety matters, and to environmental regulations 



issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency IEPA), the 
New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection iNJDEPi and other 
federal and state agencies. 

The Company owns, or previously owned, certain properties on which 
manufactured gas Plants LMGPI were Operated by the Company or by other 
parties in the past. Coal tar residues a r e  present on the six MGP 
sites located in the Northern Division. The Company has reported the 
presence of the six MGP sites to the EPA, the NJDEP and the New Jersey 
Board of Public Utilities INJBPU). In 1991, the NJDEP issued an 
Administrative Consent Order for an MGP site located at South Street 
in Elizabeth. New Jersey, wherein the Company agreed to Conduct a 
remedial investigation and to design and implement a remediation plan. 
In 1992 and 1993, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Agreement 
with the NJDEP for each of the other five Northern Division MGP sites. 
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Administrative Consent 
Order and the Memoranda of Agreement, the Company is conducting 
remedial activities at all six sites with oversight from the NJDEP. 

The Southern Division owned ten former MGP facilities, only three of 
which it currently owns. The former MGP sites are located in the 
States of North Carolina, South Carolina, Pennsylvania, New York and 
Maryland (the "Southern Division MGP sites"). The Company has joined 
with other North Carolina utilities to form the North Carolina 
Manufactured Gas Plant Group (the "MGP Group"). The MGP Group has 
entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with the North Carolina 
Department of Environment, Health and Natural Resources (NCDEHNRI to 
develop a uniform program and framework for the investigation and 
remediation of MGP Sites in North Carolina. The Memorandum of 
Understanding contemplates that the actual investigation and 
remediation of Specific Sites will be addressed pursuant to 
Administrative Consent Orders between the NCDEHNR and the responsible 
parties. The NCDEHNR has recently sought the investigation and 
remediation of sites owned by members of the MGP Group and has entered 
into Administrative Consent Orders with respect to four such sites. 
None of these four Sites are currently or w e r e  previously owned by the 
Company. 

The Company, with the aid of environmental Consultants, regularly 
assesses the potential future Costs associated with conducting 
investigative activities at each of the Company's sites and 
implementing appropriate remedial actions, a s  well as the likelihood 
of whether such actions will be necessary. The Company records a 
reserve if it is probable that a liability will be incurred and the 
amount of the liability is reasonably estimable. Based on the 
Company's most recent assessment, the Company has recorded a total 
reserve for environmental investigation and remediation costs of 
approximately $ 3 4  million, which the Company expects to expend during 
the next twenty years. The reserve is net of approximately $ 4  million 
which will be borne by a prior owner and operator of two of the 
Northern Division $ice5 in accordance with a Cost sharing agreement. 
of this approximate $ 3 4  million reserve, approximately $30 million 
relates to Northern Division MGP sites and approximately $ 4  million 
relates to Southern Division MGP sites. However, the Company believes 
that it is possible that costs associated with conducting 
investigative activities and implementing remedial activities, if 
necessary, with respect to all of its MGP Sites may exceed the 
approximately $ 3 4  million reserve by an amount that could range up to 
$24 million and be incurred during a future period of time that may 
range up to fifty years. Of this $ 2 4  million in additional possible 
future expenditures, approximately $12 million relates to the Northern 
Division MGP sites and approximately $12 million relates to the 
Southern Division MGP sites. AS compared with the approximately $ 3 4  
million reserve discussed above, the Company believes that it is less 
likely that this additional $24 million will be incurred and therefore 
has not recorded it on its books. 

The Company's prudently incurred remediation cost5 for the Northern 
Division MGP Sites have been authorized by the NJBPU to be recoverable 
in rates. The Company also believes that a portion of such Costs may 
be recoverable from the Company's insurance Carriers. The most recent 
base rate order for the Northern Division permits the Company to 
utilize full deferred accounting far expenditures related to MGP 
sites. The order also provides for the recovery of $130,000 annually 
of MGP related expenditures incurred prior to the rate order. 
Accordingly, the Company has recorded a regulatory asset of 
approximately $ 3 4  million as of December 31, 1997, reflecting the 
future recovery of environmental remediation liabilities related to 



the Northern Division MGP Sites. The Company is able to recover actual 
MGP expenses over a rolling Seven year period through its MGP 
Remediation Adjustment Clause IRACI. The NJBPU approved the company's 
initial RAC rate filing on April 2, 1997 at which time the Company 
began recovery of approximately $3.1 million, Which represents 
environmental costs incurred from inception through June 30, 1996. on 
August 5, 1997, the Company Submitted a second RAC rate filing to the 
NJBPU to recover an additional $0.5 million in environmental costs 
incurred from July 1, 1996 through June 30, 1 9 9 7 .  Approval by the 
NJBPU on this second RAC rate filing is expected in the Spring. With 
respect to costs associated with the Southern Division MGP sites, the 
Company intends to pursue recovery from ratepayers, former owners and 
operators, and insurance carriers, although the Company is not able to 
express a belief as to whether any or all of these recovery efforts 
will be successful. The Company is working with the regulatory 
agencies to prudently manage its MGP Costs so a s  to mitigate the 
impact of such Costs on both ratepayers and shareholders. 

Other. The Company is involved in various claims and litigation 
incidental to its business. In the Opinion of management, none of 
these claims and litigation will have a material adverse effect on the 
Company's results of operations or its financial condition. 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Summary Consolidated Operating Data 

Operating Revenues ( D o l l a r s  
in thousands1 
Firm S a l e s :  

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Interruptible Sales 
Unregulated Sales 
Transportation Services 
Customer Service, Appliance 
Leasing and Other 

Gas Sold or Transported 

Firm Sales: 
(MnCfI 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Interruptible Sales 
Unregulated Sales 
Transportation Services 

Average Utility Customers 
Served 
Firm Sales: 

Residential 
Commercial ~~~ ~~~~ ~ 

Industrial 
Interruptible Sales 
TransDOrtation 

Degree Days in New Jersey 
Actual 
Normal 
Percentage variance from 
normal 

Three Months 
Ended 

December 31, 
1997 1996 

7,446 7,133 

1,268 1,370 

36,986 10.496 
7,845 6,501 

4,249 4,433 

3.725 3,708 

Twelve Month3 
Ended 

December 31, 
1997 1996 

$206,899 $195,603 
i05,izo 107,348 

56,578 53,788 
23,176 25,610 

254,471 75,331 
30,127 24,054 

61,519 33,641 116,094 110,245 

336,038 
24,366 

308 
121 

1,467 

362,300 
_ _ _ _ _ _  

_ _ _ _ _ _ _  _______  
1,718 
1,725 

3% 
colder 

1,746 
1,725 

1% 
colder 

336,032 
24,344 

305 
121 

1,533 - _ _ _  _ _ _  
362,335 _ _ _ _ _ _ _  _______ 

4,804 
4,918 

3% 
warmer 

333,143 
24,401 

328 
126 
849 _ _ _ _ _ _  

358,847 _______ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  
5,203 
4,918 

5% 
colder 



Employees (period end) 1,147 1,109 

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed 
Charges (Twelve months 
only) 2.15 1.99 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 

and Results of Operations 

The following discussion and analysis refers to NU1 Corporation and 
all of its operating divisions and subsidiaries (collectively referred 
to a s  the '"Company"). The Company is a multi-state energy sales, 
services and distribution company. Its natural gas utility operations 
distribute natural gas and provide related customer services in six 
States through its Northern and Southern utility divisions. The 
Northern Division operates in New Jersey a s  Elizabethtown Gas Company. 
The Southern Division operates in five states a s  City Gas Company of 
Florida, North Carolina Gas, Elkton Gas (Maryland), Valley Cities Gas 
(Pennsylvania) and Waverly Gas (New YoTk). The Company also provides 
retail gas sales and related services through its NU1 Energy I n c .  
subsidiary; wholesale energy brokerage and related services through 
its NU1 Energy Brokers, Inc. subsidiary; customex information systems 
and services through its Utility Business Services, Inc. subsidiary; 
and sales and marketing outsourcing through its 4 9 %  equity interest in 
TIC Enterprises, LLC ("TIC"). Because of the seasonal nature of gas 
utility operations, the results for interim periods are not 
necessarily indicative of the results for an entire year. 

Results of Operations 

Three-Month Periods Ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 

Net Income. Net income for the three-month period ended December 31, 
1997 was $7.4 million, or $0.60 per share, as compared with net income 
of $6.8 million, or $0.61 per share, for the three-month period ended 
December 31, 1996. The increase in net income in the current period 
was primarily due to higher Operating margins, partially Offset by 
higher operations and maintenance expenses, interest and depreciation 
expenses. 

Net income per share in the current period was also affected by the 
increased number of outstanding shares of common Stock over the prior 
period, principally reflecting the Company's issuance of approximately 
1 million additional shares in September 1997. 

Operating Revenues and Operating Margins. The Company's operating 
revenues include amounts billed for the Cost of purchased gas pursuant 
to purchased gas adjustment clauses. Such clauses enable the Company 
to pass through to ita customers, via periodic adjustments to 
customers' bills, increased or decreased Costs incurred by the Company 
for purchased gas without affecting Operating margins. Since the 
Company's utility operations do not earn a profit on the sale of the 
gas commodity, the Company's level of operating revenues is not 
necessarily indicative of financial performance. The Company's 
operating revenues increased by $84.5 million, or 56%, for the three- 
month period ended December 31, 1997 as compared with the three-month 
period ended December 31, 1996, principally due to an increase of 
approximately $74.8 million in unregulated revenues due to greater 
activity in these operations. Operating revenues also increased as a 
result of customer growth and colder weather in the Company's utility 
operations. 

The Company's operating margins increased by $3.3 million, or 7.0%. 
for the three-month period ended December 31, 1997 a s  compared with 
the three-month period ended December 31, 1996. The increase 
principally reflects an increase of approximately $3  million by the 
Company's utility distribution operations primarily due to the effect 
of colder weather not fully returned to customers through the 
Company's weather normalization clauses, the full effect of a rate 
increase in Florida which was effective during the first quarter of 
fiscal 1997, and customer growth. The Company's customer service 
 peri if ions contributed approximately $0.5 million increase in 
o p r r a ~ i r r g  margins primarily due to the effect of a rate increase in 
the appliance leasing program. Operating margins from the Company's 



unregulated operations decreased approximately $0.2 million mainly as 
a result of changing market conditions and slower customer additions 
in the Company's retail market operations. The Company has weather 
normalization clauses in its New Jersey and North Carolina tariff 
which a r e  designed to help stabilize the Company's results by 
increasing amounts charged to Customers when weather has been warmer 
than normal and by decreasing amounts charged when weather has been 
colder than normal. AS a result of weather normalization clauses, 
operating margins were approximately $0.4 million less in the fiscal 
1998 period. than they otherwise would have been without such clauses. 
In the fiscal 1997 period, operating margins w e r e  approximately $0.2 
million less than they otherwise would have been without such clauses. 

Other Operating Expenses. Operations and maintenance expenses 
increased approximately $0.7 million, or 3 8 ,  f o r  the three-month 
period ended December 31, 1997 as compared with the three-month period 
ended December 31, 1996. The increase was primarily the result of 
higher expenses associated with the continued growth in the Company's 
unregulated operations and to reversal of certain reserves in the 
prior year period Which management determined to be no longer 
required. These increases were partially offset by a higher pension 
credit primarily as a result of the investment performance of the 
pension plan assets. 

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased approximately $0.8 
million primarily due to additional plant in service. 

Income tax expense increased by approximately $0.6 million in the 
current a s  a result of higher pre-tax income. 

Other Income and (Expense], Net. Other income and expense, net 
increased approximately $0.1 million for the three-month period ended 
December 31, 1997 as compared with the three-month period ended 
December 31, 1996, principally due to approximately $0.1 million of 
net equity earnings of TIC. 

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by approximately $0.6 
million for  the three-month period ended December 31, 1997 as compared 
with the three-month period ended December 31, 1996. The increase 
principally reflects higher average short-term borrowings ( s e e  
- Financing Activities and Resources-) and higher average long-term 
borrowings due to the draw down of funds held f o r  construction 
purposes. Such draw downs have the effect of lowering interest income 
on the funds held by trustee. 

Twelve-Month Periods Ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 

Net Income. Net income for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 
1997 was $ 2 0 . 3  million, or $1.76 per share, as compared with $15.2 
million, or $1.48 per share, for the twelve-month period ended 
December 31, 1996. The increase in the current period was primarily 
due to higher operating margins, higher other income and lower 
operations and maintenance expense, partially offset by higher 
depreciation, general taxes and interest expenses. 

Net income per share for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 
1997 was also affected by the increased average number of outstanding 
shares of NU1 common Stock as compared with the prior twelve-month 
period, principally reflecting the Company's issuance of 1 million 
shares in September 1997 and 1.8 million additional shares in May 
1996. 

Operating Revenues and Operating Margins. The Company's operating 
revenues fo r  the twelve-month period ended December 31, 1997 increased 
approximately $196.9 million, or 39.7%. as compared with the twelve- 
month period ended December 31, 1997. The increase was principally due 
to an increase in unregulated sales of approximately $176.9 million, 
the effect of purchased gas adjustment clauses, a base rate increase 
in the Company's Florida service territory, increased Customer service 
and appliance leasing  revenue^, and customer growth. These increases 
were partially offset by the effect of warmer weather, mainly in New 
Jersey, where it was 8 %  warmer than the prior year and 3% warmer than 
normal. 

The Company's operating margins increased by approximately $10 
million, or 6%. for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 1997 a s  
compared with the twelve-month period ended December 31, 1996. The 



increase reflects approximately $6.6 mrllion of  additional margins 
generated by the Company's utility distribution operations, 
approximately $1.7 million of additional margins on sales by the 
Company's unregulated operations, and approximately $1.7 million of 
additional customer Service and appliance leasing revenues. The 
increase in utility distribution margins was mainly due to the full 
effect of the base rate increase in Florida and customer growth, 
partially offset by the effect of warmer weather in the current 
twelve-month period in all of  the Company's service territories, part 
of which was not fully recovered from Customers under weather 
normalization clauses. The increase in Customer service and appliance 
leasing margins was primarily due to the f u l l  effect of  a rate 
increase in the Company's Florida appliance leasing program. AS a 
result of weather normalization clauses, operating margins w e r e  
approximately $ 2 . 5  million more in the Current twelve-month period, 
than they otherwise would have been without such clauses. In the prior 
twelve-month period, operating margins w e r e  approximately $1.0 million 
less than they otherwise Would have been without such clauses. 

Other Operating Expenses. Operations and maintenance expenses 
decreased approximately $0.5 million. or 1%. fo r  the twelve-month 
period ended December 31, 1997 a s  compared with the twelve-month 
period ended December 31, 1996. The decrease was primarily due to a 
higher pension credit, the capitalization of costs associated with the 
development and implementation of n e w  information technology, lower 
insurance expenses and the reversal  of certain reserves which 
management determined to be no longer required. These decreases w e r e  
partially offset by an increase in expenses associated with the 
continued growth in the Company's unregulated operations. 

The increase in depreciation and amortization expenses of 
approximately $2.3 million was primarily due to additional plant in 
service. 

Other taxes increased approximately $0.5 million as a result of higher 
real estate, sales and payroll-related taxes. 

Income taxes increased by $2.4 million f o r  the twelve-month period 
ended December 31, 1997 due to higher pre-tax income. 

Other Income and Expense, Net. Pre-tax other income and expense, net, 
increased approximately $2.1 million for the twelve-month period ended 
December 31, 1997 as compared with the 1996 period, principally due to 
approximately $1.5 million of net equity earnings in TIC and the sale 
of property in the Southern Division which resulted in a gain of 
approximately $ 0 . 1  million. 

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by $1.5 million, or 8 % ,  
f o r  the 1997 period as compared with the 1996 period primarily due an 
increase in short-term interest expense due to higher levels of 
outstanding borrowings. This increase was partially offset by lower 
average long-term borrowings a s  a result of the repayment of amounts 
outstanding under the Company's $30 million credit agreement in May 
1996. 

Regulatory Matters 

In July 1 9 9 7 ,  the State of New Jersey enacted legislation that 
eliminated the gross receipts and franchise taxes effective January 1, 
199E.  These taxes were replaced with a 6% sales tax on sales of 
electricity and natural gas, a corporate business tax currently paid 
by all "on-utility corporations in the State, and a third tax called 
the Transitional Energy Facilities Assessment t a x  (TEFAI. The 
legislation was intended, in part, to provide comparability between 
utilities that pay gross receipts and franchise taxes and non-utility 
energy companies that do not. A key objective of this legislation was 
to maintain energy tax revenue neutrality in 1998, seeking to collect 
approximately the same amount in n e w  taxes as collected with gross 
receipts and franchise taxes in 1997. The TEfA tax is scheduled to be 
phased out at a rate of approximately 20% per year starting in 1999. 
These tax changes a r e  designed to have no effect on the Company's net 
income o r  on overall rates charged to Customers, until the TEfA 
reductions occur, and Should not have a material effect on working 
capital. The Company paid approximately $25 million of gross receipts 
and franchise taxes to the State in 1997. 

On November 20, 1997, the Northern Division amended its July 31, 1997 



proposal filed with the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities INJBPU) 
to increase its annual purchased gas adjustment revenues by 
approximately $14.1 million and change the way it recovers gas supply 
Costs from its different classes of customers. The filing proposes to 
collect separately the commodity component of purchased gas and the 
fixed costs the Company incurs on behalf of its customers to supply 
gas service. The filing also includes a request to incorporate a 
performance based mechanism whereby Northern Division Customers and 
the Company would benefit from the Company's ability to Secure gas at 
rates more favorable than a market index benchmark. The proposed 
mechanism would provide an 8 0 / 2 0  sharing, with Northern Division 
customers receiving the greater percentage of risk and opportunity on 
the difference between a monthly market benchmark and the actual Cost 
of purchased gas. Action by the NJBPU on the Company's proposal is 
expected in the Spring. 

Financing Activities and Resources 

The Company had a net use of cash from operating activities of $24.8 
million and $11.2 million for the three-month periods ended December 
31. 1997 and 1996, respectively. The increase in net cash used for 
operating activities for the three-month period ended December 31, 
1997 was primarily due to the timing of payments to gas suppliers 
partially offset by additional collections of gas Costs under the 
Company's purchased gas adjustment clauses. For the twelve-month 
period ended December 31, 1991, the Company's net cash provided by 
operating activities was $26.9 million as compared with $20.3 million 
in the prior year period. The increase in net cash provided by 
operating activities for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 
1997 was mainly due to collections of gas Costs under the Company's 
purchased gas adjustment clauses. 

Because the Company's business is highly s e a s o n a l ,  short-term debt is 
used to meet seasonal working capital requirements. The Company also 
borrows under its bank lines of credit to finance portions of its 
capital expenditures, pending refinancing through the issuance of 
equity or long-term indebtedness at a later date depending upon 
prevailing market conditions. 

Short-Term Debt. The weighted average daily amounts outstanding of 
notes payable to banks and the weighted average interest rates on 
those amounts were $19.4 million at 5.95% far the three-month period 
ended December 31, 1991 and $65.2 million at 5.35% for the three-month 
period ended December 31, 1996. The weighted average daily amounts of 
notes payable to banks increased principally due to additional 
borrowings to finance portions of the Company's capital expenditures 
and to the timing of payments to gas suppliers. At December 31, 1997, 
the Company had outstanding notes payable to banks amounting to $87 
million and available unused lines of credit amounting to $54 million. 
Notes payable to banks increased as o f  December 31, 1991 as compared 
to the balance outstanding at September 30, 1997, due to seasonal 
borrowing requirements. 

On February 9, 1998, the Company sold its remaining portfolio of 
marketable securities for approximately $3  million. The proceeds were 
used to pay down short-term debt. Accordingly, the investment in 
marketable securities is classified a s  a current asset in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. 

Long-Term Debt and Funds for Construction Held by Trustee. In November 
1994, the Company filed a shelf registration statement with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission for an aggregate of up to $100 
million of debt or equity securities. AS of December 31, 1997, the 
Company has issued $70 million of Medium-term Notes subject to the 
shelf registration statement. While the Company has no present 
intention to issue additional securities subject to the shelf 
registration, such securities may be issued from time to time, 
depending upon the Company's needs and prevailing market conditions. 

The Company deposits in trust the unexpended portion of the net 
proceeds from its Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds Until drawn upon for 
eligible expenditures. As of December 31, 1991. the total unexpended 
portions of all of the Company's Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds were $20 
million and are classified on the Company's consolidated balance 
sheet, including interest earned thereon, as funds for construction 
held by trustee. 



The Company prepaid $ 5 4 . 6  million of its Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds 
in October 1997 with proceeds received in fiscal 1997 from a new band 
issuance. 

Common Stock. The Company periodically issues shares of common stock 
in connection with NU1 Direct, the Company's dividend reinvestment 
plan, and other employee benefit plans. The proceeds from such 
issuances amounted to approximately $1.5 million and $0.9 million for 
the three-month periods ended December 31, 1997 and 1996. 
respectively, and were used primarily to reduce outstanding short-term 
debt. 

Dividends. On November 6, 1997, the Company increased its quarterly 
dividend to $0.245 per share of Common Stock. The previous quarterly 
rate was $0.235 per share of common stock. 

The Company's long-term debt agreements include, among other things, 
restrictions as to the payment of cash dividends. Under the most 
restrictive of these provisions, the Company is permitted to pay 
approximately $41.8 million of cash dividends at December 31, 1997. 

Capital Expenditures and Commitments 

Capital expenditures, which consist primarily of expenditures to 
expand and upgrade the Company's gas distribution systems, were $11.5 
million for the three-month period ended December 31, 1997 as compared 
with $10.3 million for the three-month period ended December 31, 1996. 
Capital expenditures are expected to be approximately $60 million for 
a l l  of fiscal 1998, a s  compared with a total of $ 5 2 . 3  million in 
fiscal 1997. 

The Company owns  or previously owned six former manufactured gas plant 
I M G P I  sites in the Northern Division and ten M G P  sites in the Southern 
Division. The Company, with the aid of environmental consultants, 
regularly assesses the potential futuIe costs associated with 
conducting remedial actions, as well as the likelihood of whether such 
actions will be necessary. The Company records a reserve if it is 
probable that a liability will be incurred and the amount of the 
liability is reasonably estimable. Based on the Company's most recent 
assessment, the Company has recorded a total reserve for environmental 
investigation and remediation Costs of approximately $ 3 4  million, 
which the Company expects it will expend in the next twenty years to 
remediate the Company's M G P  sites. Of this reserve, approximately $30 
million relates to Northern Division M G P  Sites and approximately $ 4  
million relates to Southern Division M G P  Sites. However, the Company 
believes that it is possible that Costs associated with Conducting 
investigative activities and implementing remedial actions, if 
necessary, with respect to all of its M G P  sites may exceed the 
approximately $34 million reserve by an amount that could range up to 
$24 million and be incurred during a future period of time that may 
range up to fifty years. Of this $24 million in possible future 
expenditures, approximately $12 million relates to the Northern 
Division M G P  sites and approximately $12 million relates to the 
Southern Division M G P  sites. As compared with the approximately $34 
million reserve discussed above, the Company believes that it is less 
likely that this additional $24 million will be incurred and therefore 
has not recorded it on its books. The Company believes that all Costs 
associated with the Northern Division M G P  sites will be recoverable in 
rates or from insurance carriers. The Company is able to recover 
actual M G P  expenses over a rolling seven-year period through its M G P  
Remediation Adjustment Clause [PAC). The NJBPU approved the Company's 
initial PAC rate filing on April 2, 1997 at which time the Company 
began recovery of approximately $3.1 million, which represents 
environmental Costs incurred from inception through June 30, 1996. On 
August 5. 1997, the Company submitted a second RAC rate filing to the 
N J B P U  to recover an additional $0.5 million in environmental costs 
incurred from July 1, 1996 through June 30, 1997. Approval by the 
N J B P U  on this second RAC rate filing is expected in the Spring. With 
respect to costs which may be associated with the Southern Division 
M G P  sites, the Company intends to pursue recovery from ratepayers, 
former owners and operators of the Sites and from insurance carriers. 
However, the Company is not able at this time to express a belief as 
to whether any or all of these recovery efforts related to the 
Southern Division M G P  sites will ultimately be successful. for a 
further discussion of environmental matters see Note 11 of the Notes - -  *b.e Consolidated Financial Statements. 



Certain of the Company's long-term contracts for the supply, storage 

approximately 5 1 3  million annually. The Company currently recovers, 
and expects to continue to recover, such fixed charges through its 
purchased gas adjustment clauses. The Company also is committed to 
purchase, at market-related prices, minimum quantities of gas that, in 
the aggregate, are approximately 9 billion cubic feet per year or to 
pay certain Costs in the event the minimum quantities are not taken. 
The Company expects that minimum demand on its systems for the 
duration of these contracts will continue to exceed these minimum 
purchase obligations. 

The Company is scheduled to repay $20 million of Medium-Term Notes in 
August 2002. 

' and delivery of natural gas include fixed charges that amount to 
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securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months 
(or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to 
file such reportsl, and ( 2 1  has been subject to such filing 
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x NO 



APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS: 

The number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant's 
classes of common stock, as of April 30, 1998: Common Stock, No 
Par Value: 12,636,331 shares outstanding. 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Income IUnaudited) 
(Dol la rs  in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Six Months 
Ended 
March 31 

1 9 9 8  

Operating Margins 
Operating revenues 
Less - Purchased gas and 
fuel 

Energy taxes 

Other Operating Expenses 
Operations and 
maintenance 
Depreciation and 
amortization 
Other taxes 
Income taxes 

Operating Income 

Other Income and Expense, 
Net 
Equity in earnings of TIC 
Enterprises, LLC, net 
Other 
Income taxes 

Interest Expense 

Net Income 

Net Income Per Share of 
Common Stock 

Dividends Per share of 
Common Stock 

Weighted Average Number of 
Shares of Common Stock 

$258.798 $204 .483  

1 9 1 , 7 6 1  1 3 2 , 2 3 9  
4,442 13 ,475  

65,595 58 ,769  
__ 

__ __ 

2 3 , 0 3 0  22,433 

6,522 5,496 
2,686 2 , 7 7 1  

10 ,721  8 ,401  

__ ~ 

42.959 39,101 

- ~ 

19,636 19,668 

$494,736 

367.424 
14,524 

1 1 2 , 7 8 8  
~ 

48 ,785 

13 ,076  
4,947 

14 ,476  

81,284 
~ 

31,504 

108 

920  
(3601 

668 

9,688 

~ 

__ 

$22.484 

Twelve Months 
Ended 

March 31 
1 9 9 7  1998 

$355.987 $747,387 

226,335 543 .012  
23 ,935  24,187 

105 ,675  1 8 0 , 1 8 8  
~ ~ 

~ ~ 

4 1 , 4 4 4  96,617 

11 ,276  24,832 
4,968 9 .168  

11 ,552  12,217 
~ ~ 

75 ,240  142,834 
__ ~ 

30,435 37,354 



N U 1  Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 
IDollars in thousands1 

ASSETS 
Utility Plant 

Utility plant, at original cost 
Accumulated depreciation and 

Unamortized plant acquisition 
amortization 

adjustments 

March 31, September 30, 
1998 1997 
IUnaudited) ( * I  

$705.555 
1227,0401 

31.616 

__ 
510,131 

$680,391 
1218.8951 

32,327 

~ 

493,823 

Funds for Construction Held by 
Trustee 

20,351 27,648 

Investment in TIC Enterprises, LLC, 
net 

24,038 

Investments in Marketable 
Securities, at market 

26,069 

~ 

2,570 

Other Investments 1,342 170 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Accounts receivable lless 
allowance for doubtful accounts 
of$2 ,795  and $2,318, 
respectively] 

Investments in marketable 
securities, at market 

Fuel inventories, at average cos1 
Unrecovered purchased gas costs 
Prepayments and other 

Other Assets 
Regulatory assets 
Deferred charges 

2,250 

98,223 

98 

10,350 
6,386 

28.752 

146,059 
___ 
- 

54,198 
11,692 

65,890 

$761,811 

~ 

~ 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 
Capitalization 

Common shareholders' equity 
Preferred stock 
Long-term debt 

$238,570 

229,084 

467,654 

- 

~ 

58.193 

6 4 , 4 9 9  

1.834 

31,068 
9,602 
22,953 
__ 
188,749 
__ 

54,607 
10,029 

64,636 

$803,665 

~ 

~ 

$218,291 

229,069 

447,360 
~ 



Capital Lease Obligations 9,044 9,679 
__ ~ 

Current Liabilities 
Notes payable to banks 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Current portion of capital lease 
obligations 

Accounts payable, customer 
deposits and accrued liabilities 

federal income and other taxes 

Deferred Credits and Other 
Liabilities 

Deferred federal income taxes 
Unamortized investment tax 

Environmental remediation reserve 
Regulatory and other liabilities 

credits 

47,145 54,428 
- 54,600 

1,671 1,587 

88,868 96,655 

16,116 4,049 

153,800 211,319 
___ __ 
~ __ 

63,589 
5,951 

33.981 
33,792 

62,391 
6,171 

33,981 
32,764 

~ ~ 

137,313 135,307 
~ ___ 
$761,811 S803.665 ________ ________ ________ ________ 

'Derived from audited financial statements 
See the notes to the consolidated financial Statements 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Cash flows (Unaudited) 
[Dol la rs  in thousands1 

Operating Activities 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net 
income to net cash 
provided by operating 
activities: 
Depreciation and 
amortization 
Deferred federal 
Income taxes 

Amortization of deferred 
investment tax credits 
Other 
Effect Of changes in: 
Accounts receivable. net 
Fuel inventories 

Accounts payable, 
deposits and accruals 
Over (under1 recovered 
purchased gas costs 
Other 

Net cash provided by 

Six Months 
Ended 

March 31, 
1998 1997 

$22,484 522,086 

13,615 11,798 

1,274 915 

( 2 2 1 1  12321 

513 1.809 

133,724 (48,2791 
20,718 20.921 

(5,6371 11,3581 

3,216 16,9961 

6,645 ~1,7081 
~~ 

Twelve Months 
Ended 

March 31, 
1998 1991 

$20,047 

25,857 

3,605 

(4531 

(2761 

(6,3561 
(2,0801 

23,854 

7,598 

$16,080 

22,706 

6,387 

14651 

3,205 

(6,7331 
(3.4701 

(3,7961 

118,563 I 

11,3541 136,952) 
_ _  ~ 



(used in1 operating 
activities 28,883 ( 1 . 0 4 4  ) 70,442 21,6011 

Financing Activities 
Proceeds from sales of common 
Stock, net of 
treasury stock 
purchased 
Dividends to shareholders 
Proceeds from issuance of 
long-term debt 

Funds for construction held 
by trustee, net 
Repayments of long-term debt 
Principal payments under 
capital lease obligations 
Net short-term borrowings 
I repayments 

Net cash provided by (Used 
in) financina activities 

3,272 

16,1551 
- 

8,008 

154,6001 
18971 

I 7,2831 

2,582 

15,250)  - 

9 ,299  

19501 
19691 

20,792 

28,094 

111 .480)  
53,569 

17 ,493  

154,6001 
11, 6581  

128,5421 

33 ,953  

19,7801 
39,000 

120,1261 

l 3 1 . 0 2 1 1  
(1.604 I 

57 ,482  

157,6551 25,504 3 , 6 7 6  67,904 

Investing Activities 
Cash expenditures for utility 
plant 
Investment in TIC 
Enterprises, LLC 
Other 

Net cash used in investing 
activities 

126,346 

- 
11,4251 

127,7711 
~ 

123,360) 

- 
1.012 

122,348 I 
~ 

154,352)  

122,5931 

17711 

177.7161 

144,5091 

- 
11,3901 

145.8991 
__ 

Net increase [decrease] in 
cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
At beginning of period 
At end of period 

Supplemental Disclosures of 
Cash Flows 
Income taxes paid, net 
Interest paid 

$ 156.543)  

_______ _-_____ 

$58,793 
$2 ,250  

$4 ,251  
$14,035 

$2,112 

______ ______ 

$3,736 
$5,848 

$2,078 
$9,605 

S 13,5981 $ 404 

$5,848 
$2,250 

$5 ,444  
$5 ,848  

$7 ,181  $4 ,315  
$24,190 $17 ,753  

See the Notes to the consolidated financial Statements 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Basis of Presentation 

The consolidated financial statements include a l l  operating divisions 
and subsidiaries of NU1 Corporation lcollectively referred to a s  the 
"Company"). The Company is a multi-state energy s a l e s ,  services and 
distribution company. Its utility operations distribute natural gas 
and provide related customer services in six States through its 
Northern and Southern divisions. The Northern Division operates in New 
Jersey a s  Elizabethtown Gas Company. The Southern Division Operates 
in five states as City Gas Company of Florida. North Carolina Gas,  



Elkton Gas IMarylandI, Valley Cities Gas IPennsylvania] and waver ly  
Gas (New Yockl. The Company also provides retail gas sales and related 
services through its NU1 Energy, Inc. subsidiary; wholesale energy 
brokerage and related services through its NU1 Energy Brokers, Inc. 
Subsidiary; Customer information systems and services through its 
Utility Business Services, I n c .  subsidiary; and sales and marketing 
outsourcing through its 49% equity interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC. 

The consolidated financial Statements contained herein have been 
prepared Without audit in accordance With the r u l e s  and regulations of 
the Securities and Exchange Commission and reflect all adjustments 
which. in the opinion of management, are necessary for a fair 
Statement of the results for interim periods. All adjustments made 
were of a normal recurring nature. The preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the reporting period. Actual results could dirfer from those 
estimates. The consolidated financial statements should be read in 
conjunction with the consolidated financial Statements and the notes 
thereto that are included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K 
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1997. Certain 
reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial 
statements to conform with the Current year presentation. 

The Company is subject to regulation as an operating utility by the 
public utility commissions of the States in which it operates. 
Because of the seasonal nature of gas utility operations, the results 
for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results for 
an entire year. 

2.Common Shareholders' Equity 

The components of common shareholders' equity w e r e  as fallows [dollars 
in thousands): 

Comon Stock, no par value 
Shares held in treasury 
Retained earnings 
Unrealized gain on marketable securities 
Unearned employee compensation 

Total common shareholders' equity 

March 31, September 30 
1998 1997 

$206,730 $201,549 
11.692) 11,6151 
35,629 19,260 

- 120 
12,0971 11,023) 

$238,570 $218,291 
======== ======_ 

3.New Accounting Standard 

During the first quarter of fiscal 1998, the Company adopted Statement 
of Financial Accounting Standards NO. 128, "Earnings per Share" (SFAS 
1 2 8 ) .  This Statement superseded Accounting Principles Board Opinion 
No. 15,"Earnings per Share" and simplifies the computation of 
earnings per share. The adoption of SFAS 128 did not have an effect on 
the Company's calculation of earnings per share. 

4.Contingencies 

Environmental Matters. The Company is subject to federal and State 
laws with respect to water, air quality, solid Waste disposal and 
employee health and Safety matters, and to environmental regulations 
issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPAI, the 
New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection INJDEPI and other 
federal and state agencies. 



The Company owns, or previously owned, certain properties on which 
manufactured gas plants IMGP) were Operated by the Company or by other 
parties in the past. Coal tar residues are present on the six MGP 
Sites located in the Northern Division. The Company has reported the 
presence of the six MGP Sites to the EPA, the NJDEP and the New Jersey 
3oard of Public Utilities INJBPUI. In 1991, the NJDEP issued an 
Administrative Consent Order for an MGP site located at South Street 
in Elizabeth, New Jersey, wherein the Company agreed to conduct a 
remedial investigation and to design and implement a remediation plan. 
In 1992 and 1993, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Agreement 
with the NJDEP for each of the other five Northern Division MGP sites. 
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Administrative Consent 
Order and the Memoranda of Agreement, the Company is conducting 
remedial activities at all six sites with oversight from the NJDEP. 

The southern Division owned ten former MGP facilities, only three of 
which it currently owns. The farmer MGP sites are  located in the 
States of North Carolina, South Carolina, Pennsylvania, New York and 
Maryland ithe"Southern Division MGP sites"). The Company has joined 
with other North Carolina utilities to form the North Carolina 
Manufactured Gas Plant Group (the "MGP Group"). The MGP Group has 
entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with the North Carolina 
Department of Environment, Health and Natural Resources (NCDEHNR) to 
develop a uniform program and framework for the investigation and 
remediation of MGP sites in North Carolina. The Memorandum of 
Understanding contemplates that the actual investigation and 
remediation of specific sites will be addressed pursuant to 
Administrative Consent Orders between the NCOEHNR and the responsible 
parties. The NCDEHNR has recently sought the investigation and 
remediation of sites owned by members of the MGP Group and has entered 
into Administrative Consent Orders with respect to four such sites. 
None of these four sites are currently or were previously owned by the 
Company. 

The Company, with the aid of environmental consultants, regularly 
assesses the potential future costs associated with conducting 
investigative activities at each of the Company's sites and 
implementing appropriate remedial actions, as well a s  the likelihood 
of whether such actions will be necessary. The Company recorda a 
reserve if it is probable that a liability will be incurred and the 
amount of the liability is reasonably estimable. Based on the 
Company's most recent assessment, the Company has recorded a total 
reserve for environmental investigation and remediation costs of 
approximately $34 million, which the Company expects to expend during 
the next twenty years. The reserve is net of approximately $4 million 
which will be borne by a prior owner and operator of two of the 
Northern Division sites in accordance with a Cost sharing agreement. 
Of this approximate $34 million reserve, approximately $30 million 
relates to Northern Division MGP Sites and approximately $4 million 
relates to Southern Division MGP sites. However, the Company believes 
that it is possible that costs associated with conducting 
investigative activities and implementing remedial activities, if 
necessary. with respect to all of its MGP sites may exceed the 
approximately $34 million reserve by an amount that could range up to 
$24 million and be incurred during a future period of time that may 
range up to fifty years. Of this $24 million in additional possible 
future expenditures, approximately $12 million relates to the Northern 
Division MGP sites and approximately $12 million relates to the 
Southern Division MGP sites. As compared with the approximately $34 
million reserve discussed above, the Company believes that it is less 
likely that this additional $24 million will be incurred and therefore 
has not recorded it on its books. 

The Company's prudently incurred remediation costs for the Northern 
Division MGP sites have been authorized by the NJBPU to be recoverable 
in rates. The Company also believes that a portion of Such costs may 
be recoverable from the Company's insurance c a r r i e r s .  The most recent 
base rate order for the Northern Division permits the Company to 
utilize full deferred accounting for expenditures related to MGP 
sites. The order also provides for the recovery of $130,000 annually 
of MGP related expenditures incurred prior to the rate order. 
Accordingly, the Company has recorded a regulatory asset of 
approximately $34 million a s  of March 31. 1998, reflecting the future 
recovery of environmental remediation liabilities related to the 
Northern Division MGP sites. The Company is able to ~ e c o v e r  actual MGP 
expenses over a rolling seven year period through its MGP Remediation 
Adjustment Clause (RACI. The NJ3PU approved the Company's initial RAC 
rate filing on April 2, 1997 at which time the Company began recovery 



of approximately $3.1 million, which represents environmental costs 
incurred from inception through June 30, 1996. On August 5 ,  1997, the 
Company submitted a second RAC rate filing to the N J B P U  to recover an 
additional $0.5 million in environmental Costs incurred from July I, 
1996 through June 30, 1997. Approval by the NJBPU on this second RAC 
rate filing is expected in the third quarter. With respect to costs 
associated with the Southern Division MGP sites, the Company intends 
to pursue recovery from ratepayers, former owners and operators, and 
insurance carriers, although the Company is not able to express a 
belief as to whether any or all of these recovery efforts will be 
successful. The Company is working with the regulatory agencies to 
prudently manage its MGP Costs 50 as to mitigate the impact of such 
costs on both ratepayers and shareholders. 

Other. The Company is involved in various claims and litigation 
incidental to its business. In the opinion of management, none of 
these claims and litigation will have a material adverse effect on the 
Company's results of Operations or its financial condition. 

N U 1  Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Summary Consolidated Operating Data 

Three Months Six Months Twelve Months 
Ended Ended Ended 

March 31, March 31, March 31, 

1998 1997 1998 1997 1998 1997 

Operating Revenues 

Firm Sales: 
( D o l l a r s  in thousands) 

Residential $76,912 
Commercial 35,814 
Industrial 5,040 

Interruptible Sales 10,467 
Unregulated Sales 116,169 
Transportation services 10,053 
Customer Service, Appliance 
Leasing and Other 4,343 

Gas Sold or Transported (MMcf) 
Firm Sales: 
Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Interruptible Sales 
Unregulated Sales 
Transportation Services 

Average Utility Customers 
Served: 

9,025 
4,609 
1,175 
3,129 
44,873 
9,141 

Firm 
Residential 341,360 
Commercial 22,952 
Industrial 250 

Interruptible 107 
Transportation 3.887 

$82,374 
42,314 

8 , 5 6 6  
15,357 
44,230 
8,014 

3,568 
__ 
$204,483 

9,845 
5,741 
1,343 
3.725 

1 3 , 6 4 5  
8,316 

42,615 

337,629 
24,083 

287 
111 

1,954 

$140.424 
66,698 
11,498 
26,040 
223,203 
18,325 

$140,744 
73,772 
14,511 
30,196 
74,674 
14,776 

$201,4 37 
99,160 
20,250 
51,688 
326,410 
32,166 

$194,231 
108,457 
24,955 
57,348 

104,419 
26,174 

16,471 
8,858 
2,443 
6,854 

81.859 
16,986 

16,978 
10,174 
2,713 

24,141 
14,817 

7,433 

22,449 
12,938 
4,549 
14,495 

120,537 
30,463 

23,196 
14,768 
4,975 
15,286 
35.055 
27,383 

338,699 335,670 337.147 333,995 
23,659 24,413 23,935 24,363 

27 9 316 288 322 
114 123 117 116 

2,677 1,266 2,166 1,043 



Degree Days in New Jersey 
Actual 2,085 2,497 3,863 4,243 4,514 4,871 
Normal 2,777 2,673 4,632 4,398 5,250 4,978 
percentage variance from 25% 7% 17% 4 %  13% 2 %  
normal warmer warmer warmer warmer warmer warmer 

Employees (period end1 1,161 1.107 

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed 
Charges (Twelve months only1 2.20 2.01 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 

and Results of Operations 

The following discussion and analysis refers to NU1 Corporation and 
all of  its operating divisions and subsidiaries (collectively referred 
to a s  the"Company"1. The Company is a multi-state energy sales, 
services and distribution company. Its utility operations distribuce 
natural gas in six states through its Northern and Southern divisions. 
The Northern Division operates in New Jersey as Elizabethtown Gas 
Company. The Southern Division operates in five States as City Gas 
Company of Florida, North Carolina Gas, Elkton Gas IMarylandl, Valley 
Cities Gas (Pennsylvania1 and Waverly Gas (New Yorkl. The Company also 
provides retail gas sales and related services through its NU1 Energy, 
Inc. subsidiary; wholesale energy brokerage and related services 
through its NU1 Energy Brokers, Inc. Subsidiary; Customer information 
systems and services through its Utility Business Services, Inc. 
subsidiary ("UBS"); and sales and marketing outsourcing through its 
49% equity interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC ("TIC"). Because of the 
seasonal nature of gas utility operations, the results for interim 
periods are not necessarily indicative of the results for an entire 
year. 

Results of Operations 

The results for the 1998 periods as compared to the 1991 periods 
reflect changes in the New Jersey tax law which resulted in variations 
in certain line items on the consolidated statement of income 1588 

"Regulatory Matters"). Effective January 1, 1990, New Jersey Gross 
Receipts and Franchise Taxes (GRAFT1 w e r e  replaced by a combination of 
a New Jersey Sales and Use Tax INJ Sales Tax), a New Jersey corporac-e 
Business Tax INJ CBTI and a temporary Transitional Energy Facility 
ASSe55ment INJ TEFAI. In prior periods, GRAFT was recorded as a 
single line item in the reduction of operating margins. Effective 
January 1, 1998, NJ TEFA is recorded in the energy taxes line item as 
a reduction of Operating margins, NJ CBT is recorded in the income 
taxes line item and NJ Sales Tax is recorded as a reduction of 
operating revenues. The legislation was designed to be net income 
neutral over a twelve-month period, however for the periods ending 
March 31, 1998, the effect of the three new taxes as compared to the 
1991 periods had the effect of reducing operating revenues by 
approximately $5.8 million, reducing energy taxes by approximately 
$7.0 million and increasing income tax expense by approximately $2.4 
million. The net effect of the change in the tax law reduced net 
income by approximately $0.8 million. or $0.06 per share, as compared 
to the prior year periods. This variance is expected to reverse 
during the last two quarters of fiscal 1998. 

Three-Month Periods Ended March 31, 1998 and 1997 

Net Income. Net income for the three-month period ended March 31, 
1998 was $15.1 million, or $1.20 per share, a s  compared with net 
income of $15.3 million, or 51.31 per share, for the three-month 
period ended March 31, 1997. The decrease in the current period was 
primarily the result of the tax law change as described above, as well 



as higher operation and maintenance expenses and depreciation and 
amortization expense. This reduction was partially offset by 
increases to operating margins. 

Net income per share in the Current period w a ~  affected by the 
increased number of outstanding shares of common stock over the prior 
period, principally reflecting the Company's issuance of approximately 
1 million additional shares in September 1997. 

Operating Revenues and Operating Margins. The Company's operating 
revenues include amounts billed for the cost of purchased gas pursuant 
to purchased gas adjustment clauses. Such clauses enable the Company 
to pass through to its customers, via periodic adjustments to 
Customers' bills, increased or decreased Costs incurred by the Company 
for purchased gas without affecting Operating margins. Since the 
Company's utility operations do not earn a profit on the sale of the 
gas commodity, the Company's level of operating revenues is not 
necessarily indicative of financial performance. The Companyls 
operating revenues increased by $54.3 million, or 27%. for the three- 
month period ended March 31, 1998 as compared with the three-month 
period ended March 31, 1991, principally due to an increase of 
approximately $11.9 million in unregulated revenues due to greater 
activity in these operations. This increase was partially Offset by a 
decrease in revenues of approximately $ 1 8 . 8  million in the Company's 
utility operations primarily resulting from the effect of warmer 
weather in the 1998 period in all of the Company's service 
territories, primarily in New Jersey where it was 25% warmer than 
normal. Additionally, utility revenues decreased as a result of the 
tax law changes as described above. 

The Company's operating margins increased by $3.8 million, or 6.5%, 
for the three-month period ended March 31, 1998 as compared with the 
three-month period ended March 31, 1997. The Company's utility 
distribution margins increased approximately $ 3 . 2  million over the 
prior year period mainly due to customer growth, a s  well as 
approximately Sl.2 million of margins resulting from changes in the 
New Jersey tax law (see above] and the classification of such amounts 
in the consolidated income statement. Utility distribution margins 
also increased approximately S0.9 million over the prior year period 
due to the effect of the change in the calculation of the New Jersey 
weather normalization clause. On October 22, 1991, the New Jersey 
Board of Public Utilities INJBPUI approved the Company's petition to 
revise its weather normalization clause to reflect an increase in the 
level of degree days used to determine margin revenue differences 
associated with variations between actual degree days within the 
months of October through April and the degree days that underlie the 
Company's base rates. The adjustment was necessitated by a change in 
instrumentation used to measure temperatures in the Company's service 
territory. The changes in the weather normalization clause 
calculation were effective in October 1996, but were not recorded by 
the Company until the fourth quarter of fiscal 1997. The Company's 
customer service operations contributed approximately $ 0 . 8  million to 
the increase in operating margins primarily as a result of a rate 
increase in the appliance leasing program in Florida, as well a s  
customer additions by UBS. Operating margins from the COmpanyrS 
unregulated operations decreased approximately $0.2 million mainly a s  
a result of sluggish market conditions and slower customer growth in 
the Company's retail market operations. The Company has weather 
normalization clauses in its New Jersey and North Carolina tariffs 
which are designed to help stabilize the Company's results by 
increasing amounts charged to customers when weather has been warmer 
than normal and by decreasing amounts charged when weather has been 
colder than normal. As a result of these weather normalization 
clauses, operating margins were approximately $4.8 million more in the 
1998 period than they would have been Without such clauses. In the 
1991 period, operating margins w e r e  approximately $1.1 million more 
than they otherwise would have been without Such clauses. 

Other Operating Expenses. Operations and maintenance expenses 
increased by approximately S0.6 million, 01 3 % .  for the three-month 
period ended March 31, 1998 as compared with the three-month period 
ended March 31, 1997. The increase was primarily the result of higher 
expenses associated with the continued growth in the Company's 
unregulated operations and the reversal of certain reserves in the 
prior year which management determined to be no longer required. 
These increases were partially Offset by a higher pension credit 
primazily as a result of the investment performance of pension plan 
assets. 



Depreciation and amortization expenses increased by approximately $1 
million primarily due to additional plant in service. 

Income tax expense increased by approximately $2.3 million mainly due 
to the change in the New Jersey tax law described above. Certain 
taxes which w e r e  previously treated as a reduction of margins are now 
classified as state income tax expense. 

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by approximately $0.1 
million for the three-month period ended March 31, 1 9 9 8  as compared 
with the three-month period ended March 31, 1997.  This increase was 
due to higher rates on short-term borrowings and higher average long- 
term borrowings as a result of the drawdown of funds for construction 
expenditures, partially offset by lower average rates on long-term 
debt due to the refinancing of bonds in October 1 9 9 7 .  Drawdowns of 
construction funds have the effect of lowering interest income on the 
funds held by the trustee. 

Six-Month Periods Ended March 31, 1 9 9 8  and 1 9 9 7  

Net Income. Net income for the six-month period ended March 31, 1 9 9 8  
was $ 2 2 . 5  million, or $ 1 . 8 0  per share. as compared with net income of 
$ 2 2 . 1  million, or $ 1 . 9 8  per share, fox the six-month period ended 
March 31, 1997. The increase in the current period was primarily due 
to higher operating margins, partially Offset by higher operations and 
maintenance. depreciation, interest expense and the effect on 1998 
results of the tax l a w  changes described above. 

Net income per share in the current period was affected by the 
increased number of outstanding Shares of common Stock over the prior 
period, principally reflecting the Company's issuance of approximately 
1 million additional Shares in September 1997. 

Operating Revenues and Operating Margins. The Company's operating 
revenues increased by $ 1 3 8 . 8  million, or 39%. for the six-month period 
ended March 31, 1998 as compared with the six-month period ended March 
31, 1997. The increase was principally due to an increase of 
unregulated sales of approximately $ 1 4 8 . 5  million due to greater 
activity in these operations, customer growth and increased customer 
service and appliance leasing revenues. These increases were 
partially offset by the effect of warmer weather in all of the 
Company's Service territories, primarily in New Jersey where it was 
17% warmer than normal, as well as the effect of the tax law changes 
described above. 

The Company's operating margins increased by $7.1 million or 6 . 7 %  for 
the six-month period ended March 31, 1998 as compared with the six- 
month period ended March 31, 1997. The increase was primarily 
attributable to an increase of $ 6 . 2  million in the Company's utility 
distribution operations a s  a result of customer growth, the effects of 
changes in the New Jersey tax law [ s e e  above), and an additional $1.5 
million due to the effect of the change in the calculation of the New 
Jersey weather normalization clause. As a result of weather 
normalization clauses in total, margins were approximately $5 .2  
million and $ 0 . 9  million higher in the 1998 and 1 9 9 7  periods, 
respectively, than they would have been without such c l a u s e s .  The 
Company's customer service operations contributed approximately $1.3 
million to the increase in margins as a result of a rate increase in 
the appliance leasing program in Florida and customer additions by 
UBS. Operating margins from the Company's unregulated operations 
decreased by approximately $0.3 million as a result of sluggish market 
conditions and slower customer growth in the Company's zetail market 
operations. 

Other Operating Expenses. Operation and maintenance expenses 
increased by approximately $1.3 million, or 3%. for the six-month 
period ended March 31, 1998 as compared with the six-month period 
ended March 31, 1997. The increase w a s  primarily the result of higher 
expenses associated with the continued growth in the Company's 
unregulated operations, as well as the reversal of certain reserves in 
the prior year that management determined were no longer required. 
These increases w e r e  partially offset by a higher pension credit 
primarily a s  a result of the investment performance of pension plan 
assets. 

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased by $1.0 million 



primarily due to additional plant in service, 

Income tax expense increased by approximately $2.9 million due to the 
changes in the New Jersey tax law described above, as well a s  higher 
pre-tax income. 

Interest Expense. IntereSt expense increased by approximately $0.7 
million far the six-month period ended March 31, 1998 a s  compared with 
the six-month period ended March 31, 1997. The increase was mainly 
due to the reasons discussed under the "Three-Month Period Ended March 
31, 1998 and 1997" section. 

Twelve-Month Periods Ended March 31, 1998 and 1997 

Net Income. Net income for the twelvemonth period ended March 31, 
1998 was $20 million, or $1.68 per share, a s  compared with $16.1 
million, or $1.49 per share, for the twelve-month period ended March 
31, 1997. The increase in the current period was primarily due to 
higher operating margins and other income, partially offset by higher 
operations and maintenance, depreciation, interest and the effect on 
1998 of the tax l a w  changes described above. 

Net income per Share for the twelve-month period ended March 31, 1998 
as compared to the twelve-month period ended March 31, 1991 was 
affected by the increased number of outstanding shares reflecting the 
Company's issuances of common stock of 1 million additional shares in 
September 1997 and 1.8 million additional Shares in May 1996. 

Operating Revenues and Operating Margins. The Company's operating 
revenues far the twelve-month period ended March 31, 1990 increased 
approximately $217.7 million, or 41%. as compared with the twelve- 
month period ended March 31, 1997. The increase was primarily due to 
an increase in unregulated sales of approximately $222 million, 
customer growth, and increased Customer service and appliance leasing 
revenues. These increases w e r e  partially offset by the effect of the 
change in the New Jersey tax law described above, as well a5 warmer 
weather in a l l  of the Company's service territories, especially in New 
Jersey which was 13% w a r m r  than normal. 

The Company's operating margins increased by approximately $ 1 4 . 2  
million, or 8.6%. for the twelve-month period ended March 31, 1998 as 
compared with the twelve-month period ended March 31, 1997. The 
increase reflects approximately $10.6 million of additional margins 
generated by the Company's utility distribution operations, 
approximately $2.4 million of additional margins generated by the 
Company's customer service and appliance leasing operations, and 
approximately $1.3 million of additional margins generated by the 
Company's unregulated operations. The increase in the utility 
distribution operations was mainly due to the changes in the New 
Jersey tax law described above, the change in the Calculation of the 
weather normalization clause in New Jersey, the full effect of a base 
rate increase in Florida and Customer growth. The increase in Customer 
service and appliance leasing was mainly due to the full effect of a 
rate increase in the appliance leasing program in Florida and customer 
additions by UBS. The increase in the unregulated operations was 
primarily due to increased sales a s  well as favorable market 
conditions in the last six months of fiscal 1997. As a result of 
weather normalization clauses, operating margins w e r e  approximately 
$6.3 million more in the current twelve-month period than they would 
have been without such clauses. for the twelve-month period ended 
March 31, 1997. operating margins were $1.1 million more than they 
would have been without such clausel. 

Other Operating Expenses. Operation and maintenance expenses 
increased approximately $1.9 million or 2% for the twelve-month period 
ended March 31, 1998 a s  compared to the twelve-month period ended 
March 31. 1997. The increase was primarily due to higher labor Costs 
resulting from an increased number of employees, and the continued 
growth of the Company's unregulated operations, partially offset by a 
higher pension credit. 

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased by approximately $ 3 . 2  
million primarily due to additional plant in service. 

Income taxes increased by $4.4 million for the twelve-month period 
ended March 31, 1998 a s  compared to the twelve month period ended 
March 31, 1997 as a result of changes in the New Jersey tax law a s  



described above, a s  well as higher pre-tax income 

Other Income and Expense, Net. Pre-tax other income and expense, net, 
increased approximately $1.8 million for the twelve-month period ended 
March 31, 1998 a 5  compared with the 1997 period due to approximately 
$ 1 . 4  million of net equity earnings in TIC and the sale of certain 
property in the Southern Division. These increases were partially 
offset by lower dividend and interest income a s  a result of fewer 
marketable securities held. 

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by $1.9 million, or 10%. 
for the 1998 period a s  compared with the 1997 period primarily due to 
an increase in short-term interest expense resulting from higher 
average borrowings in the current period, as well as higher average 
long-term borrowings due to the drawdown of funds held for 
construction expenditures. 

Regulatory Matters 

In July 1997, the State of New Jersey enacted legislation that 
eliminated the gross receipts and franchise taxes effective January 1, 
1998. These taxes w e r e  replaced with a 6% sales tax on sales of 
electricity and natural gas. a corporate business tax currently paid 
by all "on-utility corporations in the State, and a third tax called 
the Transitional Energy facilities Assessment tax (TEfAI. The 
legislation was intended, in part, to provide comparability between ' 

utilities that pay gross receipts and franchise taxes and non-utility 
energy companies that do not. A key objective of this legislation was 
to maintain energy tax revenue neutrality in 1998, seeklng to collect 
approximately the Same amount in new taxes a s  collected with gross 
receipts and franchise taxes in 1997. The TEFA tax is scheduled to be 
phased Out at a rate of approximately 20% per year starting in 1999. 
These tax changes a r e  designed to have no effect on the Company's net 
income over a twelve-month period or on overall rates charged to 
customers, until the TEFA reductions occur, and should not have a 
material effect on working capital. The Company paid approximately $ 2 5  
million of grass receipts and franchise taxes to the State in 1997. 

See "Results of Operations" for a discussion of the effect of the new 
taxes in the 1998 periods. 

On November 20. 1997, the Northern Division amended its July 31, 1997 
proposal filed with the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NJBPUI 
to increase its annual purchased gas adjustment revenues by 
approximately $14.7 million and change the way it ~ecovers gas supply 
Costs from its different classes of customers. On January 23, 1998 the 
NJBPU issued an order approving an interim stipulation of the parties 
concerning a number of the Company's rates, including rates charged 
under the purchased gas adjustment clause. The interim stipulation 
also provided that the Company was required to propose a timetable for 
resolving issues related to offering transportation services to a l l  
customers, and the continuation of the Company's ro l e  as merchant and 
supplier of last resort. A final order by the NJBPU on the Company's 
amended proposal is expected in the third quarter. 

financing Activities and Resources 

The Company had net cash provided by operatlng activities of $ 2 8 . 9  
million for the six-month period ended March 31, 1990 a5 compared with 
net cash used in operating activities of $1.0 million for the six- 
month period ended March 31, 1997. This increase was primarily 
attributable to improved collections on receivables, additional 
collections of gas Costs under the Company's purchased gas adjustment 
clauses, and lower prepaid expenses due to the change in the New 
Jersey tax l a w  (see "Results of 0perations"l. In March 1997, the 
Company prepaid estimated New Jersey gross receipts and franchise 
taxes for the remainder of calendar 1997. Due to the change in the 
tax law, a similar payment was not required in 1998. For the twelve- 
month period ended March 31, 1998, the Company had net cash provided 
by operating activities of $70.4 million as compared with net cash 
used in operating activities of $21.6 million for the twelve-month 
period ended March 31, 1997. The increase in net cash provided by 
operating activities for the twelve-month period ended March 31, 1998 
as compared to the twelvemonth period ended March 31, 1997 was mainly 
attributable to the reasons given above for the six-month periods, as 
well a s  the timing of the 1996 New Jersey gross receipts and franchise 
tax payment which was made in April 1996. 



Because the Company's business is highly seasonal. short-term debt is 
used to meet seasonal working capital requirements. The Company also 
borrows under its bank lines of credit to finance portions of its 
capital expenditures, pending refinancing through the issuance of 
equity or long-term indebtedness at a later date depending upon 
prevailing market conditions. 

Short-Term Debt. The weighted average daily amounts Outstanding of 
notes payable to banks and the weighted average interest rates on 
those amounts w e r e  $70.1 million at 6.0% far the six-month period 
ended MaIch 31, 1998 and $66.3 million at 5.2% for the six-month 
period ended March 31, 1997. The weighted average daily amounts of 
notes payable to banks increased principally due to additional 
borrowings to finance portions of the Company's capital expenditures 

At March 31, 1998, the Company had outstanding notes payable to banks 
amounting to $41.1 million and available unused lines of credit 
amounting to $98.9 million. 

Long-Term Debt and Funds for Construction Held by Trustee. In November 
1994, the Company filed a shelf registration statement with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission for an aggregate of up to $100 
million of debt and equity securities. As of March 31, 1998, the 
Company has issued $70 million of Medium-Term Notes subject to the 
Shelf registration statement. While the Company has no present 
intention to issue additional securities subject to the shelf 
registration, such Securities may be issued from time to time, 
depending upon the Company's needs and prevailing market conditions. 

The Company deposits in trust the unexpended portion of the net 
proceeds from its Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds until drawn upon for 
eligible expenditures. As of March 31, 1998, the total unexpended 
portions of all of the Company's Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds were 
$15.8 million and a r e  classified on the Company's consolidated balance 
sheet, including interest earned thereon, as funds for construction 
held by trustee. 

The Company prepaid $54.6 million of its Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds 
in October 1997 with proceeds received in f i s c a l  1997 from a new bond 
issuance. 

Common Stock. The Company periodically issues shares of common stock 
in connection with NU1 Direct, the Company's dividend reinvestment 
plan, and other employee benefit plans. The proceeds from such 
issuances amounted to approximately $3.3 and $2.6 million for the six- 
month periods ended March 31, 1998 and 1997, respec~ively, and ,were 
used primarily to reduce outstanding short-term debt. 

Dividends. On November 6, 1997, the Company increased its quarterly 
dividend to $0.245 per share of common stock. The previously 
quarterly rate was $0.235 per share of common stock. 

The Company's long-term debt agreements include, among other things, 
cestrictions as to the payment of cash dividends. Under the most 
restrictive of these provisions, the Company is permitted to pay 
approximately $ 5 4  million of caeh dividends at March 31, 1 9 9 E .  

Capital Expenditures and Commitments 

Capital expenditures, which consist primarily of expenditures to 
expand and upgrade the Company's gas distribution systems, were $26.7 
million for the six-month period ended March 31, 1998 a s  compared with 
$23.4 million f o r  the six-month period ended March 31. 1997. Capital 
expenditures are expected to be approximately $60 million for all of 
fiscal 1998, as compared with a total of $52.3  million in fiscal 1997. 

The Company owns o r  previously owned six former manufactured gas plant 
(MGP) sites in the Northern Division and ten MGP Sites in the Southern 
Division. The Company, with the aid of environmental consultants, 
cegularly assesses the potential future costs associated with 
conducting remedial actions, as well as the likelihood of whether such 
actions will be necessary. The Company records a zeserve if it is 
probable that a liability will be incurred and the amount of the 
liability is reasonably estimable. Based on the Company's most recent 
assessment, the Company has recorded a total reserve for environmental 
investigation and remediation Costs of approximately $34 million, 
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which the Company expects it will expend in the next twenty years to 
remediate the Company's MGP sites. Of this reserve, approximately $30 
million relates to Northern Division MGP sites and approximately $ 4  
million relates to Southern Division MGP sites. However, the Company 
believes that it is possible that costs associated with conducting 
investigative activities and implementing remedial actions, if 
necessary, with respect to all of its MGP sites may exceed the 
approximately 534 million reserve by an amount that could range up to 
$24 million and be incurred during a future period of time that may 
range up to fifty years. Of this $24 million in possible future 
expenditures, approximately $12 million relates to the Northern 
Division MGP sites and approximately $12 million relates to the 
Southern Division MGP sites. As compared with the approximately $34 
million reserve discussed above, the Company believes that it is less 
likely that this additional $24 million will be incurred and therefore 
has not recorded it on its books. The Company believes that all costs 
associated with the Northern Division MGP sites will be recoverable in 
rates or from insurance carriers. The Company is able to recover 
actual MGP expenses over a rolling seven-year period through its MGP 
Remediation Adjustment Clause IRACI. The NJBPU approved the Company's 
initial RRC rate filing on April 2, 1997 at which time the Company 
began recovery of approximately $3.1 million, which represents 
environmental costs incurred from inception through J u n e  30, 1996. On 
August 5, 1997, the Company Submitted a second RAC rate filing to the 
NJBPU to recover an additional $0.5 million in environmental costs 
incurred from July 1, 1996 through June 30, 1997. Approval by the 
NJBPU on this second RRC rate filing is expected in the third quarter. 
With respect to Costs which may be associated with the Southern 
Division MGP sites, the Company intends to pursue recovery from 
ratepayers, former owners and operators of the sites and from 
insurance carriers. However, the Company is not able at this time to 
express a belief a 5  to whether any or all of these recovery efforts 
related to the Southern Division MGP sites will ultimately be 
successful. 

Certain of the Company's long-term contracts for the supply, storage 
and delivery of natural gas include fixed charges that amount to 
approximately $73 million annually. The Company currently recovers, 
and expects to continue to recover, such fixed charges through its 
purchased gas adjustment clauses. The Company also is committed to 
purchase, at market-related prices, minimum quantities of gas that, in 
the aggregate, are approximately 9 billion cubic feet per year or to 
pay certain costs in the event the minimum quantities are not taken. 
The Company expects that minimum demand on its systems for the 
duration of these contracts will continue to exceed these minimum 
purchase obligations. 

The Company is scheduled to repay $20 million of Medium-Term Notes in 
August 2002. 

Y e a r  2000 

Many existing computer programs use only two digits to identify a year 
in the date field. These programs w e r e  designed and developed without 
provision for the impact of the upcoming change in the century. If 
not corrected, many computer applications could fail or create 
erroneous results which could result in an impact on NUI's operations 
and businesses and have a resulting adverse financial impact. The 
Company has undertaken a systems readiness program to mitigate the 
risks associated with the Y e a r  2000 issue. This program is developed 
to identify any Systems that are not presently Y e a r  2000 compliant, 
and to replace or modify these systems. In addition, the Company is 
working with its suppliers an this issue to gain a~surance that they 
are taking appropriate steps to mitigate Year 2000 problems in their 
systems and systems they Support. The Company began this process in 
fiscal 1997 and anticipates completion during fiscal 1999, with a 
remaining estimated Cost of approximately $2 million. Although the 
Company is endeavoring to ensure that the Year 2000 readiness program 
is comprehensive, it can make no assurance that the program will 
address all Year 2000 compliance issues in a timely manner. 

PART I1 - OTHER INFORMATION 

Item 4 .  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

The following matters w e r e  presented for submission to a vote of 



Security holders through the Solicitation of proxies or otherwise 
during the second quarter of fiscal 1998.  

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of NU1 Corporation was held on 
January 27, 1998 .  Proxies for the Annual Meeting were solicited 
pursuant to Regulation 1 4 A  and there was no solicitation in opposition 
to management's nominees. At the meeting, the shareholders elected 
directors, approved amendments to two of the Company's stock plans and 
ratified the appointment of independent public accountants. 

The total votes were a s  follows: Against or 
For Withheld Rbstain 

I 1 1  Election of directors to 
serve for three-year terms: 

John Kea" 11,098.714 
John Kea". Jr. 11,119,420 
Bernard S. Lee 11 ,121 ,448  

256,829 
236,133 
234,105 

131 Approval of amendment to 
the 1996 Employee 
Stock Purchase Plan 10,923,453 

1 4 1  Ratification of the 
appointment of 
Arthur Andersen LLP 
a s  independent 
public accountants 10,894,597 

Item 6 .  Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 

l a 1  Exhibits. 

Exhibit 
No. Description of Exhibit 

27 Financial Data Schedule 

ibl Reports on Form 8-K 

NO"= 

717,918 127,912 

307,166 115,934 

407,090 53,866 

Reference 

Filed herewith 

SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,  
the Registrant has duly caused this report to be Signed on its behalf 
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

May 1 5 ,  1998 

May 15, 1998 

NU1 CORPORATION 

JOHN KEAN, JR. 
President and Chief 
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A. MARK ABRAMOVIC 
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Chief 
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June 30, September 30, 

1998 

mnauditedl 

1997 

fi 

I I 

unds for Construction Held by Trustee I 
I 

ASSETS 
Utility Plant 
Utility plant, at original cost $722,540 $680.391 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (232,753) (218,895) 

I I 

vestment in TIC Enterprises, UC, net I 
I 

APITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 

http://www.nui.com/q-3qtr98.htm 10/8/98 



Nine Months 

Ended I 
Twelve Months 

Ended 
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Investing Activities 
Cash expenditures for utility plant (43,408) (35,923) (58.85 I )  (49,896) 
Jnvestment in TIC Enterprises, LLC (11: (22,000) (595) (22,000) 
Other f,Q@) 641 " 
Net cash used in investing activities (45,387) (57.282) 173.7101 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents $ (58.386) $ (1.668) %(2.1751 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
At beginning of period $ 58,793 $ 3,736 $2,068 $4,243 
At end Of Deli& $407 $2.068 $407 $2.068 

upplemeotal Disclosures of Cash Flows 
Income taxes paid, net 
Interest paid 

$5,262 $3,909 $6,361 $4,552 
$ 17,433 $ 15,165 6 22,028 16 15,691 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Basis of Presentation 

The consolidated financial statements include all operating divisions and subsidiaries of NlJI 
Corporation (collectively referred to as the "Company"). The Company is a multi-state energy sales, 
services and distribution company. It's utility operations distribute natural gas and provide related 
customer services in six states through its Northern and Southern divisions. The Northem Division 
operates in New Jersey as Elizabethtown Gas Company. The Southern Division operates in five states 
as City Gas Company of Florida, North Carolina Gas, Elkton Gas (Maryland), Valley Cities Gas 

http://www.nui.com/q-3qtr98. htm 1018198 
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(Pennsylvania) and Waverly Gas (New York). The Company also provides retail gas sales and related 
services through its NUI Energy, Inc. subsidiary; wholesale energy brokerage and related services 
through its NUI Energy Brokers, Inc. subsidiary; customer information systems and services through 
its Utility Business Senrices, Inc. subsidiary; and sales and marketing outsourcing through its 49% 
equity interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC. 

The consolidated financial statements contained herein have been prepared without audit in 
accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and reflect all 
adjustments which, in the opinion of management, are necessary for a fair statement of the results for 
interim periods. All adjustments made were of a normal recurring nature. The preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
The consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial 
statements and the notes thereto that are included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 1997. Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year 
financial statements to conform with current year presentation. 

The Company is subject to regulation as an operating utility by the public utility commissions of the 
states in which it operates. Because of the seasonal nature of gas utility operations, the results for 
interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results for an entire year. 

2. Common Shareholders' Equity 

The components of common shareholders' equity were as follows (dollars in thousands): 

I June 30, I September 30, 

3. Restructuring 

On June 4, 1998, the Company announced a reorganization plan to better position itself in an 
increasingly competitive environment. The reorganization plan also included an early retirement 
program, which was accepted by 73 of the 77 eligible employees. In accordance with Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 88, "Employers' Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of 
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits", the Company will record a special 
termination charge associated with these retirements in the fourth quarter of fiscal 1998. In addition, 
as a result of the reorganization effort, the Company has displaced some of its existing employees. 
While the cost ofthe reorganization effort has not yet been finalized, it is estimated to be $10 to $12 
million and will be recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 1998. 

4. New Accounting Standards 

http://www.nui.com/q-3qtr98. htm 10/8/98 
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In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 133 "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" (SFAS 133). This 
statement establishes accounting and reporting standards regarding derivative instruments. SFAS 133 
requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at their fair value as either an 
asset or liability, and that changes in the fair value be recognized currently in earnings unless certain 
criteria are met. 

SFAS 133 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 1999. At this time, the Company has 
elected not to adopt SFAS 133 prior to its effective date. While the impact of adopting SFAS 133 has 
not yet been quantified, due to it's nature, there could be an impact on earnings when adopted. 

During the first quarter of fiscal 1998, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 128, "Earnings per Share" (SFAS 128). This statement superseded Accounting 
Principles Board Opinion No. 15, "Earnings per Share" and simplifies the computation of earnings per 
share. The adoption of SFAS 128 did not have an effect on the Company's calculation of earnings per 
share. 

5. Contingencies 

EnvironmentuZMutters. The Company is subject to federal and state laws with respect to water, air 
quality, solid waste disposal and employee health and safety matters, and to environmental regulations 
issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the New Jersey Department of 
Environmental Protection (NJDEP) and other federal and state agencies. 

The Company owns, or previously owned, certain properties on which manufactured gas plants 
(MGP) were operated by the Company or by other parties in the past. Coal tar residues are present on 
the six MGP sites located in the Northern Division. The Company has reported the presence of the six 
MGP sites to the EPA, the NJDEP and the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NIBPU). In 1991, 
the NJDEP issued an Administrative Consent Order for an MGP site located at South Street in 
Elizabeth, New Jersey, wherein the Company agreed to conduct a remedial investigation and to 
design and implement a remediation plan. In 1992 and 1993, the Company entered into a 
Memorandum of Agreement with the NJDEP for each of the other five Northern Division MGP sites. 
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Administrative Consent Order and the Memoranda of 
Agreement, the Company is conducting remedial activities at all six sites with oversight from the 
NJDEP. 

The Southern Division owned ten former MGP facilities, only three of which it currently owns. The 
former MGP sites are located in the states ofNorth Carolina, South Carolina, Pennsylvania, New 
York and Maryland (the "Southern Division MGP sites"). The Company has joined with other North 
Carolina utilities to form the North Carolina Manufactured Gas Plant Group (the "MGP Group"). The 
MGP Group has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with the North Carolina Department 
of Environment, Health and Natural Resources (NCDEHNR) to develop a uniform program and 
framework for the investigation and remediation of MGP sites in North Carolina. The Memorandum 
of Understanding contemplates that the actual investigation and remediation of specific sites will be 
addressed pursuant to Administrative Consent Orders between the NCDEHNR and the responsible 
parties. The NCDEHNR has recently sought the investigation and remediation of sites owned by 
members of the MGP Group and has entered into Administrative Consent Orders with respect to four 
such sites. None of these four sites are currently or were previously owned by the Company. 
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The Company, with the aid of environmental consultants, regularly assesses the potential future costs 
associated with conducting investigative activities at each of the Company's sites and implementing 
appropriate remedial actions, as well as the likelihood of whether such actions will be necessary. The 
Company records a reserve if it is probable that a liability will be incurred and the amount of the 
liability is reasonably estimable. Based on the most recent assessment, the Company has recorded a 
total reserve for environmental investigation and remediation costs of approximately $34 million, 
which the Company expects to expend during the next twenty years. The reserve is net of 
approximately $4 million which will be borne by a prior owner and operator of two of the Northern 
Division sites in accordance with a cost sharing agreement. Of this approximate $34 million reserve, 
approximately $30 million relates to Northern Division MGP sites and approximately $4 million 
relates to Southern Division MGP sites. However, the Company believes that it is possible that costs 
associated with conducting investigative activities and implementing remedial activities, if necessary, 
with respect to all of its MGP sites may exceed the approximately $34 million reserve by an amount 
that could range up to $24 million and be incurred during a future period of time that may range up to 
fifty years. Of this $24 million in additional possible future expenditures, approximately $12 million 
relates to the Northern Division MGP sites and approximately $12 million relates to the Southern 
Division MGP sites. As compared with the approximately $34 million reserve discussed above, the 
Company believes that it is less likely that this additional $24 million will be incurred and therefore 
has not recorded it on its books. 

The Company's prudently incurred remediation costs for the Northern Division MGP sites have been 
authorized by the NJBPU to be recoverable in rates. The most recent base rate order for the Northern 
Division permits the Company to utilize full deferred accounting for expenditures related to MGP 
sites. The order also provides for the recovery of $130,000 annually of MGP related expenditures 
incurred prior to the rate order. Accordingly, the Company has recorded a regulatoly asset of 
approximately $34 million as of June 30, 1998, reflecting the hture recovery of environmental 
remediation liabilities related to the Northem Division MGP sites. The Company is able to recover 
actual MGP expenses over a rolling seven year period through its MGP Remediation Adjustment 
Clause (RAC). The NJBPU approved the Company's initial RAC rate filing on April 2, 1997 at which 
time the Company began recovery of approximately $3.1 million, which represents environmental 
costs incurred from inception through June 30, 1996. On August 5, 1997, the Company submitted a 
second RAC rate filing to the NJBPU to recover an additional $0.5 million in environmental costs 
incurred from July 1, 1996 through June 30, 1997. On January 23, 1998 the NJBPU issued an order 
approving an interim stipulation concerning rate recovery of costs incurred under the second RAC 
filing. Final approval by the NJBPU on this matter is expected in the fourth quarter. The Company 
has also been successful in recovering a portion of MGP remediation costs incurred for the Northern 
Division from the Company's insurance carriers and continues to pursue additional recovery. With 
respect to costs associated with the Southern Division MGP sites, the Company intends to pursue 
recovery from ratepayers, former owners and operators, and insurance carriers, although the 
Company is not able to express a belief as to whether any or all of these recovery efforts will be 
successful. The Company is working with the regulatory agencies to prudently manage its MGP costs 
so as to mitigate the impact of such costs on both ratepayers and shareholders. 

Other. The Company is involved in various claims and litigation incidental to its business. In the 
opinion of management, none of these claims and litigation will have a material adverse effect on the 
Company's results of operations or its financial condition. 

NUX Corporation and Subsidiaries 
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Summary Consolidated Operating Data 

Nine Months Ended 
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Ratio of Earnings to Fixed 

Chsroer flbelve mnnthr onlv) 
2.13 2.20 

NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 

and Results of Operations 

The following discussion and analysis refers to NLJI Corporation and all of its operating divisions and 
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Company"). The Company is a multi-state energy sales, 
services and distribution company. Its utility operations distribute natural gas in six states through its 
Northem and Southern divisions. The Northern Division operates in New Jersey as Elizabethtown 
Gas Company. The Southern Division operates in five states as City Gas Company of Florida, North 
Carolina Gas, Elkton Gas (Maryland), Valley Cities Gas (Pennsylvania) and Waverly Gas (New 
York). The Company also provides retail gas sales and related services through its NLJI Energy, Inc. 
subsidiary ("Energy"); wholesale energy brokerage and related services through its N U  Energy 
Brokers, Inc. subsidiary; customer information systems and services through its Utility Business 
Services, Inc. subsidiary ("UBS"); and sales and marketing outsourcing through its 49% equity 
interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC ("TIC"). Because of the seasonal nature of gas utility operations, the 
results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results for an entire year. 

Results of Operations 

The results for the 1998 periods as compared to the 1997 periods reflect changes in the New Jersey 
tax law which resulted in variations in certain line items on the consolidated statement of income (see 
"Regulatory Matters"). Effective January 1, 1998, New Jersey Gross Receipts and Franchise Taxes 
(GRAFT) were replaced by a combination of a New Jersey Sales and Use Tax (NJ Sales Tax), a New 
Jersey Corporate Business Tax (NJ CBT) and a temporary Transitional Energy Facility Assessment 
(NJ TEFA). In prior periods, GRAFT was recorded as a single line item in the reduction of operating 
margins. Effective January 1, 1998, NJ TEFA is recorded in the energy taxes line item as a reduction 
of operating margins, NJ CBT is recorded in the income taxes line item and NJ Sales Tax is recorded 
as a reduction of operating revenues. The legislation was-designed to be net income neutral over a 
twelve-month period. However, for the three and nine-month periods ending June 30, 1998, the effect 
of the three new taxes as compared to the 1997 periods had the effect of reducing operating revenues 
by approximately $2.8 and $8.6 million, reducing energy taxes by approximately $3.3 and $10.3 
million and increasing income tax expense by approximately $0.1 and $2.5 million, respectively. The 
net effect of the change in the tax law increased net income by approximately $0.3 million, or $.02 per 
share, in the three-month period ended June 30, 1998, and decreased net income by $0.5 million, or 
$04 per share, for the nine-month period ended June 30, 1998, as compared to the prior year periods. 
The net effect ofthe change for the twelve-month period ending June 30, 1998 was equal to the effect 
of the change on nine-month period. 

Three-Month P e r i d  Ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 

Net Income (Loss). Net loss for the three-month period ended June 30, 1998 was $0.4 million, or 
$0.03 per share, as compared with net income of $1.4 million, or $0.12 per share, for the three-month 
period ended June 30, 1997. The decrease in the current period was primarily the result of higher 
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operations and maintenance, depreciation, other taxes, and lower other income, partially offset by 
slightly higher margins. 

Operating Revenues and Operating Margins. The Company's operating revenues include amounts 
billed for the cost of purchased gas pursuant to purchased gas adjustment clauses. Such clauses 
enable the Company to pass through to its customers, via periodic adjustments to customers' bills, 
increased or decreased costs incurred by the Company for purchased gas without affecting operating 
margins. Since the Company's utility operations do not earn a profit on the gas commodity element of 
its revenues, the Company's level of operating revenues is not necessarily indicative of financial 
performance. The Company's operating revenues increased by $43.8 million, or 35%, for the 
three-month period ended June 30, 1998 as compared with the three-month period ended June 30, 
1997, principally due to an increase of approximately $56.3 million in unregulated revenues due to 
greater activity. This increase was partially offset by a decrease in the Company's utility operations 
primarily resulting from the effect ofwarmer weather in the 1998 period in all of the Company's 
service temtories, mainly in New Jersey where it was 17% warmer than normal. Additionally, utility 
revenues decreased as a result of the tax law changes described above. 

The Company's operating margins increased by $0.4 million, or 1%, for the three-month period ended 
June 30, 1998 as compared with the three-month period ended June 30, 1997. The Company's utility 
distribution margins reflected a decrease of approximately $0.1 million as increases due to customer 
growth, higher Energy Conservation Program rates in Florida and the effect of the change in the New 
Jersey tax law described above were offset by warmer weather in all of the Company's service 
temtories. The Company's customer service operations increased by approximately $0.6 million as a 
result of customer additions by UBS, as well as increased equipment repair and contract service in 
New Jersey. Operating margins from the Company's energy sales and service operations showed a 
slight decrease mainly as a result of lower gas trading profits. 

Other Operating Expenses. Operations and maintenance expenses increased by approximately $1.4 
million, or 7%, for the three-month period ended June 30, 1998 as compared with the three-month 
period ended June 30, 1997. The increase was primarily as a result of higher expenses primarily 
relating to investments in the Company's unregulated operations, as well as the reversal of certain 
reserves in the prior year period which management determined to be no longer required. These 
increases were partially offset by a higher pension credit due to the investment performance of 
pension plan assets. 

Depreciation and amortization expense increased by approximately $0.5 million primarily due to 
additional plant in service. 

Income tax expense decreased by approximately $0.6 million as lower pre-tax income was partially 
offset by the change in the New Jersey tax law described above. 

Other Income and (Expense), Net. Other income and expense, net decreased approximately $0.4 
million for the three-month period ended June 30, 1998 as compared with the three-month period 
ended June 30, 1997, primarily due to lower net equity earnings from TIC, the fact that as the prior 
year reflected equity in TIC since the effective acquisition date of January 1, 1997. Additionally, the 
prior year reflected higher dividend income related to more marketable equity securities held, and a 
gain on the sale of leased property. 
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Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased by approximately $0.2 million for the three-month 
period ended June 30, 1998 as compared with the three-month period ended June 30, 1997. The 
decrease was primarily due to lower average short-term borrowings and lower average interest rates 
on long-term debt due to the refinancing of bonds in October 1997. These decreases were partially 
offset by drawdowns of construction hnds which have the effect of lowering interest income on the 
hnds held by the trustee. 

Nine-Month P e r i d  Ended June 30. 199% and I99 7 

Net Income. Net income for the nine-month period ended June 30, 1998 was $22.1 million, or $1.76 
per share, as compared with net income of $23.5 million, or $2.10 per share, for the nine-month 
period ended June 30, 1997. The decrease in the current period was primarily due to higher 
operations and maintenance, depreciation and interest expenses, and the effect on 1998 results of the 
New Jersey tax law changes described above. These increases were partially offset by higher margins. 

Net income per share in the current period was affected by the increased number of outstanding 
shares of common stock over the prior period, principally reflecting the Company's issuance of 1.0 
million additional shares in September 1997. 

Operating Revenues and Operating Margins. The Company's operating revenues increased by 
$182.6 million, or 38%, for the nine-month period ended June 30, 1998 as compared with the 
nine-month period ended June 30, 1997. The increase was principally due to an increase of 
unregulated sales of approximately $199.3 million due to greater activity in these operations, 
customer growth and increased customer service and appliance leasing revenues. These increases 
were partially offset by the effect ofwarmer weather in the 1998 period in all of the Company's 
service territories, primarily in New Jersey where it was 17% warmer than normal, as well as the 
effect of the tax law changes described above. 

The Company's operating margins increased by $7.6 million, or 5%, for the nine-month period ended 
June 30, 1998 as compared with the nine-month period ended June 30, 1997. The increase was 
primarily attributable to an increase of $6.1 million in the Company's utility distribution operations as 
a result of customer growth in all territories, the effects of changes in the New Jersey tax law 
described above, and an additional $1.5 million due to the effect of a change in the calculation ofthe 
New Jersey weather normalization clause. These increases were partially offset by the effect of 
warmer weather in all of the Company's service territories, primarily in New Jersey where it was 17% 
warmer than normal. On October 22, 1997, the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NTBPU) 
approved the Company's petition to revise its weather normalization clause to reflect an increase in 
the level of degree days used to determine margin revenue differences associated with variations 
between actual degree days within the months of October through April and the degree days that 
underlie the Company's base rates. The adjustment was necessitated by a change in instrumentation 
used to measure temperatures in the Company's service territory. The changes in the weather 
normalization clause calculation were effective October 1, 1996, but were not recorded by the 
Company until the fourth quarter of fiscal 1997. Operating margins increased in the customer service 
operations by approximately $1.9 million due to the effect of an increase in the appliance leasing rates 
in Florida, customer additions by UBS and increased customer service activity in New Jersey. 
Operating margins from the Company's unregulated operations decreased by approximately $0.1 
million primarily due to lower gas trading profits. The Company has weather normalization clauses in 
its New Jersey and North Carolina tariffs which are designed to help stabilize the Company's results 
by increasing amounts charged to customers when weather has been warmer than normal and by 
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decreasing amounts charged when weather has been colder than normal. As a result ofweather 
normalization clauses, operating margins were approximately $5.6 million and $0.7 million higher in 
the 1998 and 1997 periods, respectively, than they would have been without such clauses. 

Other Operating Expenses. Operations and maintenance expenses increased by approximately $2.8 
million, or 4%, for the nine-month period ended June 30, 1998 as compared with the nine-month 
period ended June 30, 1998. The increase was primarily the result of higher expenses associated with 
the continued growth of the Company's unregulated operations plus the reversal of certain reserves in 
the prior year which management determined were no longer required. These increases were partially 
offset by a higher pension credit due to the investment performance of pension plan assets. 

Depreciation and amortization increased approximately $2.3 million over the prior year period 
primarily due to additional plant in service. 

Income tax expense increased by approximately $2.3 million as a result of the change in the New 
Jersey tax law described above, partially offset by lower pre-tax income. 

Other Income and (Expense), Net. Other income and expense, net decreased approximately $0.4 
million for the nine-month period ended June 30, 1998 as compared with the nine-month period 
ended June 30, 1997. The decrease was primarily due to lower results from TIC in the current year as 
a result of start-up costs related to the addition of new vendor partnerships. 

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by approximately $0.5 million for the nine-month 
period ended June 30, 1998 as compared with the nine-month period ended June 30, 1997. The 
increase was primarily due to higher average long-term borrowings as a result of the drawdown of 
funds for construction expenditures, partially offset by lower average rates on long-term debt due to 
the refinancing of bonds in October 1997. Drawdowns of construction hnds have the effect of 
lowering interest income on the funds held by the trustee. 

Twelve-Month Periwls EndedJune 30, I998 and I997 

Net Income. Net income for the twelve-month period ended June 30, 1998 was $18.3 million, or 
$1.49 per share, as compared with $18.4 million, or $1.66 per share, for the twelve-month period 
ended June 30, 1997. The decrease in the current period was primarily due to higher operations and 
maintenance, depreciation and interest expenses, and the effect of the changes in the New Jersey tax 
law described above. These variances were partially offset by higher operating margins. 

Net income per share for the twelve-month period ended June 30, 1998 as compared to the 
twelve-month period ended June 30, 1997 was affected by the increased number of outstanding 
shares of common stock reflecting the Company's issuances of 1 .O million additional shares in 
September 1997 and 1.8 million additional shares in May 1996. 

Operating Revenues and Operating Margins. The Company's operating revenues for the 
twelve-month period ended June 30, 1998 increased approximately $23 1.8 million, or 41%, as 
compared with the twelve-month period ended June 30, 1997. The increase was primarily due to an 
increase in sales by the Company's unregulated operations of approximately $242.8 million, and 
increased customer service and appliance leasing revenues. These increases were partially offset by 
wanner weather in the current period in all of the Company's service territories, as well as the effect 
of the changes in the New Jersey tax law described above. 
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The Company's operating margins increased by $12.5 million, or 7%, for the twelve-month period 
ended June 30, 1998 as compared with the twelve-month period ended June 30, 1997. The increase 
reflects approximately $9.2 million of additional margins generated by the Company's utility 
distribution operations, approximately $2.5 million of additional margins generated by the Company's 
customer service and appliance leasing operations, and approximately $2.1 million of additional 
margins generated by the Company's unregulated operations. The increase in the Company's utility 
distribution operations was primarily due to customer growth, changes in the New Jersey tax law 
described above and the change in the calculation of the weather normalization clause in New Jersey. 
The increase in the customer service and appliance leasing operations was primarily due to the an 
increase in leasing rates in Florida, customer additions by UBS, and increased customer service 
activity in New Jersey. The increase in the unregulated operations was primarily due to increased 
activity as well as favorable market conditions in the quarter ended September 30, 1997. As a result 
of weather normalization clauses, operating margins were approximately $5.6 million and $0.7 million 
more in the 1998 and 1997 periods, respectively, than they would have been without such clauses. 

Other Operating Expenses. Operations and maintenance expenses increased approximately $4.6 
million, or 5%, for the twelve-month period ended June 30, 1998 as compared with the twelve-month 
period ended June 30, 1997. The increase was primarily the result of higher expenses related to the 
continued growth of the Company's unregulated operations, and the reversal of certain reserves in the 
prior year period that management determined were no longer required. These increases were 
partially offset by a higher pension credit due to the investment performance of pension plan assets. 

Depreciation and amortization expense increased by approximately $3.3 million over the prior year 
period primarily as a result of additional plant in service. 

Income taxes increased by approximately $2.8 million over the prior year period due primarily to the 
changes in the New Jersey tax law described above. 

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by $1.4 million for the 1998 period as compared with 
the 1997 period. The increase was primarily due to the higher average long-term borrowings as a 
result of the drawdown of funds for construction expenditures, partially offset by lower average rates 
on long-term debt due to the refinancing of bonds in October 1997. Drawdowns of construction 
funds have the effect of lowering interest income on the funds held by the trustee. 

Regulatory Matters 

In July 1997, the State ofNew Jersey enacted legislation that eliminated the gross receipts and 
franchise taxes effective January 1, 1998. These taxes were replaced with a 6% sales tax on sales of 
electricity and natural gas, a corporate business tax currently paid by all corporations in the State, and 
the NJ =FA. The legislation was intended, in part, to provide comparability between utilities that 
paid gross receipts and franchise taxes and non-utility energy companies that did not. A key objective 
of this legislation was to maintain energy tax revenue neutrality in 1998. The NJ TEFA tax is 
scheduled to be phased out at a rate of approximately 20% per year starting in 1999. These tax 
changes are designed to have no effect on the Company's net income over a twelve-month period or 
on overall rates charged to customers, until the NJ TEFA reductions occur, and should not have a 
material effect on working capital. The Company paid approximately $25 million of gross receipts and 
franchise taxes to the State in 1997. See "Results of Operations" for a discussion of the effect of the 
new taxes in the 1998 periods. 

On November 20, 1997, the Northern Division amended its July 3 1, 1997 proposal filed with the 
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NJBPU to increase its annual purchased gas adjustment revenues by approximately $14.7 million and 
change the way it recovers gas supply costs from its different classes of customers. On January 23, 
1998 the NJBPU issued an order approving an interim stipulation of the parties concerning a number 
of the Company's rates, including rates charged under the purchased gas adjustment clause. The 
interim stipulation also provided that the Company was required to propose a timetable for resolving 
issues related to offering transportation services to all customers, and the continuation of the 
Company's role as merchant and supplier of last resort. A final order by the NJBPU on the Company's 
amended proposal is expected in the fourth quarter. 

Financing Activities and Resources 

The Company had net cash provided by operating activities of $30.3 million for the nine-month 
period ended June 30, 1998 as compared with $42.3 million for the nine-month period ended June 30, 
1997. The decrease was primarily due to more timely payments of accounts payable and accruals in 
the current year, partially offset by better collections on receivables and additional collections of gas 
costs under the Company's purchased gas adjustment clauses. For the twelve-month period ended 
June 30, 1998, the Company had net cash provided by operating activities of $28.5 million as 
compared with $32.0 million for the twelve-month period ended June 30, 1997. The decrease was 
primarily due to the same reasons described for the nine-month period. 

Because the Company's business is highly seasonal, short-term debt is used to meet seasonal working 
capital requirements. The Company also borrows under its bank lines of credit to finance portions of 
its capital expenditures, pending refinancing through the issuance of equity or long-term indebtedness 
at a later date depending upon prevailing market conditions. 

Short-Term Debt. The weighted average daily amounts outstanding of notes payable to banks and 
the weighted average interest rates on those amounts were $63.4 million at 5.8% for the nine-month 
period ended June 30, 1998 and $64.4 million at 5.3% for the nine-month period ended June 30, 
1997. At June 30, 1998, the Company had outstanding notes payable to banks amounting to $59.5 
million and available unused lines of credit amounting to $86.5 million. 

Long-Term Debt and Funds for Construction Held by Trustee. In November 1994, the Company 
filed a shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission for an aggregate of 
up to $100 million of debt and equity securities. As of June 30, 1998, the Company has issued $70 
million of Medium-Term Notes subject to the shelf registration statement. While the Company has no 
present intention to issue additional securities subject to the shelf registration, such securities may be 
issued from time to time, depending upon the Company's needs and prevailing market conditions. 

The Company deposits in trust the unexpended portion of the net proceeds from its Gas Facilities 
Revenue Bonds until drawn upon for eligible expenditures. As of June 30, 1998, the total unexpended 
portions of all of the Company's Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds were $10.7 million and are classified 
on the Company's consolidated balance sheet, including interest earned thereon, as hnds for 
construction held by trustee. 

The Company prepaid $54.6 million of its Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds in October 1997 with 
proceeds received in fiscal 1997 from a new bond issuance. 

Common Stock. The Company periodically issues shares of common stock in connection with NUI 
Direct, the Company's dividend reinvestment plan, and other employee benefit plans. The proceeds 
from such issuances amounted to approximately $3.9 and $4.0 million for the nine-month periods 
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ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively, and were used primarily to reduce outstanding 
short-term debt. Effective May 26, 1998 several of these plans commenced purchasing shares on the 
open market to hlfill the plans' requirements. Under the terms of these plans, the Company may 
periodically change the method of purchasing from open market purchases to purchases directly from 
the Company, or vice versa. 

Dividends. On November 6, 1997, the Company increased its quarterly dividend to $0.245 per share 
of common stock. The previous quarterly rate was $0.235 per share of common stock. 

The Company's long-term debt agreements include, among other things, restrictions as to the payment 
of cash dividends. Under the most restrictive of these provisions, the Company is permitted to pay 
approximately $50.7 million of cash dividends at June 30, 1998. 

Capital Expenditures and Commitments 

Capital expenditures, which consist primarily of expenditures to expand and upgrade the Company's 
gas distribution systems, were $43.8 million for the nine-month period ended June 30, 1998 as 
compared with $35.9 million for the nine-month period ended June 30, 1997. Capital expenditures are 
expected to be approximately $60 million for fiscal 1998, as compared with a total of $52.3 million in 
fiscal 1997. 

The Company owns or previously owned six former MGP sites in the Northem Division and ten 
MGP sites in the Southern Division. The Company, with the aid of environmental consultants, 
regularly assesses the potential future costs associated with conducting remedial actions, as well as 
the likelihood of whether such actions will be necessary. The Company records a reserve if it is 
probable that a liability will be incurred and the amount of the liability is reasonably estimable. Based 
on the Company's most recent assessment, the Company has recorded a total reserve for 
environmental investigation and remediation costs of approximately $34 million, which the Company 
expects it will expend in the next twenty years to remediate the Company's MGP sites. Of this 
reserve, approximately $30 million relates to Northern Division MGP sites and approximately $4 
million relates to Southern Division MGP sites. However, the Company believes that it is possible 
that costs associated with conducting investigative activities and implementing remedial actions, if 
necessary, with respect to all of its MGP sites may exceed the approximately $34 million reserve by 
an amount that could range up to $24 million and be incurred during a future period of time that may 
range up to fifty years. Ofthis $24 million in possibIe hture expenditures, approximately $12 million 
relates to the Northern Division MGP sites and approximately $12 million relates to the Southem 
Division MGP sites. As compared with the approximately $34 million reserve discussed above, the 
Company believes that it is less likely that this additional $24 million will be incurred and therefore 
has not recorded it on its books. The Company believes that all costs associated with the Northern 
Division MGP sites will be recoverable in rates or from insurance carriers. The Company is able to 
recover actual MGP expenses over a rolling seven-year period through its MGP Remediation 
Adjustment Clause (RAC). The NJBPU approved the Company's initial RAC rate filing on April 2, 
1997 at which time the Company began recovery of approximately $3.1 million, which represents 
environmental costs incurred from inception through June 30, 1996. On August 5, 1997, the 
Company submitted a second RAC rate filing to the NJBPU to recover an additional $0.5 million in 
environmental costs incurred from July 1, 1996 through June 30, 1997. On January 23, 1998 the 
NJBPU issued an order approving an interim stipulation concerning rate recovery of costs incurred 
under the second RAC filing. Final approval by the NJBPU on this matter is expected in the fourth 
quarter, With respect to costs which may be associated with the Southern Division MGP sites, the 
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Company intends to pursue recovery from ratepayers, former owners and operators of the sites and 
fiom insurance carriers. However, the Company is not able at this time to express a belief as to 
whether any or all of these recovery efforts related to the Southern Division MGP sites will ultimately 
be successfil. 

Certain of the Company’s long-term contracts for the supply, storage and delively of natural gas 
include fixed charges that amount to approximately $74 million annually. The Company currently 
recovers, and expects to continue to recover, such fixed charges through its purchased gas adjustment 
clauses. The Company also is committed to purchase, at market-related prices, minimum quantities of 
gas that, in the aggregate, are approximately 9 billion cubic feet per year or to pay certain costs in the 
event the minimum quantities are not taken. The Company expects that minimum demand on its 
systems for the duration of these contracts will continue to exceed these minimum purchase 
obligations. 

The Company is scheduled to repay $20 million of Medium-Term Notes in August 2002. 

Year 2000 

Many existing computer programs use only two digits to identify a year in the date field. These 
programs were designed and developed without provision for the impact of the upcoming change in 
the century. If not corrected, many computer applications could fail or create erroneous results which 
could result in an impact on NU’S operations and businesses and have a resulting adverse financial 
impact. The Company has undertaken a systems readiness program to mitigate the risks associated 
with the Year 2000 issue. This program was developed to identify any systems that are not presently 
Year 2000 compliant, and to replace or modify these systems. In addition, the Company is working 
with its suppliers on this issue to gain assurance that they are taking appropriate steps to mitigate 
Year 2000 problems in their systems and systems they support. The Company began this process in 
fiscal 1997 and anticipates completion during fiscal 1999, with a remaining estimated cost of 
approximately $2 million. Although the Company is endeavoring to ensure that the Year 2000 
readiness program is comprehensive, it can make no assurance that the program will address all Year 
2000 compliance issues in a timely manner. 

PART CI - OTHER INFORMATION 

Ktem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

None 

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 

(a) Exhibits. 

Exhibit No. 

27 

Description of Exhibit Reference 

Financial Data Schedule Filed herewith 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K 

http://www.nui.com/q-3qtr98.htm 10/8/98 



Q - 3rd 98 

None 
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused 
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NU1 CORPORATION 
ESTIMATED CONSOLIDATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1999 
(dollars in thousands) 

Exhibit 6-1 

SOURCES OF FUNDS 
NET INCOME $ 23,450 
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 29,800 
CONSTRUCTION FUNDS, NET 15,000 
PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF COMMON STOCK 550 
DEFERRED FEDERAL INCOME TAXES 3.200 
OTHER NONCASH CHARGES TO INCOME 1,000 

73,000 

USES OF FUNDS 
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES (57,000) 
DIVIDENDS TO SHAREHOLDERS (1 3,000) 
REPAYMENTS OF CAPITAL LEASES (1,700) 
WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES (20,000) 
AMORTIZATION OF ITC (450) 
OTHER (2,000) 

(94,150) 

NET BORROWINGS $ (21,150) 






